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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
We make forward-looking statements in this annapbrt that are subject to risks and uncertainfibese forward-looking

statements include information about possible sued future results of our business, financiabdam, liquidity, results of operations,

plans and objectives. When we use the words “laelie“expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “p lan,” “continue,” “intend,” “should,”
Hmay,” b

would,” “will” or similar expressions, we intend to identify forward-looking statemen&tatements regarding the following
subjects, among others, are forward-looking byrthature:

« our business and investment strategy;

« our projected financial and operating results;

« our ability to maintain existing financing arrangemts, obtain future financing arrangements andetiras of such arrangements;

« general volatility of the securities markets in ehive invest;

« the implementation, timing and impact of, and clengo, various government programs, including tt® epartment of t
Treasury’s plan to buy Agency residential mortghgeked securities, the Term As&steked Securities Loan Facility and
Public-Private Investment Prograi

« our expected investments;

« changes in the value of our investments;

» interest rate mismatches between our investmext®anborrowings used to fund such purchases;

« changes in interest rates and mortgage prepayrags; r

. effects of interest rate caps on our adjustableiratestments;

o rates of default or decreased recovery rates oimgastments;

- prepayments of the mortgage and other loans uridgrbur mortgage-backed or other asset-backedifesur

» the degree to which our hedging strategies mayay mot protect us from interest rate volatility;

« impact of and changes in governmental regulatitanslaw and rates, accounting guidance, and simikiters;

» availability of investment opportunities in reatas-related and other securities;

- availability of qualified personnel,

- estimates relating to our ability to make distribn$ to our stockholders in the future;

« our understanding of our competition; and

« market trends in our industry, interest rates,diblet securities markets or the general economy.

The forward-looking statements are based on ouefsehssumptions and expectations of our futuropeance, taking into account
all information currently available to us. You skunot place undue reliance on these forward-loplsitatements. These beliefs, assumptions
and expectations can change as a result of mamsjbmevents or factors, not all of which are knadwemis. Some of these factors are
described under the caption “Risk Factors” irstlinnual Report on Form 10-K and any subsequentt&lyaReports on Form 10-Q. If a
change occurs, our business, financial conditigajdity and results of operations may vary matgrifrom those expressed in our forward-
looking statements. Any forward-looking statemgrgaks only as of the date on which it is made. Nsks and uncertainties arise from time

to time, and it is impossible for us to predictsb@vents or how they may affect us. Except asnegjby law, we are not obligated to, and do
not intend to, update or revise any forward-lookstatements, whether as a result of new informafidgare events or otherwise.




PART |
Item 1. Business
The Company

We are a specialty finance company that invedtiseedirectly or indirectly through our subsidiarjén residential mortgage-backed
securities, or RMBS, residential mortgage loanal, @state-related securities and various othet aksses. We elected to be taxed as a real
estate investment trust, or REIT, for federal inedax purposes commencing with our taxable yeaingrwh December 31, 2007. Therefore,
we generally will not be subject to federal incotae on our taxable income that is distributed tosiackholders. We were incorporated in
Maryland in June 2007 and commenced operation®ireMber 2007. We listed our common stock on the Merk Stock Exchange, or
NYSE, in November 2007 and trade under the syr‘CIM".

We are externally managed by Fixed Income Discdutvisory Company, which we refer to as our ManawefIDAC. Our
Manager is an investment advisor registered wighSicurities and Exchange Commission, or SEC. tidadily, our Manager is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Annaly Capital Management,,loc Annaly, a New York Stock Exchange-listed RENhjich has a long track record of
managing investments in U.S. government agencygaget-backed securities.

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubteturns to our investors over the long-term, jrifg through dividends and
secondarily through capital appreciation. We intemdchieve this objective by investing in a bratass of financial assets to construct an
investment portfolio that is designed to achievraative risk-adjusted returns and that is strieduo comply with the various federal income
tax requirements for REIT status and to maintaineselusion from regulation under the InvestmentPany Act of 1940, or 1940 Act.

Our Manager

We are externally managed and advised by FIDA®ealfincome management company, pursuant to a nreamagt agreement. All
of our officers are employees of our Manager or oini¢s affiliates. We believe our relationshiptivour Manager enables us to leverage our
Manager’s well-respected and established portfolimagement resources for each of our targeted @dasses and its sophisticated
infrastructure supporting those resources, inclgidiwestment professionals focusing on residentiaitgage loans, U.S. government agency
residential mortgage-backed securities, or Agené\BB, which are mortgage pa#iz-ough certificates, collateralized mortgage dddiions, o
CMOs, and other mortgage-backed securities reptiageinterests in or obligations backed by poolsnairtgage loans issued or guaranteed
by the Federal National Mortgage Association, anrfi@ Mae, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corparatio Freddie Mac, and the
Government National Mortgage Association, or Ginviee, non-Agency RMBS and other asset-backed ssyror ABS. Additionally, we
have benefitted and expect to continue to berrgiihfour Manager's finance and administration fuortsi which address legal, compliance,
investor relations and operational matters, inciggortfolio management, trade allocation and ettesusecurities valuation, risk
management and information technologies in conoeatiith the performance of its duties. Our Managmmmenced active investment
management operations in 1994. At December 319 200 Manager was the adviser or sub-adviser fastment vehicles, including us and
CreXus Investment Corp. (a NYSE-listed commerciatigage REIT), with approximately $6.0 billion ietrassets and $13.6 billion in gross
assets.

Our Manager is responsible for administering owitess activities and day-to-day operations. Runtsto the terms of the
management agreement, our Manager provides uowitianagement team, including our officers, aleith appropriate support
personnel. Our Manager is at all times subjetihéosupervision and oversight of our board of doecand has only such functions and
authority as we delegate to it.

Our Investment Strategy

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubteturns to our investors over the long-term, jrifg through dividends and
secondarily through capital appreciation. We idtemachieve this objective by investing in a déied investment portfolio of RMBS,
residential mortgage loans, real estate-relategrsies and various other asset classes, subjenatotaining our REIT status and exemption
from registration under the 1940 Act. The RMBS,ABommercial mortgage backed securities, or CMBE,collateralized debt
obligations, or CDOs, we purchase may include itmest-grade and non-investment grade classesdingjuhe BB-rated, B-rated and non-
rated classes.




We rely on our Manager's expertise in identifyirggats within our target asset classes. Our Mamagkes investment decisions
based on various factors, including expected casdt,yelative value, risk-adjusted returns, cuti@md projected credit fundamentals, current
and projected macroeconomic considerations, cuamiprojected supply and demand, credit and madtetoncentration limits, liquidity,
cost of financing and financing availability, asliaes maintaining our REIT qualification and oureexption from registration under the 1940
Act.

Over time, we will modify our investment allocatistrategy as market conditions change to seek innize the returns from our
investment portfolio. We believe this strategymntxned with our Manager’s experience, will enaldgaipay dividends and achieve capital
appreciation throughout changing interest rateaadit cycles and provide attractive long-term me$uto investors.

Our targeted asset classes and the principal imesgs we expect to make in each are as follows:

Asset Class Principal Investments

Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities « Non-Agency RMBS, including investment-grade and non-
investment grade classes, including the BB-ratetht&d and
nor-rated classe:

o Agency RMBS.

Residential Mortgage Loans - Prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage loanscthrgform
to the underwriting guidelines of Fannie Mae aneldgie
Mac, which we refer to as Agency Guidelines; amdho
prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage loanscitwafiorm
to the Agency Guidelines except as to loan

« Alt-A mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans thay
have been originated using documentation standhatsre
less stringent than the documentation standardgedgdpy
certain other first lien mortgage loan purchasey@ams, such
as the Agency Guidelines, but have one or more eosgting
factors such as a borrower with a strong credihortgage
history or significant asset

Other Asset-Backed Securities « CMBS.

« Debt and equity tranches of CDOs.

« Consumer and non-consumer ABS, including investment
grade and non-investment grade classes, inclubdim@B-
rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe!

Since we commenced operations in November 200 hawve focused our investment activities on acquinog-Agency RMBS and
on purchasing residential mortgage loans that baes originated by select high-quality originatams|uding the retail lending operations of
leading commercial banks. Our investment portfali@ecember 31, 2009 was weighted toward non-AgeMBS. At December 31,
2009, approximately 67.7% of our investment poitfatas non-Agency RMBS, 25.0% of our investmentfotio was Agency RMBS, and
7.3% of our investment portfolio was securitizesidential mortgage loans. At December 31, 200Br@pmately 52.5% of our investment
portfolio was non-Agency RMBS, 13.7% of our investrhportfolio was Agency RMBS, and 33.8% of ourastment portfolio was
securitized residential mortgage loans. We exgettdver the near term, our investment portfolith @antinue to be weighted toward RMBS,
subject to maintaining our REIT qualification angr 940 Act exemption.




In addition, we have engaged in and anticipateicoimg to engage in transactions with residentiattgage lending operations of
leading commercial banks and other high-qualitgioators in which we identify and re-underwriteidesitial mortgage loans owned by such
entities, and rather than purchasing and secungfiguich residential mortgage loans ourselves, wdtaoriginator would structure the
securitization and we would purchase the resultiegzanine and subordinate non-Agency RMBS. Wealsyengage in similar
transactions with non-Agency RMBS in which we acguiAA-rated non-Agency RMBS and immediately retg#ize those securities. We
may sell the resulting AAA-rated super senior RMBHI retain the AAA-rated mezzanine RMBS. Our itwesit decisions, however, will
depend on prevailing market conditions and willrdover time. As a result, we cannot predicipreentage of our assets that will be
invested in each asset class or whether we widlshin other classes of investments. We may chang@vestment strategy and policies
without a vote of our stockholders.

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT commencitigour taxable year ended December 31, 2007 ansi@peur business to be
exempt from registration under the 1940 Act, aretdfore we are required to invest a substantiabritgjof our assets in loans secured by
mortgages on real estate and real estate-relasetsasSubject to maintaining our REIT qualificateimd our 1940 Act exemption, we do not
have any limitations on the amounts we may invesiny of our targeted asset classes.

Investment Portfolio
The following briefly discusses the principal typgdnvestments that we have made and expect temak
Residential Mortgag-Backed Securities

We have invested in and intend to continue to inlreBRMBS which are typically pass-through certifies created by the
securitization of a pool of mortgage loans thatckateralized by residential real estate properti

The securitization process is governed by one aembthe rating agencies, including Fitch Ratingspdy’s Investors Service and
Standard & Poor’s, which determine the respectivediclass sizes, generally based on a sequenyialgrd structure. Bonds that are rated
from AAA to BBB by the rating agencies are cons@tkfinvestment gradeBond classes that are subordinate to the BBB @lgssonsidere
“below-investment grade” or “non-investment grad@lie respective bond class sizes are determirsztiban the review of the underlying
collateral by the rating agencies. The paymerusived from the underlying loans are used to mhkegayments on the RMBS. Based or
sequential payment priority, the risk of nonpaynfenthe investment grade RMBS is lower than tlsk df nonpayment for the non-
investment grade bonds. Accordingly, the investngeade class is typically sold at a lower yieldngared to the non-investment grade
classes which are sold at higher yields.

We invest in investment grade and non-investmeadgRMBS. We evaluate the credit characterisfitBese types of securities,
including, but not limited to, loan balance distriion, geographic concentration, property type upancy, periodic and lifetime cap,
weighted-average loan-to-value and weighted-avelfég©® score. Qualifying securities are then aredyasing base line expectations of
expected prepayments and losses from given setsogrs and the current state of the fixed-incomagket. Losses and prepayments are
stressed simultaneously based on a credit riskdbagelel. Securities in this portfolio are monitbfer variance from expected prepayments,
severities, losses and cash flow. The due diliggmeeess is particularly important and costly wighpect to newly formed originators or
issuers because there may be little or no infomngtublicly available about these entities and stweents.

We may invest in net interest margin securitied\lds, which are notes that are payable from amdissl by excess cash flow that
is generated by RMBS or home equity line of créditked securities, or HELOCS, after paying the debtice, expenses and fees on such
securities. The excess cash flow represents allpartion of a residual that is generally retaibgdhe originator of the RMBS or
HELOCs. The residual is illiquid, thus the origiorawill monetize the position by securitizing tfesidual and issuing a NIM, usually in the
form of a note that is backed by the excess cashdlenerated in the underlying securitization.




We may invest in mortgage pass-through certificet®sed or guaranteed by Ginnie Mae, Fannie Ma&eexidie Mac. We refer to
these U.S. government agencies as Agencies, ghd tnortgage pass-through certificates they issggiarantee as Agency Mortgage Pass-
through Certificates. More specifically, Agency Myage Pass-through Certificates are securitiegsepting interests in “poolgf mortgag:
loans secured by residential real property wheyengats of both interest and principal, plus predgaincipal, on the securities are made
monthly to holders of the security, in effect “pagsthrough” monthly payments made by the individuarrowers on the mortgage loans that
underlie the securities, net of fees paid to teaég/guarantor and servicers of the securities.m& also invest in CMOs issued by the
Agencies. CMOs consist of multiple classes of g&es, with each class bearing different statedumity dates. Monthly payments of
principal, including prepayments, are first retutrie investors holding the shortest maturity classgstors holding the longer maturity
classes receive principal only after the first slhas been retired. We refer to these types ofisies as Agency CMOs, and we refer to
Agency Mortgage Pass-through Certificates and Ag&idOs as Agency RMBS.

Agency RMBS are collateralized by either fixed-ratertgage loans, or FRMs, adjustable-rate mortd@ayes, or ARMs, or hybrid
ARMs. Hybrid ARMs are mortgage loans that haveri@st rates that are fixed for an initial periogitally three, five, seven or ten years)
and thereafter reset at regular intervals subgettterest rate caps. Our allocation between #@zsicollateralized by FRMs, ARMs or hybrid
ARMs will depend on various factors including, Imat limited to, relative value, expected futuregagment trends, supply and demand, ¢
of financing, costs of hedging, expected futureriest rate volatility and the overall shape ofth8. Treasury and interest rate swap yield
curves. We take these factors into account whemualee these types of investments.

We anticipate engaging in transactions with redidémortgage lending operations of leading comiiaizanks and other high-
quality originators in which we identify and re-wrdrite residential mortgage loans owned by sudhies, and rather than purchasing and
securitizing such residential mortgage loans ouesglwe and the originator would structure the stezation and we would purchase the
resulting mezzanine and subordinate non-Agency RMB& may also engage in similar transactions with-Agency RMBS in which we
would acquire AAA-rated non-Agency RMBS and immeeliare-securitize those securities. We may $ellresulting AAA-rated super
senior RMBS and retain the AAA-rated mezzanine RMBS

Residential Mortgage Loan

We have invested and intend to continue to investsidential mortgage loans (mortgage loans sddwyeesidential real property)
primarily through direct purchases from selectaghbjuality originators. We intend to enter intaléidnal mortgage loan purchase
agreements with a number of primary mortgage logainmators, including mortgage bankers, commergéaiks, savings and loan
associations, home builders, credit unions andgage conduits. We may also purchase mortgage wattse secondary market. We expect
these loans to be secured primarily by resideptigperties in the United States.

We invest primarily in residential mortgage loamslerwritten to our specifications. The originatpesform the credit review of the
borrowers, the appraisal of the properties secutirgoan, and maintain other quality control pahges. We generally consider the purchase
of loans when the originators have verified thertwers’ income and assets, verified their creditdrly and obtained appraisals of the
properties. We or a third party perform an indefgem underwriting review of the processing, undémg and loan closing methodologies
that the originators used in qualifying a borrod@@ra loan. Depending on the size of the loansmag not review all of the loans in a pool,
but rather select loans for underwriting reviewdshapon specific risk-based criteria such as ptgpecation, loan size, effective loan-to-
value ratio, borrower’s credit score and otherecid we believe to be important indicators of creidk. Additionally, before the purchase of
loans, we obtain representations and warranties &ach originator stating that each loan is undéemrto our requirements or, in the event
underwriting exceptions have been made, we arem¥d so that we may evaluate whether to accemjectrthe loans. An originator who
breaches these representations and warrantieskimgra loan that we purchase may be obligatedporahase the loan from us. As added
security, we use the services of a third-party doent custodian to insure the quality and accurd@fl andividual mortgage loan closing
documents and to hold the documents in safekeep\sa result, all of the original loan collatedalcuments that are signed by the borrower,
other than the original credit verification docurtgrare examined, verified and held by the thirdypdocument custodian.

We currently do not intend to originate mortgagenke or provide other types of financing to the owraf real estate. We currently
do not intend to establish a loan servicing platfobut expect to retain highly-rated servicersexvige our mortgage loan portfolio. We
purchase certain residential mortgage loans omvicg®gy-retained basis. In the future, however, we mayd#eio originate mortgage loans
other types of financing, and we may elect to servnortgage loans and other types of assets.




We expect that all servicers servicing our loanshve highly rated by the rating agencies. We alsoduct a due diligence review of
each servicer before executing a servicing agreentervicing procedures will typically follow FaierMae guidelines but will be specified
in each servicing agreement. All servicing agremsaill meet standards for inclusion in highlye@dtmortgage-backed or asset-backed
securitizations. We have entered into a masteicieg agreement with Wells Fargo, N.A. to assistith management, servicing oversight,
and other administrative duties associated withagang our mortgage loans.

We expect that the loans we acquire will be files | single-family residential traditional fixedtea adjustable-rate and hybrid
adjustable-rate loans with original terms to mayuof not more than 40 years and are either fulhpeizing or are interest-only for up to ten
years, and fully amortizing thereafter. Fi-rate mortgage loans bear an interest rate thixeid for the life of the loan. All adjustable-eat
and hybrid adjustable-rate residential mortgagadaoaill bear an interest rate tied to an interatt index. Most loans have periodic and
lifetime constraints on how much the loan interagt can change on any predetermined interestesdé¢ date. The interest rate on each
adjustable-rate mortgage loan resets monthly, semirally or annually and generally adjusts to agimeover a U.S. Treasury index or the
LIBOR index. Hybrid adjustable-rate loans havéxad rate for an initial period, generally thregéo years, and then convert to adjustable-
rate loans for their remaining term to maturity.

We acquire residential mortgage loans for our ptictfwith the intention of either securitizing theand retaining them in our
portfolio as securitized mortgage loans, or holdimgm in our residential mortgage loan portfolio facilitate the securitization or financing
of our loans, we expect to generally create subatdicertificates, which provide a specified amaifrdredit enhancement. We expect to
issue securities through securities underwritedsedther retain these securities or finance thethérrepurchase agreement market. There is
no limit on the amount we may retain of these beiovestment-grade subordinate certificates. Umélsecuritize our residential mortgage
loans, we expect to finance our residential morgagn portfolio through the use of warehouse itéesl and repurchase agreements.

Other Asset-Backed Securities

We may invest in securities issued in various CDB@rimgs to gain exposure to bank loans, corpooateds, ABS, mortgages, RM|
and CMBS and other instruments. To avoid any dctuperceived conflicts of interest with our Maeagan investment in any such security
structured or managed by our Manager will be apgidw a majority of our independent directors. tiH@extent such securities are treated as
debt of the CDO issuer for federal income tax pagsowe will hold the securities directly, subjecthe requirements of our continued
qualification as a REIT. To the extent the se@sitepresent equity interests in a CDO issuefefderal income tax purposes, we may be
required to hold such securities through a taxB®BE€T subsidiary, or TRS, which would cause the meaecognized with respect to such
securities to be subject to federal (and applicatde and local) corporate income tax. See “Rattors — Tax Risks.” We could fail to
qualify as a REIT or we could become subject telaafty tax if the income we recognize from cerfairestments that are treated or could be
treated as equity interests in a foreign corpona¢ixceed 5% of our gross income in a taxable year.

We may invest in CMBS, which are secured by, odence ownership interests in, a single commerctatgage loan or a pool of
mortgage loans secured by commercial propertiégesd securities may be senior, subordinated, inesgtgrade or non-investment
grade. We intend to invest in CMBS that will yigdrrent interest income and where we considerghen of principal to be likely. We
intend to acquire CMBS from private originators @f,investors in, mortgage loans, including saviags loan associations, mortgage
bankers, commercial banks, finance companies, imerg banks and other entities.

In general, CDO issuers are special purpose vehibkg hold a portfolio of incomproducing assets financed through the issuan
rated debt securities of different seniority andigq The debt tranches are typically rated basedash flow structure, portfolio quality,
diversification and credit enhancement. The egssfyurities issued by the CDO vehicle are thet“foss” piece of the CDO vehicle’s capital
structure, but they are also generally entitledltoesidual amounts available for payment after@O vehicles senior obligations have be
satisfied. Some CDO vehicles are “synthetic,” imah the credit risk to the collateral pool is ts8erred to the CDO vehicle by a credit
derivative such as a credit default swap.




We also may invest in consumer ABS. These seesritie generally securities for which the undegyallateral consists of assets
such as home equity loans, credit card receivabidsauto loans. We also expect to invest in natsemer ABS. These securities are
generally secured by loans to businesses and tofsissets such as equipment loans, truck loashagricultural equipment loans. Issuer:
consumer and non-consumer ABS generally are spaaipbse entities owned or sponsored by banksiaadde companies, captive finance
subsidiaries of non-financial corporations or spknéd originators such as credit card lenders. nvdlg purchase RMBS and ABS which are
denominated in foreign currencies or are collaizzdl by non-U.S. assets.

Investment Guidelines

We have adopted a set of investment guidelinesstitaiut the asset classes, risk tolerance ledigks;sification requirements and
other criteria used to evaluate the merits of djpeicivestments as well as the overall portfoliorgmsition. Our Manager’s Investment
Committee reviews our compliance with the investhgridelines periodically and our board of direstoeceives an investment report at €
quarter-end in conjunction with its review of owragterly results. Our board also reviews our itwest portfolio and related compliance
with our investment policies and procedures andstment guidelines at each regularly scheduleddbafadirectors meeting.

Our board of directors and our Manager’s Investn@arhmittee have adopted the following guidelingsofar investments and
borrowings:

« No investment shall be made that would cause {altto qualify as a REIT for federal income taxrpases
« Noinvestment shall be made that would cause be tegulated as an investment company under th@ ASg

«  With the exception of real estate and housing,ingle industry shall represent greater than 20%hefsecurities or aggregate |
exposure in our portfolio; ar

« Investments in non-rated or deeply subordinated ABS8ther securities that are ngoalifying assets for purposes of the 75% F
asset test will be limited to an amount not to extt®80% of our stockholde' equity.

These investment guidelines may be changed by erityapf our board of directors without the apprbefour stockholders.

Our board of directors has also adopted a sepseatsf investment guidelines and procedures tomower relationships with
FIDAC. We have also adopted detailed compliandiips to govern our interaction with FIDAC, inclind when FIDAC is in receipt of
material non-public information.

Our Financing Strategy

We use leverage to increase potential returnsitetogkholders. We are not required to maintainspecific debt-to-equity ratio as
we believe the appropriate leverage for the pdeicassets we are financing depends on the credlitg and risk of those assets. At
December 31, 2009, our ratio of debt-to-equity Wdsl. For purposes of calculating this ratio, equity is equal to the total stockholders’
equity on our consolidated statements of finanmdaldition. Our debt consists of repurchase agra&rend securitized debt. As part of our
borrowing, we have entered into a RMBS repurchgseeament with Annaly, which owns approximately 6.@%6ur outstanding shares of
common stock. As of December 31, 2009, we hadanding under this agreement $259.0 million whichsists of approximately 13% of
our total financing.

Subject to our maintaining our qualification aslEIR we may use a number of sources to financermaistments, including the
following:




» Repurchase Agreements. We finance certain of our assets through theafigepurchase agreements. We anticipate tharckpsi
agreements will be one of the sources we will osagchieve our desired amount of leverage for csidential real estate assets.
maintain formal relationships with multiple courgiarties to obtain financing on favorable ter

» Warehouse Facilities . We may utilize credit facilities for capital riel to fund our assets. We intend to maintain &
relationships with multiple counterparties to maintwarehouse lines on favorable ter

»  Securitization . We have and may continue to acquire residematgage loans for our portfolio with the intentiohsecuritizing
them and retaining the securitized mortgage loansur portfolio. To facilitate the securitizatiar financing of our loans, v
generally create subordinate certificates, progdin specified amount of credit enhancement, whiehintend to retain in o
portfolio.

o  Asset-Backed Commercial Paper . We may finance certain of our assets using dssegkted commercial paper, or ABCP, cond
which are bankruptcyemote special purpose vehicles that issue comalgraper and the proceeds of which are used to dsadit:
either through repurchase or secured lending pnegiraVe may utilize ABCP conduits of third partegscreate our own condu

« Term Financing CDOs . We may finance certain of our assets using tinancing strategies, including CDOs and other fmatc
funded financing structures. CDOs are multiplesgldebt securities, or bonds, secured by poolss#ts, such as mortgabgaeket
securities and corporate debt. Like typical séiaation structures, in a CD(

0 the assets are pledged to a trustee for the befefie holders of the bonc

0 one or more classes of the bonds are rated by romem rating agencies; a

0 one or more classes of the bonds are marketewideavariety of fixedincome investors, which enables the CDO spons
achieve a relatively low cost of lo-term financing

Unlike typical securitization structures, the urigieg assets may be sold, subject to certain litioites, without a corresponding pay-
down of the CDO, provided the proceeds are reimekist qualifying assets. As a result, CDOs en#idesponsor to actively manage, subject
to certain limitations, the pool of assets. Weaewa CDO financing structures may be an appropfiatacing vehicle for our target asset
classes because they will enable us to obtainvelatow, long-term cost of funds and minimize ttigk that we may have to refinance our
liabilities before the maturities of our investmgnihile giving us the flexibility to manage credgtk and, subject to certain limitations, to
take advantage of profit opportunities.

Our Interest Rate Hedging and Risk Management Straggy

We may, from time to time, utilize derivative firdal instruments to hedge all or a portion of thieiest rate risk associated with
borrowings. Under the federal income tax laws i@pple to REITs, we generally enter into certaimsactions to hedge indebtedness that we
incur, or plan to incur, to acquire or carry restiage assets, although our total gross income &uch hedges and other non-qualifying sources
must not exceed 25% of our gross income.

We engage in a variety of interest rate managerteehniques that seek to mitigate changes in inteaéss or other potential
influences on the values of our assets. The féderame tax rules applicable to REITs requireaisriplement certain of these techniques
through a TRS that is fully subject to corporateoime taxation. Our interest rate management tqabsimay include:

« puts and calls on securities or indices of se@;ti
« Eurodollar futures contracts and options on suctireots;
- interest rate caps, swaps and swaptions;

« U.S. treasury securities and options on U.S. tmyasecurities; and

« other similar transactions.




We attempt to reduce interest rate risks and tomitie exposure to interest rate fluctuations thiotige use of match funded
financing structures, when appropriate, wherebyseek (i) to match the maturities of our debt oltlayes with the maturities of our assets
(i) to match the interest rates on our investmaerits like-kind debt (i.e., floating rate assete éinanced with floating rate debt and fixed-rate
assets are financed with fixed-rate debt), direstlhrough the use of interest rate swaps, capsher financial instruments, or through a
combination of these strategies. This will allosvta minimize the risk that we have to refinancel@bilities before the maturities of our
assets and to reduce the impact of changing intexss on our earnings.

Compliance with REIT and Investment Company Requiements

We monitor our investment securities and the incfnoim these securities and, to the extent we énterhedging transactions, we
monitor income from our hedging transactions ad,welas to ensure at all times that we maintaingoalification as a REIT and our exempt
status under the 1940 Act.

Employees

We are externally managed and advised by our Manmagsuant to a management agreement as discuskd bNVe have no
employees other than our officers, each of whoaise an employee of our Manager or one of itsiaféis. Our Manager is not obligated to
dedicate certain of its employees exclusively tonas is it or its employees obligated to dedicatg specific portion of its time to our
business. Our Manager uses the proceeds fromaiteigement fee in part to pay compensation to fitseo$ and employees who,
notwithstanding that certain of them also are dficers, receive no cash compensation directly fugnm

The Management Agreement

We entered into a management agreement with oualyerwith an initial term ending December 31, 204ith automatic, one-year
renewals at the end of each calendar year followirgnitial term, subject to approval by our indagent directors. Under the management
agreement, our Manager implements our businesegyrand performs certain services for us, sultgeotersight by our board of
directors. Our Manager is responsible for, amahgrthings, performing all of our day-to-day fupats; determining investment criteria in
conjunction with our board of directors; sourciagalyzing and executing investments; asset satbfirrancings; and performing asset
management duties.

Our independent directors review our Manager’'sqgarince annually, and following the initial terinetmanagement agreement
may be terminated by us without cause upon thenadtive vote of at least two-thirds of our indepentddirectors, or by a vote of the holders
of at least a majority of the outstanding sharesusfcommon stock (other than shares held by Anoalis affiliates), based upon: (i) our
Manager’s unsatisfactory performance that is maitgrdetrimental to us, or (ii) our determinatidrat the management fees payable to our
Manager are not fair, subject to our Manager’strigtprevent termination based on unfair fees lmepting a reduction of management fees
agreed to by at least two-thirds of our independé@ettors. We will provide our Manager with 188ys’ prior notice of such
termination. Upon termination without cause, wé pay our Manager a substantial termination féée may also terminate the management
agreement with 30 days’ prior notice from our boafdirectors, without payment of a termination,f® cause or upon a change of control
of Annaly or our Manager, each as defined in theagament agreement. Our Manager may terminate ahagement agreement if we
become required to register as an investment coynpaaher the 1940 Act, with such termination deertwedccur immediately before such
event, in which case we would not be required ypgtermination fee. Our Manager may also dedbnenew the management agreement
by providing us with 180-days’ written notice, irhigh case we would not be required to pay a tertinndee.

We pay our Manager a management fee quarterlyréaewr in an amount equal to 1.50% per annum, ea&lilquarterly, of our
stockholders’ equity. For purposes of calculatimg management fee, our stockholders’ equity mdsnsum of the net proceeds from any
issuances of our equity securities since incef@tincated on a pro rata daily basis for such issea during the fiscal quarter of any such
issuance), plus our retained earnings at the esdaf quarter (without taking into account any-eash equity compensation expense
incurred in current or prior periods), less any antdhat we pay for repurchases of our common stac# less any unrealized gains, losses of
other items that do not affect realized net incgregardless of whether such items are includedhiarccomprehensive income, or OCI, or
loss, or in net income). This amount is adjusteexclude one-time events pursuant to changesriaerghly accepted accounting principles, or
GAAP, and certain non-cash charges after discusdietween our Manager and our independent direatatapproved by a majority of our
independent directors. The management fee witedaced, but not below zero, by our proportionates of any CDO base management
fees FIDAC receives in connection with the CDOwhich we invest, based on the percentage of egquéthold in such CDOs. The
management fee is payable independent of the peafoce of our investment portfolio.




For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 200tharmkriod November 21, 2007 to December 31, 2607Manager earned
management fees of $25.7 million, $8.4 million &id2 million, respectively and received expensmbeirsement of $0, $0 and $698
thousand, respectively. From our inception throR@89, our Manager waived its right to requireapdy our pro rata portion of rent,
telephone, utilities, office furniture, equipmemtachinery and other office, internal and overhegkases of our Manager and its affiliates
required for our operations.

Competition

Our net income depends, in large part, on ourtglidi acquire assets at favorable spreads ovebb@uowing costs. In acquiring real
estaterelated assets, we will compete with other mortgRBé€Ts, specialty finance companies, savings aad &ssociations, banks, mortgi
bankers, insurance companies, mutual funds, itistital investors, investment banking firms, finaidénstitutions, governmental bodies and
other entities. In addition, there are numeroustgage REITs with similar asset acquisition objeesi including a number that have been
recently formed, and others that may be organirdte future. These other REITs will increase catitipa for the available supply of
mortgage assets suitable for purchase. Many of@mpetitors are significantly larger than we amjehaccess to greater capital and other
resources and may have other advantages ovenuwsldition, some of our competitors may have higisértolerances or different risk
assessments, which could allow them to considedarwariety of investments and establish more fable relationships than we can.
Current market conditions may attract more comgegjtwhich may increase the competition for soucddmmancing. An increase in the
competition for sources of funding could adversafect the availability and cost of financing, ehéreby adversely affect the market pric
our common stock.

Distributions

To maintain our qualification as a REIT, we mustdlbute substantially all of our taxable incometo stockholders for each
year. We have declared and paid regular quartiévigends in the past and intend to do so in theréu

Available Information

Our investor relations website is www.chimerareitoc We make available on the website under "Fidmhaformation/SEC
filings," free of charge, our annual report on Fdr@iK and any other reports as soon as reasonadntyigable after we electronically file or
furnish such materials to the SEC. Information anwebsite, however, is not part of this Annual &¢pn Form 10-K. All reports filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission may alseditand copied at the SEC’s public reference rabh®0 F Street, N.E., Washington,
D.C. 20549. Further information regarding the ofieraof the public reference room may be obtaingddiling 1-800-SEC-0330. In
addition, all of our filed reports can be obtairédhe SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

The risks and uncertainties described below aré¢hobnly ones facing us. Additional risks and utaiaties that we are unaware of,
or that we currently deem immaterial, also may bez@mportant factors that affect us.

If any of the following risks occur, our businefeancial condition or results of operations cob&lmaterially and adversely
affected. In that case, the trading price of ounemmn stock could decline, and stockholders may $osee or all of their investment.

Risks Associated With Recent Adverse Developments the Mortgage Finance and Credit Markets

Difficult conditions in the financial markets and the economy generally have caused us and may continto cause us market value
losses related to our holdings, and we do not exgehese conditions to improve in the near future.

Our results of operations are materially affectgd@nditions in the mortgage market, the finangiakkets and the economy
generally. Recently, concerns over inflation, eyargsts, geopolitical issues, the availability aodt of credit, the mortgage market and a
declining real estate market have contributed ¢oeiased volatility and diminished expectationstiier economy and markets going forward.
The mortgage market, including the market for pramd Alt-A loans, has been severely affected byigha in the lending landscape and
there is no assurance that these conditions hab#ized or that they will not worsen. The sevedfythe liquidity limitation was largely
unanticipated by the markets. For now (and forfthheseeable future), access to mortgages has bestaatially limited. This has an impact
on new demand for homes, which will compress thedownership rates and weigh heavily on future hpriee performance. There is a
strong correlation between home price growth ratesmortgage loan delinquencies. The market destionm has caused us to expect
increased losses related to our holdings and, g@@98, to sell assets at a loss. Continued maeketioration may once again force us to
sell assets at a loss.

A substantial portion of our assets are classfiecccounting purposes as “available-for-sale” eadied at fair value. Changes in
the fair values of those assets are directly clthogeredited to OCI. As a result, a decline irueal may reduce the book value of our assets.
Moreover, if the decline in value of an availabbe-$ale security is other than temporary, suchideatill reduce earnings.

All of our repurchase agreements and interestsatp agreements are subject to bilateral margis icethe event that the collateral
securing our obligations under those facilitiesemds or does not meet our collateralization reqergs. For example, during 2008, due to
the deterioration in the market value of our asse¢sreceived and met margin calls under our rd@ase agreements, which required us to
obtain additional funding from third parties, inding from Annaly, and taking other steps to incesasr liquidity. Additionally, the
disruptions during 2008 resulted in us not beingdmpliance with the net income covenant in oneuwfwhole loan repurchase agreements
and the liquidity covenants in our other whole loapurchase agreement at a time during which wenbaaimounts outstanding under those
facilities. We amended these covenants, and on28y12008, we terminated those facilities to aymgting non-usage fees. We can provide
no assurances that such events will not occur agairat a time when we cannot find additional fagdivhich may result in us having to
dispose of assets at an inopportune time whengaicedepressed.

Dramatic declines in the housing market, with fajlhome prices and increasing foreclosures and plogment, have resulted in
significant asset write-downs by financial instiduts, which have caused many financial institutitmseek additional capital, to merge with
other institutions and, in some cases, to faihddition, we rely on the availability of financing acquire residential mortgage loans, real
estate-related securities and real estate loaad@reraged basis. Institutions from which we ws@ek to obtain financing may have owned or
financed residential mortgage loans, real estdtget securities and real estate loans, which Haeéned in value and caused them to suffer
losses as a result of the recent downturn in thieleatial mortgage market. Many lenders and irtstibal investors have reduced and, in s¢
cases, ceased to provide funding to borrowersydiag other financial institutions. If these comalits persist, these institutions may become
insolvent or tighten their lending standards, whiolild make it more difficult for us to obtain fimeing on favorable terms or at all. Our
profitability may be adversely affected if we areable to obtain cost-effective financing for ouwvestments.

Mortgage loan modification programs, future legisldive action and changes in the requirements necesgdo qualify for refinancing a
mortgage may adversely affect the value of, and theturns on, the assets in which we invest.

During the second half of 2008, in 2009, and sarf&010, the U.S. government, through the Feddoalsing Administration, or
FHA, and the FDIC, implemented programs designgat@aside homeowners with assistance in avoidinglesgial mortgage loan
foreclosures including the Hope for Homeowners 2008, which allows certain distressed borrowensefinance their mortgages into
FHA-insured loans and the Home Affordable ModificatProgram, or HAMP, which provides a detailedfanm model for one-time
modification of eligible residential mortgage loankhe programs may also involve, among other gitige modification of mortgage loans
reduce the principal amount of the loans or the adiinterest payable on the loans, or to exterdtiyment terms of the loans. Members of
the U.S. Congress have indicated support for additilegislative relief for homeowners, includinga@mendment of the bankruptcy laws to
permit the modification of mortgage loans in bamgktoy proceedings. These loan modification progranwuding future legislative or
regulatory actions and amendments to the bankrdgtey, that result in the modification of outstargiimortgage loans, as well as changes in
the requirements necessary to qualify for refinag@ mortgage may adversely affect the value af.tha returns on, our non-Agency RMBS
and Agency RMBS. Depending on whether or not welpased an instrument at a premium or discountyitid we receive may be
positively or negatively impacted by any modificeti
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The U.S. Government's pressing for refinancing ofertain loans may affect prepayment rates for mortgge loans in mortgage-backed
securities.

In addition to the increased pressure upon resalenbrtgage loan investors and servicers to engafpess mitigation activities, the
U.S. Government is pressing for refinancing of@ertoans, and this encouragement may affect prapayrates for mortgage loans in
mortgage-backed securities. In connection withegoment-related securities, in February 2009 Peasi@bama unveiled the Homeowner
Affordability and Stability Plan, which, in partats upon Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac to loosem &igjibility criteria for the purchase of
loans in order to provide access to low-cost refiirzg for borrowers who are current on their maggypayments but who cannot otherwise
qualify to refinance at a lower market rate. Theanchange was to permit an increase in the loaratue, or LTV, ratio of a refinancing
loan eligible for sale up to 105%. In July 2008 FHFA authorized Fannie Mae and Freddie Macis® the present LTV ratio ceiling of
105% to 125%. The charters governing the operatidi-annie Mae and Freddie Mac prohibit purchasésans with loan to value ratios in
excess of 80% unless the loans have mortgage imzifar unless other types of credit enhancemenpravided in accordance with the
statutory requirements). The FHFA, which reguld&tasnie Mae and Freddie Mac, determined that nertgage insurance will not be
required on the refinancing if the applicable gngitready owns the loan or guarantees the relatathage-backed securities. Additionally,
the Treasury reports that in some cases a newiappwvall not be necessary upon refinancing. TheaBury estimates that up to 5,000,000
homeowners with loans owned or guaranteed by Faviaeor Freddie Mac may be eligible for this refinmg program, which is scheduled
to terminate in June 2010.

The HERA authorized a voluntary FHA mortgage inageaprogram called HOPE for Homeowners, or H4H Runog designed to
refinance certain delinquent borrowers into new FHgured loans. The H4H Program targets delingbenowers under conventional
mortgage loans, as well as under government-insureguaranteed mortgage loans, that were origihateor before January 1, 2008.
Holders of existing mortgage loans being refinanceder the H4H Program must accept a write-dowprioicipal and waive all prepayment
fees. While the use of the program has been egtyelimited to date, Congress continues to amendtiogram to encourage its use. The
H4H Program is effective through September 30, 2011

To the extent these and other economic stabilizaticstimulus efforts are successful in increagirepayment speeds for residential
mortgage loans, such as those in mortgage-backeditses, that could potentially harm our incomel @perating results, particularly in
connection with loans or mortgage-backed secuniiigshased at a premium or our interest-only stesri

The actions of the U.S. government, Federal Reseraad Treasury, including the establishment of the ALF and the PPIP, may
adversely affect our business.

The TALF was first announced by the Treasury onéioler 25, 2008, and has been expanded in sizecapd since its initial
announcement. Under the TALF, the Federal Red@ank of New York makes non-recourse loans to boersvio fund their purchase of
eligible assets, currently certain asset backedriiss but not RMBS. The nature of the eligibésets has been expanded several times. The
Treasury has stated that through its expansioneoTALF, non-recourse loans will be made availablevestors to certain fund purchases of
legacy securitization assets. On March 23, 2089 Treasury in conjunction with the FDIC, and tleeléral Reserve, announced the PPIP.
The PPIP aims to recreate a market for specifauidl residential and commercial loans and se@asitihrough a number of joint public and
private investment funds. The PPIP is designeattda new private capital into the market for theseurities and loans by providing
government equity co-investment and attractive ipdbiancing.
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It is not possible to predict how the TALF, the PPbr other recent U.S. Government actions willaetghe financial markets,
including current significant levels of volatilitgr our current or future investments. To the etbe market does not respond favorably to
these initiatives or they do not function as inthdour business may not receive any benefits fhasregislation. In addition, the U.S.
government, Federal Reserve, Treasury and oth@rgmental and regulatory bodies have taken or@rsidering taking other actions to
address the financial crisis. We cannot prediattivér or when such actions may occur, and sucbractiould have a dramatic impact on our
business, results of operations and financial ¢amdi

There can be no assurance that the actions of the®l Government, the Federal Reserve, the Treasurynd other governmental and
regulatory bodies for the purpose of stabilizing tle financial markets, including the establishment othe TALF and the PPIP, or
market response to those actions, will achieve thetended effect, that our business will benefit frm these actions or that further
government or market developments will not adversglimpact us.

In response to the financial issues affecting #eking system and the financial markets and goimgern threats to investment
banks and other financial institutions, the U.Sv&oment, the Federal Reserve, the Treasury ama gvernmental and regulatory bodies
have taken action to attempt to stabilize the foi@rmarkets. Significant measures include theegnant of the Economic Stabilization Act
2008, or the EESA, to, among other things, estaltfie Troubled Asset Relief Program, or the TARIR; eénactment of the HERA, which
established a new regulator for Fannie Mae anddieddac; the establishment of the TALF; and thalgisgshment of the PPIP.

There can be no assurance that the EESA, HERA, TREWP or other recent U.S. Government actionshaiWe a beneficial impact
on the financial markets, including on current lewe volatility. To the extent the market doed respond favorably to these initiatives or
these initiatives do not function as intended, lmusiness may not receive the anticipated posithgatt from the legislation. There can also
be no assurance that we will be eligible to partitg in any programs established by the U.S. Govenh such as the TALF or the PPIP or, if
we are eligible, that we will be able to utilizesth successfully or at all. In addition, becauseptograms are designed, in part, to provide
liquidity to restart the market for certain of dargeted assets, the establishment of these pregraw result in increased competition for
attractive opportunities in our targeted assettss dlso possible that our competitors may utittze programs which would provide them with
attractive debt and equity capital funding from th&. Government. In addition, the U.S. Governmtra,Federal Reserve, the Treasury and
other governmental and regulatory bodies have takeme considering taking other actions to additesginancial crisis. We cannot predict
whether or when such actions may occur, and suitnaaccould have a dramatic impact on our businessilts of operations and financial
condition.

The conservatorship of Fannie Mae and Freddie Macral related efforts, along with any changes in lawand regulations affecting the
relationship between Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac anthe U.S. Government, may adversely affect our busgss.

Due to increased market concerns about Fannie Ma&reddie Mac's ability to withstand future credigses associated with
securities held in their investment portfolios, amdwhich they provide guarantees, without thedliseipport of the U.S. Government, on {
30, 2008, Congress passed the Housing and EcorReaimvery Act of 2008, or the HERA. Among othends, the HERA established the
Federal Housing Finance Agency, or FHFA, which ltragd regulatory powers over Fannie Mae and Frdddie On September 6, 2008,
the FHFA placed Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac int@eoratorship and, together with the Treasury, ésteddl a program designed to boost
investor confidence in Fannie Mae’s and Freddie’Mdebt and Agency RMBS. As the conservator ofri@iMae and Freddie Mac, the
FHFA controls and directs the operations of Faiiée and Freddie Mac and may (1) take over the as$eind operate Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac with all the powers of the shareholdins directors and the officers of Fannie Mae retidie Mac and conduct all business of
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac; (2) collect all obiigag and money due to Fannie Mae and Freddie Ma@erform all functions of Fannie
Mae and Freddie Mac which are consistent with theservator’'s appointment; (4) preserve and congberassets and property of Fannie
Mae and Freddie Mac; and (5) contract for assistamdulfilling any function, activity, action oruy of the conservator. A primary focus of
this new legislation is to increase the availapitift mortgage financing by allowing Fannie Mae &mdddie Mac to continue to grow their
guarantee business without limit, while limitingt peirchases of mortgage-backed securities to a shadeount through the end of 2009. It is
currently planned for Fannie Mae and Freddie Maetiuce gradually their mortgage-backed secunitigolios beginning in 2010.
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In addition to FHFA becoming the conservator of iHarMae and Freddie Mac, the Treasury and FHFA leatered into Preferred
Stock Purchase Agreements (PSPASs) between theufyemsd Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac pursuant totwihie Treasury will ensure that
each of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac maintains dipesiet worth. On December 24, 2009, the U.S. Supaamended the terms of the U.S.
Treasurys PSPAs with Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac to renttow&200 billion per institution limit establishadder the PSPAs until the e
of 2012. The U.S. Treasury also amended the PS#Agespect to the requirements for Fannie MaeFreddie Mac to reduce their
portfolios.

Although the Treasury has committed capital to kFaMae and Freddie Mac, there can be no assurbhatéese actions will be
adequate for their needs. If these actions areeipzate, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac could contimgeffer losses and could fail to honor
their guarantees and other obligations. The futoies of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac could be sigaifly reduced and the nature of their
guarantees could be considerably diminished. Aranghs to the nature of the guarantees provideabgi€& Mae and Freddie Mac could
redefine what constitutes Agency RMBS and couldhawad adverse market implications and severersglo®nsequences to our business.

Such consequences to us may include an inabiligéoAgency RMBS as collateral for our financingder our repurchase
agreements since any decline in their value, argieed market uncertainty about their value, waubike it more difficult for us to obtain
financing on acceptable terms or at all, or to @@mour compliance with the terms of any financirapsactions, or to maintain our
exemption under the 1940 Act. Further, the curceadlit support provided by the Treasury to Faiiée and Freddie Mac, and any
additional credit support it may provide in theuid, could have the effect of lowering the interasts we expect to receive from Agency
RMBS, thereby tightening the spread between thexast we earn on these securities and the costanfding them. All of the foregoing as
well as unforeseen consequences resulting frorfotiegoing could materially and adversely affect business, operations and financial
condition.

A significant portion of our financing is from Annaly which is a significant shareholder of ours and Wich owns our Manager.

Our ability to fund our investments on a leverabadis depends to a large extent upon our abiliseture warehouse, repurchase,
credit, and/or commercial paper financing on ac@elptterms. The current dislocation in the Wagency mortgage sector has made it diffi
for us to obtain short-term financing on favoratelens. As a result, we have completed loan sezatitins in order to obtain long-term
financing and terminated our un-utilized whole lsapurchase agreements in order to avoid payingusage fees under those agreements. Ir
addition, commencing in 2008, we entered into a FBpurchase agreement with Annaly, which ownsapmrately 6.7% of our
outstanding shares of common stock. This agreeomtains customary representations, warrantiecawnenants contained in such
agreements including Annaly having the right to mmatargin calls if the value of our RMBS collatezaip the agreement falls. As of
December 31, 2009, we had $259.0 million outstapndimder this agreement which consists of approxmdt3% of our total financing. Our
RMBS repurchase agreement with Annaly is at mamdktess and is secured by the RMBS pledged undexgfeement and is callable by
Annaly on a weekly basis. We do not expect to iaseesignificantly the amount of securities pledgednnaly or significantly increase or
decrease the funds we borrow from Annaly. We caasstire you that Annaly will continue to providewith such financing. If Annaly does
not provide us with financing, we cannot assure tyat we will be able to replace such financinfjwe are not able to replace this financing,
we could be forced to sell our assets at an indppertime when prices are depressed.

Risks Associated With Our Management and Relationsh With Our Manager
We are dependent on our Manager and its key persomhfor our success.

We have no separate facilities and are complegdignt on our Manager. We have no employees oltaar our officers. Our office
are also employees of our Manager, which has sigmif discretion as to the implementation of owestment and operating policies and
strategies. Accordingly, we depend on the dilagerskill and network of business contacts of /@@ management of our Manager. Our
Manager's employees evaluate, negotiate, struatiose and monitor our investments; therefore,soiecess will depend on their continued
service. The departure of any of the senior mansagfeour Manager could have a material adverseetin our performance. In addition, we
can offer no assurance that our Manager will reroaininvestment manager or that we will continubawe access to our Manager’s senior
managers. Our management agreement with our Manaf@ieextends until December 31, 2010. If the agment agreement is terminated
and no suitable replacement is found to manage@spay not be able to execute our business plasred¥er, our Manager is not obligated
to dedicate certain of its employees exclusivelygaor is it obligated to dedicate any specifittipa of its time to our business, and none of
our Manager’'s employees are contractually dedicetes under our management agreement with our §anarhe only employees of our
Manager who are primarily dedicated to our operetiare Christian J. Woschenko, our Head of Investsnand William B. Dyer, our Head
of Underwriting.
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There are conflicts of interest in our relationshipwith our Manager and Annaly, which could result indecisions that are not in the bes
interests of our stockholders.

We are subject to conflicts of interest arising aubur relationship with Annaly and our Managém Annaly executive officer is
our Manager’s sole director, two of Annaly’s empeg are our directors and several of Annaly’s eygae are officers of our Manager and
us. Specifically, each of our officers also seras an employee of our Manager or its affiliatés a result, our Manager and our officers
may have conflicts between their duties to us &ed tuties to, and interests in, Annaly or our lsigexr. There may also be conflicts in
allocating investments which are suitable bothuf@and Annaly as well as other FIDAC managed imeest vehicles, including CreXus
Investment Corp., or CreXus, a public specialtafioe company that acquires, manages, and finaticestly or through its subsidiaries,
commercial mortgage loans and other commercialestatte debt, CMBS, and other commercial realestdated assets. Annaly owns
approximately 4.5 million shares of common stoclkCoéXus. Annaly and CreXus may compete witlviik respect to certain investments
which we may want to acquire, and as a result we @ither not be presented with the opportunity @arénto compete with Annaly to acquire
these investments. Our Manager and our officexg choose to allocate favorable investments to AnoraCreXus instead of to us. The
ability of our Manager and its officers and empley¢o engage in other business activities may eethetime our Manager spends managing
us. Further, during turbulent conditions in thertgage industry, distress in the credit marketstber times when we will need focused
support and assistance from our Manager, othetientor which our Manager also acts as an investrmanager will likewise require grea
focus and attention, placing our Manager’s resauicdiigh demand. In such situations, we mayrective the necessary support and
assistance we require or would otherwise receivweifvere internally managed or if our Manager ditiact as a manager for other
entities. There is no assurance that the allocatolicy that addresses some of the conflictdirgldo our investments will be adequate to
address all of the conflicts that may arise. Iditgin, we have entered into a repurchase agreewiémAnnaly, our Manager’s parent, to
finance our RMBS. This financing arrangement makenus less likely to terminate our Manager. itldalso give rise to further conflicts
because Annaly may be a creditor of ours. As drmpcreditors, Annaly’s interests may divergenfirthe interests of our stockholders.

We pay our Manager substantial management feesdlega of the performance of our portfolio. Ouamager’s entitlement to
substantial nonperformance-based compensation médhte its incentive to devote its time and efforseeking investments that provide
attractive risk-adjusted returns for our portfolid@his in turn could hurt both our ability to madlistributions to our stockholders and the
market price of our common stock. Annaly owns agpnately 6.7% of our outstanding shares of comstogk which entitles them to
receive quarterly distributions. In evaluatingestments and other management strategies, thiseadyur Manager to place emphasis on
the maximization of revenues at the expense ofrathieria, such as preservation of capital. Itwents with higher yield potential are
generally riskier or more speculative. This cowdult in increased risk to the value of our invégtertfolio. Annaly may sell the shares in us
purchased concurrently with our initial public affeg at any time after the earlier of (i) Novemt&r;, 2010 or (ii) the termination of the
management agreement. Annaly may sell the shanes purchased immediately after our 2008 secoraféeying at any time after the earl
of (i) October 24, 2011 or (ii) the terminationtbe management agreement. Annaly may sell theshawus that it purchased immediately
after our April 15, 2009 secondary offering at ainye after the earlier of (i) April 15, 2012 or)(the termination of the management
agreement. Annaly may sell the shares in us thmatrithased immediately after our May 27, 2009 seagnoffering at any time after the
earlier of (i) May 27, 2012 or (i) the terminatiofithe management agreement. To the extent Argadlly some of its shares, its interests
be less aligned with our interests.
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The management agreement with our Manager was notagotiated on an arm’s-length basis and may not besdavorable to us as if it
had been negotiated with an unaffiliated third pary and may be costly and difficult to terminate.

Our president, chief financial officer, head ofé&stments, treasurer, controller, secretary and beadderwriting also serve as
employees of our Manager. In addition, certainwfdirectors are employees of our Manager aaffisates. Our management agreement
with our Manager was negotiated between relatetigsaand its terms, including fees payable, maybeas favorable to us as if it had been
negotiated with an unaffiliated third party. Teriion of the management agreement with our Managhout cause is difficult and costly.
Our independent directors will review our Managg@esformance and the management fees annuallyfodading the initial term, the
management agreement may be terminated annuallg thout cause upon the affirmative vote of astawo-thirds of our independent
directors, or by a vote of the holders of at leastajority of the outstanding shares of our comistogk (other than those shares held by
Annaly or its affiliates), based upon: (i) our Mge&'s unsatisfactory performance that is materidégrimental to us, or (ii) a determination
that the management fees payable to our Managewarair, subject to our Manager’s right to prevemmination based on unfair fees by
accepting a reduction of management fees agreleg &b least two-thirds of our independent direct@sr Manager must be provided 180-
days’ prior notice of any such termination. Additédly, upon such termination, the management ageaeprovides that we will pay our
Manager a termination fee equal to three timeatlegage annual base management fee calculatedtas arfid of the most recently comple
fiscal quarter. These provisions may adversdlycabur ability to terminate our Manager withoatuse. Our Manager is only contractually
committed to serve us until December 31, 2010 er&hfter, the management agreement is renewalaa annual basis, however, our
Manager may terminate the management agreemenalgnopon 180-days’ prior notice. If the managetr&greement is terminated and no
suitable replacement is found to manage us, wenoaje able to execute our business plan.

Our board of directors approved very broad investmat guidelines for our Manager and will not approveeach investment decision
made by our Manager.

Our Manager is authorized to follow very broad stveent guidelines. Our board of directors pedallly reviews our investment
guidelines and our investment portfolio, but doet and is not required to review all of our propd$nvestments or any type or category of
investment, except that an investment in a secstitictured or managed by our Manager must be apgroy a majority of our independent
directors. In addition, in conducting periodiwieavs, our board of directors relies primarily ofiormation provided to them by our
Manager. Furthermore, our Manager uses comptategiies, and transactions entered into by our naay be difficult or impossible to
unwind by the time they are reviewed by our bodrdi@ctors. Our Manager has great latitude withie broad investment guidelines in
determining the types of assets it may decide mpgy investments for us, which could result ineistinent returns that are substantially
below expectations or that result in losses, whiohild materially and adversely affect our busingssrations and results. Further, decisions
made and investments entered into by our Managgmmiabe in the best interests of our stockholders.

We may change our investment strategy, asset alld@an, or financing plans without stockholder consety which may result in riskier
investments.

We may change our investment strategy, asset &bbocar financing plans at any time without thesent of our stockholders,
which could result in our making investments that different from, and possibly riskier than, thegéstments described in this FormK0-A
change in our investment strategy or financing laay increase our exposure to interest rate diaditdeisk and real estate market
fluctuations. Furthermore, a change in our as$etaion could result in our making investmentsgset categories different from those
described in this Form 10-K. These changes coweérzely affect the market price of our common stae# our ability to make distributions
to our stockholders.

While investments in investment vehicles managedusyManager require approval by a majority of imgiependent directors, our
Manager has an incentive to invest our funds ie$tment vehicles managed by our Manager becaubke pbssibility of generating an
additional incremental management fee, which mduce other investment opportunities available tolasaddition, we cannot assure you
that investments in investment vehicles manageduoyManager will prove beneficial to us.

We may invest in CDOs managed by our Manager, inclling the purchase or sale of all or a portion of th equity of such CDOs, whict
may result in an immediate loss in book value andrgsent a conflict of interest between us and our Mzger.

We may invest in securities of CDOs managed byMamager. If all of the securities of a CDO manalggeur Manager were not
fully placed as a result of our not investing, Manager could experience losses due to changés velue of the underlying investments
accumulated in anticipation of the launch of suslestment vehicle. The accumulated investmentsGB@ transaction are generally sold at
the price at which they were purchased and noptéeailing market price at closing. Accordingly,tte extent we invest in a portion of the
equity securities for which there has been a dat@ion of value since the securities were purathase would experience an immediate loss
equal to the decrease in the market value of thenying investment. As a result, the interestswfManager in our investing in such a CDO
may conflict with our interests and that of ourcktaolders.
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Our investment focus is different from those of otkr entities that are or have been managed by our Meager.

Our investment focus is different from those ofestantities that are or have been managed by onalye&. In particular, entities
managed by our Manager have not purchased wholgag® loans or structured whole loan securitizatitm addition, our Manager has
limited experience in managing CDOs and investm@DOs, non-Agency RMBS, CMBS and other ABS whieghmay pursue as part of our
investment strategy. Accordingly, our Manager’'sdrisal returns are not indicative of its performarior our investment strategy and we can
offer no assurance that our Manager will replicdhehistorical performance of the Manager’s investtrprofessionals in their previous
endeavors. Our investment returns could be sulistigibwer than the returns achieved by our Mamag@vestment professionals’ previous
endeavors.

We compete with investment vehicles of our Managdor access to our Manager’s resources and investmeopportunities.

Our Manager provides investment and financial agltaca number of investment vehicles, includingX@i® and some of our
Manager’s personnel are also employees of Annalyimthat capacity are involved in Annaly’s investmh process. Accordingly, we will
compete with our Manager’s other investment vekialed with Annaly for our Manager’s resources. @anager may sponsor and manage
other investment vehicles with an investment fabas overlaps with ours, which could result in ospeting for access to the benefits that
we expect our relationship with our Manager wilbyide to us.

Risks Related To Our Business

We have a limited operating history and may not cotinue to operate successfully or generate sufficienevenue to make or sustain
distributions to our stockholders.

We were organized in June 2007, commenced opesatiddovember 2007, and have a limited operatistphy. We cannot assure
you that we will be able to operate our businessassfully or implement our operating policies atrdtegies described in this Forrr-
K. The results of our operations depend on maatofs, including the availability of opportunitiés the acquisition of assets, the valuation
of our assets, the level and volatility of intereges, readily accessible short and léexgn financing and the terms of the financing, dboids
in the financial markets and economic conditions.

Failure to procure adequate capital and funding orfavorable terms, or at all, would adversely affecour results and may, in turn,
negatively affect the market price of shares of oucommon stock and our ability to distribute dividerds to our stockholders.

The capital and credit markets have been experigreeittreme volatility and disruption for more theagear. The volatility and
disruption have reached unprecedented levels.mesmses, the markets have exerted downward peessigtock prices and credit capacity
for certain lenders. We depend upon the avaitghili adequate funding and capital for our operaioWe intend to finance our assets over
the long-term through a variety of means, includiegurchase agreements, credit facilities, seeatitins, commercial paper and CDOs. Our
access to capital depends upon a number of faat@rswhich we have little or no control, including:

 general market conditions;

« the market’s perception of our growth potential;

« our current and potential future earnings and cisthibutions;
« the market price of the shares of our capital staok

« the market’s view of the quality of our assets.
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The current situation in the mortgage sector arctthrrent weakness in the broader credit marketlsl @aversely affect one or more
of our potential lenders and could cause one oermbour lenders or potential lenders to be unmgllor unable to provide us with financing.
In general, this could potentially increase ouafining costs and reduce our liquidity or requiréousell assets at an inopportune time or

We have and expect to use a number of sourcesandé our investments, including repurchase agnesm&arehouse facilities,
securitizations, asset-backed commercial papeteand CDOs. Current market conditions have affethedcost and availability of financing
from each of these sources — and their individuatiglers —to different degrees; some sources generally aagailable, some are availal
but at a high cost, and some are largely unaffegtedexample, in the repurchase agreement mdr@apwers have been affected differently
depending on the type of security they are finaghcion-Agency RMBS have been harder to financeedding on the type of assets
collateralizing the RMBS. The amount, term and rimargquirements associated with these types ohfimys have been negatively impac

Currently, warehouse facilities to finance whalan prime residential mortgages are generally alviglfrom major banks, but at
significantly higher cost and greater margin reguients than previously offered. Many major banks tfifer warehouse facilities have also
reduced the amount of capital available to newagr$rand consequently the size of those facilitfeesed now are smaller than those
previously available.

It is currently a challenging market to term finarwhole loans through securitization or bonds iddaea CDO structure. The higlr
rated senior bonds in these securitizations and Gf@tures currently have liquidity, but at mucldev spreads than issues priced earlier
year. The junior subordinate tranches of thesettres currently have few buyers and current mar&etlitions have forced issuers to ref
these lower rated bonds rather than sell them.

Certain issuers of ABCP, have been unable to flacmll) their securities, which has resultedsame instances, in forced sales of
MBS, and other securities which has further negétiimpacted the market value of these assetsseTtmarket conditions are fluid and likely
to change over time.

As a result, the execution of our investment sgnateay be dictated by the cost and availabilitfimdéncing from these different
sources.

In addition, the impairment of other financial istions could negatively affect us. If one or monajor market participants fails or
otherwise experience a major liquidity crisis, aswhe case for Bear Stearns & Co. in March 2008 La&hman Brothers Holdings Inc. in
September 2008, it could adversely affect the mabikty of all fixed income securities and thisubt negatively impact the value of the
securities we acquire, thus reducing our net badle:

Furthermore, if any of our potential lenders or afipur lenders are unwilling or unable to provigewith financing, we could be
forced to sell our securities or residential moggéoans at an inopportune time when prices areedepd.

Our business, results of operations and financiatlition may be materially adversely affected bgradptions in the financial
markets. We cannot assure you, under such extrenditions, that these markets will remain an é@ffit source of long-term financing for
our assets. If our strategy is not viable, we halle to find alternative forms of financing for@ssets, which may not be available. Further,
as a REIT, we are required to distribute annudllgast 90% of our REIT taxable income, determiwétiout regard to the deduction for
dividends paid and excluding net capital gain,uosiockholders and are therefore not able torretiginificant amounts of our earnings for
new investments. We cannot assure you that argyficient, funding or capital will be available tis in the future on terms that are
acceptable to us. If we cannot obtain sufficiemtdfing on acceptable terms, there may be a negatpa&ct on the market price of our
common stock and our ability to make distributitm®ur stockholders. Moreover, our ability to grawlt be dependent on our ability to
procure additional funding. To the extent we aveable to raise additional funds through the ieseaof additional equity or borrowings, our
growth will be constrained.

We operate in a highly competitive market for invement opportunities and more established competitas may be able to compete
more effectively for investment opportunities tharwe can.

A number of entities compete with us to make theegyof investments that we plan to make. We compitheother REITS, public
and private funds, commercial and investment bamnkiscommercial finance companies. Many of our cditgre are substantially larger and
have considerably greater financial, technical muagketing resources than we do. Several other RE&Ve recently raised, or are expected to
raise, significant amounts of capital, and may hiavestment objectives that overlap with ours, higay create competition for investment
opportunities. Some competitors may have a lowst ebfunds and access to funding sources that@travailable to us. In addition, some of
our competitors may have higher risk tolerancediféerent risk assessments, which could allow thermonsider a wider variety of
investments and establish more favorable relatipsghan us. We cannot assure you that the conyeepitessures we face will not have a
material adverse effect on our business, finarmatition and results of operations. Also, as altes this competition, we may not be able
to take advantage of attractive investment oppdragnfrom time to time, and we can offer no aseaeathat we will be able to identify and
make investments that are consistent with our imvest objectives.

18




Loss of our 1940 Act exemption would adversely affé us and negatively affect the market price of shas of our common stock and
our ability to distribute dividends and could resutk in the termination of the management agreement wh our Manager.

We intend to conduct our operations so that neitfeenor any of our subsidiaries are required téstegas an investment company
under the 1940 Act. Because we are a holding coynibet will conduct its businesses primarily througholly-owned subsidiaries, the
securities issued by these subsidiaries that arepeed from the definition of “investment companyider Section 3(c)(1) or Section 3(c)(7)
of the 1940 Act, together with any other investrmeaturities we may own, may not have a combinegevial excess of 40% of the value of
our adjusted total assets on an unconsolidated.bBsis requirement limits the types of businesseshich we may engage through our
subsidiaries. In addition, the assets we and dusidiaries may acquire are limited by the provisiofithe 1940 Act, the rules and regulations
promulgated under the 1940 Act and SEC staff imédgbive guidance, which may adversely affect arfggmance.

If the value of securities issued by our subsid®that are excepted from the definition of “inmesht company” by Section 3(c)(1)
or 3(c)(7) of the 1940 Act, together with any otirerestment securities we own, exceeds 40% of djusted total assets on an unconsolid
basis, or if one or more of such subsidiariest@aihaintain an exception or exemption from the 184€ we could, among other things, be
required either (a) to substantially change themeaim which we conduct our operations to avoicheequired to register as an investment
company or (b) to register as an investment compaagr the 1940 Act, either of which could haveadwerse effect on us and the market
price of our securities. If we were required toiségy as an investment company under the 1940wetyould become subject to substantial
regulation with respect to our capital structurelfiding our ability to use leverage), managemeperations, transactions with affiliated
persons (as defined in the 1940 Act), portfolio position, including restrictions with respect teetisification and industry concentration,
and other matters.

We expect Chimera Asset Holding LLC and certairsgdibries that we may form in the future to relyooghe exemption from
registration as an investment company under th® 2&4 pursuant to Section 3(c)(5)(C) of the 194Q,Ahich is available for entities
“primarily engaged in the business of purchasingtberwise acquiring mortgages and other liensrzhiaterests in real estate.” This
exemption generally requires that at least 55%e$¢ subsidiaries’ assets must be comprised ofyjnglreal estate assets and at least 80%
of each of their portfolios must be comprised odlifying real estate assets and real estate-retsets under the 1940 Act. We expect each
of our subsidiaries relying on Section 3(c)(5)(€)ely on guidance published by the SEC staff oomnanalyses of guidance published with
respect to other types of assets to determine wasshts are qualifying real estate assets anéstb-related assets. If the SEC staff
publishes new or different guidance with respet¢h&se matters, we may be required to adjust categty accordingly. In addition, we may
be limited in our ability to make certain investrteeand these limitations could result in the subsydholding assets we might wish to sell or
selling assets we might wish to hold.

Certain of our subsidiaries may rely on the exeamppirovided by Section 3(c)(6) which excludes fritn@ definition of “investment
company” any company primarily engaged, directlyrwough majority-owned subsidiaries, in a businassong others, described in Section
3(c)(5)(C) of the 1940 Act (from which not lessnhz6% of such company's gross income during itdfissal year was derived) together w
an additional business or additional businesseay ditlan investing, reinvesting, owning, holdingrading in securities. The SEC staff has
issued little interpretive guidance with respecBtzxtion 3(c)(6) and any guidance published bysthff could require us to adjust our strategy
accordingly.
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We expect certain of our subsidiaries we may farrthe future, including subsidiaries we may formtfee purpose of borrowing
under TALF, to rely on Section 3(c)(7) for theirdlBAct exemption and, therefore our interest irhe@cthese subsidiaries would constitute
an “investment security” for purposes of determgnmivhether we pass the 40% test.

We may in the future, however, organize one or nsoiesidiaries, including subsidiaries we may foomthe purpose of borrowing
under TALF, that seek to rely on the 1940 Act exaompprovided to certain structured financing védédoy Rule 3a-7. If we organize
subsidiaries that rely on Rule 3a-7 for an exenmpfiiom the 1940 Act, these subsidiaries will alseahto comply with the restrictions
described in “Business—Operating and RegulatonycBire—1940 Act Exemption.” In general, Rule 3ax@rapts from the 1940 Act issuers
that limit their activities as follows:

. the issuer issues securities the paywfawhich depends primarily on the cash flow fréetigible assets” that by their terms
convert into cash within a finite time period;

. the securities sold are fixed incomeusities rated investment grade by at least oriegagency (fixed income securities
which are unrated or rated below investment gradg Ioe sold to institutional accredited investord any securities may be sold wualified
institutional buyers” and to persons involved ie tirganization or operation of the issuer);

. the issuer acquires and disposes gibédi assets (1) only in accordance with the agesgspursuant to which the securities
are issued, (2) so that the acquisition or dismosidoes not result in a downgrading of the issufixed income securities and (3) the eligible
assets are not acquired or disposed of for thegoyipurpose of recognizing gains or decreasingksssulting from market value changes;
and

. unless the issuer is issuing only commercial paperissuer appoints an independent trustee, tekssnable steps to tran:
to the trustee an ownership or perfected secuntgrést in the eligible assets, and meets ratieg@grequirements for commingling of cash
flows.

Any subsidiary also would need to be structuredaimply with any guidance that may be issued byttivésion of Investment
Management of the SEC on how the subsidiary mustf@@nized to comply with the restrictions contdime Rule 3a-7. Compliance with
Rule 3a-7 may require that the indenture goverttiegsubsidiary include additional limitations owe tiypes of assets the subsidiary may sell
or acquire out of the proceeds of assets that madwe refinanced or otherwise sold, on the pesfdine during which such transactions may
occur, and on the amount of transactions that neayro In light of the requirements of Rule Baeur ability to manage assets held in a sp
purpose subsidiary that complies with Rule 3a-T lvéllimited and we may not be able to purchassetirassets owned by that subsidiary
when we would otherwise desire to do so, whichddeéd to losses. Initially, we will limit the agggate value of our interests in our
subsidiaries that may in the future seek to relfRoie 3a-7 to 20% or less of our total assets ourmonsolidated basis, as we continue to
discuss with the SEC staff the use of subsididhiasrely on Rule 3a-7 to finance our operations.

The determination of whether an entity is a majeoitvned subsidiary of our company is made by ue I$40 Act defines a
majority-owned subsidiary of a person as a comgsrnwhich 50% or more of the outstanding voting séms are owned by such person, or
by another company which is a majority-owned suhbsjydof such person. The 1940 Act further defineing securities as any security
presently entitling the owner or holder thereo¥te for the election of directors of a company. iéat companies in which we own at lee
majority of the outstanding voting securities agarity-owned subsidiaries for purposes of the 4@%.tWe have not requested the SEC to
approve our treatment of any company as a majoxityed subsidiary and the SEC has not done sce IBEC were to disagree with our
treatment of one or more companies as majantyed subsidiaries, we would need to adjust oatexly and our assets in order to contint
pass the 40% test. Any such adjustment in oureglyatould have a material adverse effect on us.

There can be no assurance that the laws and remdaoverning the 1940 Act status of REITs, inglgdhe Division of Investment
Management of the SEC providing more specific &fiedént guidance regarding these exemptions, willahange in a manner that adversely
affects our operations. If we or our subsidiarebtb maintain an exception or exemption from 1840 Act, we could, among other things
required either to (a) change the manner in whiefcenduct our operations to avoid being requireggister as an investment company, (b)
effect sales of our assets in a manner that, atiate when, we would not otherwise choose to dais(c) register as an investment compi
any of which could negatively affect the value af aommon stock, the sustainability of our businasslel, and our ability to make
distributions which could have an adverse effecbonbusiness and the market price for our sharesromon stock.
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Rapid changes in the values of our RMBS, residentianortgage loans, and other real estate-related imstments may make it more
difficult for us to maintain our qualification as a REIT or our exemption from the 1940 Act.

If the market value or income potential of our RMB&sidential mortgage loans, and other real estdd¢ed investments declines as
a result of increased interest rates, prepaymésd @ other factors, we may need to increaseaairmastate investments and income or
liquidate our non-qualifying assets to maintain B&T qualification or our exemption from the 1946t. If the decline in real estate asset
values or income occurs quickly, this may be egdyailifficult to accomplish. This difficulty mayéexacerbated by the illiquid nature of
non-real estate assets we may own. We may havake mvestment decisions that we otherwise woutdwake absent the REIT and 1940
Act considerations.

We leverage our investments, which may adverselyfatt our return on our investments and may reduceash available for
distribution to our stockholders.

We leverage our investments through borrowingsegaly through the use of repurchase agreementghease facilities, credit
facilities, securitizations, commercial paper a?d3. We are not required to maintain any speciistdo-equity ratio. The amount of
leverage we use varies depending on our abiligbtain credit facilities, the lenders’ and ratirgeacies’ estimates of the stability of the
investments’ cash flow, and our assessment offipeoariate amount of leverage for the particulaetswe are funding. Under some credit
facilities, we expect to be required to maintaimimium average cash balances in connection wittolangs. Our return on our investments
and cash available for distribution to our stockieot may be reduced to the extent that changeatketnconditions prevent us from
leveraging our investments, require us to decreaseate of leverage, increase the amount of @béive post, or increase the cost of our
financing relative to the income that can be detifrem the assets acquired. Our debt service patgweah reduce cash flow available for
distributions to stockholders, which could adveysdfect the price of our common stock. We maylmoable to meet our debt service
obligations, and, to the extent that we cannotrislethe loss of some or all of our assets to flm®ae or sale to satisfy the obligations. We
leverage certain of our assets through repurchgreements. A decrease in the value of these assgtéead to margin calls which we will
have to satisfy. We may not have the funds aval&bbkatisfy any such margin calls and we may beetbto sell assets at significantly
depressed prices due to market conditions or oikenWhe satisfaction of such margin calls may cedrash flow available for distribution to
our stockholders. Any reduction in distributionsotar stockholders or sales of assets at inoppotiores or prices may cause the value of our
common stock to decline, in some cases, precigitous

We depend on warehouse and repurchase facilitiegiedlit facilities and commercial paper to execute aubusiness plan, and our
inability to access funding could have a material derse effect on our results of operations, finanal condition and business.

Our ability to fund our investments depends torgdaextent upon our ability to secure warehouggynehase, credit, and commerc
paper financing on acceptable terms. We can prawidassurance that we will be successful in estaibly sufficient warehouse, repurchase,
and credit facilities and issuing commercial papeaddition, because warehouse, repurchase, audit €ucilities and commercial paper are
shortterm commitments of capital, the lenders may redgommarket conditions, which may favor an alterreainvestment strategy for the
making it more difficult for us to secure continuatancing. During certain periods of the creditley such as recently, lenders may curtail
their willingness to provide financing. If we aretrable to renew our then existing warehouse, @yasge, and credit facilities and issue
commercial paper or arrange for new financing emgeacceptable to us, or if we default on our camsor are otherwise unable to access
funds under any of these facilities, we will hawectirtail our asset acquisition activities.
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It is possible that the lenders that provide uhfhancing could experience changes in theiritgttib advance funds to us,
independent of our performance or the performafcgioinvestments, including our mortgage loansadition, if the regulatory capital
requirements imposed on our lenders change, thgybmaequired to significantly increase the coshefwarehouse facilities that they
provide to us. Our lenders also may revise thajitelity requirements for the types of residentiabrtgage loans they are willing to financt
the terms of such financings, based on, among ¢dictors, the regulatory environment and their ngengent of perceived risk, particularly
with respect to assignee liability. Financing ofiégtbased lending, for example, may become mdfeedit in the future. Moreover, the
amount of financing we will receive under our warebe and repurchase facilities will be directhated to the lendersaluation of the asse
that secure the outstanding borrowings. Typicallyemouse, repurchase, and credit facilities gfatéspective lender the absolute right to
reevaluate the market value of the assets thatesecitstanding borrowings at any time. If a lendiegtermines in its sole discretion that the
value of the assets has decreased, it has thetoighitiate a margin call. A margin call would técg us to transfer additional assets to such
lender without any advance of funds from the leridesuch transfer or to repay a portion of thestartding borrowings. Any such margin
could have a material adverse effect on our restiligperations, financial condition, business, iy and ability to make distributions to our
stockholders, and could cause the value of our comstock to decline. We may be forced to sell assesignificantly depressed prices to
meet such margin calls and to maintain adequatéity, which could cause us to incur losses. Maezpto the extent we are forced to sell
assets at such time, given market conditions, we lmedorced to sell assets at the same time assoffiging similar pressures to sell similar
assets, which could greatly exacerbate a difficidtket environment and which could result in owuiming significantly greater losses on 1
sale of such assets. In an extreme case of mankess] a market may not even be present for castainr assets at any price.

The current dislocation and weakness in the brnoaaetgage markets could adversely affect one aembour potential lenders a
could cause one or more of our potential lendelstanwilling or unable to provide us with finanginThis could potentially increase our
financing costs and reduce our liquidity. If orrentore major market participants fails or otherwegperiences a major liquidity crisis, as \
the case for Bear Stearns & Co. in March 2008 agtthtan Brothers Holdings Inc. in September 200&uld negatively impact the
marketability of all fixed income securities, inding Agency and non-Agency RMBS, residential maybans and real estate related
securities, and this could negatively impact theeaf the securities we acquire, thus reducingnaimhook value. Furthermore, if any of our
potential lenders or any of our lenders, includdmmaly, are unwilling or unable to provide us witilhancing, we could be forced to sell our
assets at an inopportune time when prices are siegute

Beginning in mid-February 2008, credit markets eipeed a dramatic and sudden adverse changeseleeity of the limitation on
liquidity was largely unanticipated by the market€redit once again froze, and in the mortgageketavaluations of nomgency RMBS ani
whole mortgage loans came under severe pressiis.credit crisis began in early February 2008, whdeavily leveraged investor
announced that it had to de-lever and liquidatertfgio of approximately $30 billion of non-Agen&®MBS. Prices of these types of
securities dropped dramatically, and lenders stdawering the prices on non-Agency RMBS that theid as collateral to secure the loans
they had extended. The subsequent failure in M20€18 of Bear Stearns & Co. worsened the crisis.th& year progressed, deterioration in
the fair value of our assets continued, we recearetimet margin calls under our repurchase agreismehich resulted in our obtaining
additional funding from third parties, includingpm Annaly, an affiliate, and taking other stepserease our liquidity.

The challenges of 2008 and 2009 have continuethasding difficulties have severely pressured litityiand asset values. In
September 2008, Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc.aninvestment bank, experienced a major liquidiigis and failed. Securities trading
remains limited and mortgage securities financirsgkats remain challenging as the industry continaeeport negative news. This
dislocation in the non-Agency mortgage sector hadenit difficult for us to obtain short-term finang on favorable terms. As a result, we
have completed loan securitizations in order t@imbiong-term financing and terminated our un-e#ii whole loan repurchase agreements in
order to avoid paying non-usage fees under thoseawents. In addition, we have continued to saeellifig from Annaly. Under these
circumstances, we expect to take actions intenal@datect our liquidity, which may include reducibgrrowings and disposing of assets as
well as raising capital.

During this period of market dislocation, fiscadamonetary policymakers have established new ligufdcilities for primary
dealers and commercial banks, reduced short-teereist rates, and passed legislation that is ieidiol address the challenges of mortgage
borrowers and lenders. It is not possible foraugredict how these actions will impact our busineAlthough these aggressive steps are
intended to protect and support the US housingnamidgage market, we continue to operate under diffigult market conditions. As a
result, there can be no assurance that the EESA,ARP, the TALF, PPIP or other policy initiativedll have a beneficial impact on the
financial markets, including current extreme lewaflsolatility. We cannot predict whether or whauch actions may occur or what impact, if
any, such actions could have on our business tsesubperations and financial condition.
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Certain financing facilities may contain covenantghat restrict our operations and may inhibit our ability to grow our business and
increase revenues.

Certain financing facilities we may enter into mantain extensive restrictions, covenants, andesggntations and warranties that,
among other things, require us to satisfy specfiig@hcial, asset quality, loan eligibility and foperformance tests. If we fail to meet or
satisfy any of these covenants or representatiodsvarranties, we would be in default under thege@ments and our lenders could elect to
declare all amounts outstanding under the agreenmerte immediately due and payable, enforce tksfective interests against collateral
pledged under such agreements and restrict ottyabilmake additional borrowings. Certain finargimgreements may contain cross-default
provisions, so that if a default occurs under ang agreement, the lenders under our other agresreunid also declare a default. The
covenants and restrictions we expect in our fimagéacilities may restrict our ability to, amondet things:

« incur or guarantee additional debt;

« make certain investments or acquisitions;

« make distributions on or repurchase or redeem alagiick;
« engage in mergers or consolidations;

« finance mortgage loans with certain attributes;

« reduce liquidity below certain levels;

« grantliens;

« incur operating losses for more than a specifigtbge

« enter into transactions with affiliates; and

« hold mortgage loans for longer than establisheeé f@riods.

These restrictions may interfere with our abiliyobtain financing, including the financing neededjualify as a REIT, or to engage
in other business activities, which may signifidgafiarm our business, financial condition, liquyd&nd results of operations. A default and
resulting repayment acceleration could significantiduce our liquidity, which could require us &l ®ur assets to repay amounts due and
outstanding. This could also significantly harm business, financial condition, results of operagicand our ability to make distributions,
which could cause the value of our common stodketdine. A default will also significantly limit adinancing alternatives such that we will
be unable to pursue our leverage strategy, whialdazurtail our investment returns.

The repurchase agreements, warehouse facilities ardedit facilities and commercial paper that we usé¢o finance our investments ma
require us to provide additional collateral and mayrestrict us from leveraging our assets as fully adesired.

We will use repurchase agreements, warehousetiiagjlcredit facilities and commercial paper tafioce our investments. We
currently have uncommitted repurchase agreemenitsi8i counterparties, including Annaly, for finamgiour RMBS. Our repurchase
agreements are uncommitted and the counterpartyrefiage to advance funds under the agreements tt thee market value of the loans or
securities pledged or sold by us to a funding sedexcline in value, we may be required by the legdistitution to provide additional
collateral or pay down a portion of the funds adah but we may not have the funds available teadd?osting additional collateral will
reduce our liquidity and limit our ability to levege our assets, which could adversely affect osiness. In the event we do not have
sufficient liquidity to meet such requirements,demy institutions can accelerate repayment of ndebtedness, increase our borrowing rates,
liquidate our collateral or terminate our abilityiorrow. Such a situation would likely result imagid deterioration of our financial condition
and possibly necessitate a filing for protectiodemthe U.S. Bankruptcy Code. Further, financiatitotions may require us to maintain a
certain amount of cash that is not invested oet@side non-levered assets sufficient to mairgapecified liquidity position which would
allow us to satisfy our collateral obligations. &sesult, we may not be able to leverage our aassdigdly as we would choose which could
reduce our return on equity. If we are unable tetigese collateral obligations, then, as descritiexe, our financial condition could
deteriorate rapidly.
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If the counterparty to our repurchase transactionsdefaults on its obligation to resell the underlyingsecurity back to us at the end of
the transaction term, or if the value of the undenying security has declined as of the end of thatite or if we default on our obligations
under the repurchase agreement, we will lose mon@®n our repurchase transactions.

When we engage in a repurchase transaction, wealsngell securities to the transaction countepand receive cash from the
counterparty. The counterparty is obligated toltélse securities back to us at the end of the tefe transaction, which is typically 30-90
days. Because the cash we receive from the coamtgnghen we initially sell the securities to thmuaterparty is less than the value of those
securities (this difference is referred to as thedut), if the counterparty defaults on its obtiga to resell the securities back to us we would
incur a loss on the transaction equal to the amotfiite haircut (assuming there was no changedwvétue of the securities). We would also
lose money on a repurchase transaction if the \@ltlee underlying securities has declined as efehd of the transaction term, as we would
have to repurchase the securities for their init#lie but would receive securities worth less tiian amount. Any losses we incur on our
repurchase transactions could adversely affecearnings, and thus our cash available for distiginuio our stockholders. If we default on
one of our obligations under a repurchase trarmadiie counterparty can terminate the transaetimhcease entering into any other
repurchase transactions with us. In that case, otddilikely need to establish a replacement repasetfacility with another repurchase de
in order to continue to leverage our portfolio aadry out our investment strategy. There is norassie we would be able to establish a
suitable replacement facility.

Our rights under our repurchase agreements are sulgict to the effects of the bankruptcy laws in the ent of the bankruptcy or
insolvency of us or our lenders under the repurchasagreements.

In the event of our insolvency or bankruptcy, dartepurchase agreements may qualify for spea@akitnent under the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code, the effect of which, among oth@rds, would be to allow the lender under the ajailie repurchase agreement to avoic
automatic stay provisions of the U.S. Bankruptcyl€and to foreclose on the collateral agreemefiioattdelay. In the event of the
insolvency or bankruptcy of a lender during thert@f a repurchase agreement, the lender may betpegmunder applicable insolvency
laws, to repudiate the contract, and our claimreggahe lender for damages may be treated simpdyamsecured creditor. In addition, if the
lender is a broker or dealer subject to the Seearihvestor Protection Act of 1970, or an insullegository institution subject to the Federal
Deposit Insurance Act, our ability to exercise dghts to recover our securities under a repurchgseement or to be compensated for any
damages resulting from the lender’s insolvency tmajurther limited by those statutes. These claimsld be subject to significant delay
and, if and when received, may be substantially fkan the damages we actually incur.

An increase in our borrowing costs relative to thenterest we receive on our assets may adversely et our profitability, and thus our
cash available for distribution to our stockholders

As our repurchase agreements and other short-termavblings mature, we will be required either toegribhto new borrowings or to
sell certain of our investments. An increase inrsterm interest rates at the time that we seater into new borrowings would reduce the
spread between our returns on our assets and shefaour borrowings. This would adversely affegt ceturns on our assets that are subject
to prepayment risk, including our mortgage-backezlsties, which might reduce earnings and, in,taash available for distribution to our
stockholders.

If we issue senior securities we will be exposed #olditional risks.

If we decide to issue senior securities in theritit is likely that they will be governed by ardenture or other instrument
containing covenants restricting our operatingifidity. Additionally, any convertible or exchandda securities that we issue in the future
may have rights, preferences and privileges mareréble than those of our common stock and maytrsdilution to owners of our
common stock. We and, indirectly, our stockholdeifi, bear the cost of issuing and servicing suebtusities.

Our securitizations will expose us to additional rgks.

We have and expect to continue to securitize ceatour portfolio investments to generate cashdading new investments. We
expect to structure these transactions eithemasding transactions or as sales for GAAP. In each transaction, we convey a pool of
assets to a special purpose vehicle, the issuitity,eand the issuing entity issues one or moresga of non-recourse notes pursuant to the
terms of an indenture. The notes are secured bgadbkof assets. In exchange for the transfer sétasto the issuing entity, we receive the
cash proceeds of the sale of non-recourse notea &68% interest in the equity of the issuing gniihe securitization of our portfolio
investments might magnify our exposure to lossethose portfolio investments because any equisrést we retain in the issuing entity
would be subordinate to the notes issued to investod we would, therefore, absorb all of the lssssstained with respect to a securitized
pool of assets before the owners of the notes @ any losses. Moreover, we cannot be assuatavehwill be able to access the
securitization market, or be able to do so at falta rates. The inability to securitize our portfaould hurt our performance and our ability
to grow our business.

24




The use of CDO financings with over-collateralizatin requirements may have a negative impact on ourash flow.

We expect that the terms of CDOs we may sponséigeiierally provide that the principal amount adets must exceed the
principal balance of the related bonds by a cedaiount, commonly referred to as “over-collateration.” We anticipate that the CDO
terms will provide that, if certain delinquencies@sses exceed the specified levels based omtigsis by the rating agencies (or any
financial guaranty insurer) of the characteristitthe assets collateralizing the bonds, the regluivel of over-collateralization may be
increased or may be prevented from decreasing aklvatherwise be permitted if losses or delinquesdid not exceed those levels. Other
tests (based on delinquency levels or other caiteniay restrict our ability to receive net incomanf assets collateralizing the obligations.
cannot assure you that the performance tests evgldbisfied. In advance of completing negotiatiaith the rating agencies or other key
transaction parties on our future CDO financings,c&nnot assure you of the actual terms of the @Blldquency tests, oveollateralizatior
terms, cash flow release mechanisms or other gigniffactors regarding the calculation of net meato us. Given recent volatility in the
CDO market, rating agencies may depart from historactices for CDO financings, making them morstlgdor us. Failure to obtain
favorable terms with regard to these matters magradly and adversely affect the availability aftnincome to us. If our assets fail to
perform as anticipated, our over-collateralizatiwrother credit enhancement expense associatedbwitE DO financings will increase.

Hedging against interest rate exposure may adverseaffect our earnings, which could reduce our cashvailable for distribution to our
stockholders.

Subject to maintaining our qualification as a RENE, pursue various hedging strategies to seelkdiaceeour exposure to losses fr
adverse changes in interest rates. Our hedgingtsictaries in scope based on the level and vithatiff interest rates, the type of assets held
and other changing market conditions. Interesthatiging may fail to protect or could adverseleeffus because, among other things:

« interest rate hedging can be expensive, partiguthrting periods of rising and volatile interesierg

«» available interest rate hedges may not correspordtly with the interest rate risk for which prot®n is sought;

« the duration of the hedge may not match the duraifdahe related liability;

« the amount of income that a REIT may earn from hegddransactions (other than through TRSs) to offisterest rate losses
limited by federal tax provisions governing REI

« the credit quality of the party owing money on tlerlge may be downgraded to such an extent thiapiirs our ability to sell «
assign our side of the hedging transaction;

« the party owing money in the hedging transactioy aefault on its obligation to pay.

Our hedging transactions, which are intended td limsses, may actually limit gains and increaseexgposure to losses. As a result,
our hedging activity may adversely affect our eagsj which could reduce our cash available foritistion to our stockholders. In addition,
hedging instruments involve risk since they oftesrzot traded on regulated exchanges, guarantead bychange or its clearing house, or
regulated by any U.S. or foreign governmental atiiies. Consequently, there are no requirements mispect to record keeping, financial
responsibility or segregation of customer funds positions. Furthermore, the enforceability of @gnents underlying derivative transactions
may depend on compliance with applicable statuamy commodity and other regulatory requirements dadending on the identity of the
counterparty, applicable international requiremente business failure of a hedging counterparth whom we enter into a hedging
transaction will most likely result in its defauefault by a party with whom we enter into a heggiransaction may result in the loss of
unrealized profits and force us to cover our commaitts, if any, at the then current market pricéh@lgh generally we will seek to reserve
the right to terminate our hedging positions, itymat always be possible to dispose of or closeache#dging position without the consent of
the hedging counterparty, and we may not be abéater into an offsetting contract in order to aqower risk. We cannot assure you that a
liquid secondary market will exist for hedging inghents purchased or sold, and we may be requirethintain a position until exercise or
expiration, which could result in losses.
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Our hedging strategies may not be successful in mgating the risks associated with interest rates.

Subject to complying with REIT tax requirements, iega’e employed and intend to continue to emplogriegies that limit, or
hedge, the adverse effects of rising interest maesur short-term repurchase agreements. In gemmenr hedging strategy depends on our
view of our entire portfolio, consisting of assdiabilities and derivative instruments, in lightmrevailing market conditions. We could
misjudge the condition of our investment portfadiothe market.

Our hedging activity will vary in scope based oa tbvel and volatility of interest rates and prpatirepayments, the type of
securities held and other changing market conditi@ur actual hedging decisions will be determiimeeght of the facts and circumstances
existing at the time and may differ from our cuthgmnticipated hedging strategy. These techniauayg include entering into interest rate
caps, collars, floors, forward contracts, futureswap agreements. We may conduct certain hedgingdctions through a TRS, which will
be subject to federal, state and, if applicableallincome tax.

There are no perfect hedging strategies, and sttesige hedging may fail to protect us from loskervatively, we may fail to
properly assess a risk to our investment portfotimay fail to recognize a risk entirely, leavingexposed to losses without the benefit of
offsetting hedging activities. The derivative firéal instruments we select may not have the effeotducing our interest rate risk. The
nature and timing of hedging transactions may arflte the effectiveness of these strategies. Pdesdigned strategies or improperly exec
transactions could actually increase our risk asdds. In addition, hedging activities could resulbsses if the event against which we he
does not occur. For example, interest rate hedgidd fail to protect us or adversely affect usaduese, among other things:

« available interest rate hedging may not correspbrettly with the interest rate risk for which pection is sought;

« the duration of the hedge may not match the duraifdahe related liability;

« as explained in further detail in the risk factomiediately below, the party owing money in the hiegddransaction may default
its obligation to pay

« the credit quality of the party owing money on tielge may be downgraded to such an extent thatpiirs our ability to sell «
assign our side of the hedging transaction;

« the value of derivatives used for hedging may lJasted from time to time in accordance with accgtules to reflect changes
fair value. Downward adjustments, “mark-to-market losse” would reduce our stockhold’ equity.

Whether the derivatives we acquire achieve hedgewsding treatment or not, hedging generally inesleosts and risks. Our
hedging strategies may adversely affect us bedaeging activities involve costs that we will inaegardless of the effectiveness of the
hedging activity. Those costs may be higher inqusriof market volatility, both because the courddies to our derivative agreements may
demand a higher payment for taking risks, and bexaepeated adjustments of our hedges during [geofoidterest rate changes also may
increase costs. Especially if our hedging strasegie not effective, we could incur significant gied+elated costs without any corresponc
economic benefits.

We have elected not to qualify for hedge accountingeatment.
We record derivative and hedge transactions inrdecwe with GAAP. We have elected not to qualifiyfedge accounting

treatment. As a result, our operating results mdfer because losses on the derivatives that vex Brio may not be offset by a change in
fair value of the related hedged transaction.
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Declines in the fair values of our investments magdversely affect periodic reported results and creitl availability, which may reduce
earnings and, in turn, cash available for distributon to our stockholders.

A substantial portion of our assets are classiioecccounting purposes as “available-for-sale” eadied at fair value. Changes in
the fair values of those assets will be directlgrgied or credited to OCI. In addition, a declim@alues will reduce the book value of our
assets. A decline in the fair value of our assety atversely affect us, particularly in instancéeme we have borrowed money based on the
fair value of those assets. If the fair value afsih assets declines, the lender may require usstaadditional collateral to support the loan. If
we were unable to post the additional collatera would have to sell the assets at a time when ightmot otherwise choose to do so. A
reduction in credit available may reduce our eagiand, in turn, cash available for distributiorstockholders.

The lack of liquidity in our investments may advergly affect our business.

We may invest in securities or other instrumendd #re not liquid. It may be difficult or impossghio obtain third party pricing on
the investments we purchase. llliquid investméyygcally experience greater price volatility aseady market does not exist. In addition,
validating third party pricing for illiquid investemts may be more subjective than more liquid imaests. The illiquidity of our investments
may make it difficult for us to sell such investnt®if the need or desire arises. In addition, ifame required to liquidate all or a portion of
portfolio quickly, we may realize significantly ¢han the value at which we have previously resti@ur investments. As a result, our
ability to vary our portfolio in response to chaage economic and other conditions may be relatiliglited, which could adversely affect
our results of operations and financial condition.

We are highly dependent on information systems anthird parties, and systems failures could significatly disrupt our business, whick
may, in turn, negatively affect the market price ofour common stock and our ability to pay dividendgo our stockholders.

Our business is highly dependent on communicatimasinformation systems. Any failure or interruptiof our systems could cause
delays or other problems in our securities tradiatvities, including mortgage-backed securitiegling activities, which could have a
material adverse effect on our operating resultsreegatively affect the market price of our commstock and our ability to pay dividends to
our stockholders.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or wamay affect the market for our common stock, the idustry in which we conduct our
operations and our profitability.

Terrorist attacks may harm our results of operatimd your investment. We cannot assure you tea thill not be further terrorist
attacks against the United States or U.S. busise$sese attacks or armed conflicts may directlyaot the property underlying our asset-
based securities or the securities markets in géraysses resulting from these types of eventsiaiesurable. More generally, any of these
events could cause consumer confidence and spetudderrease or result in increased volatilityhie United States and worldwide financial
markets and economies. Adverse economic conditionkl harm the value of the property underlying asset-backed securities or the
securities markets in general which could harmaparating results and revenues and may resuleindhatility of the value of our securities.

We are subject to the requirements of the Sarbane®xley Act of 2002.

As we are a public company, our management is redt® deliver a report that assesses the effewsseof our internal controls
over financial reporting, pursuant to Section 30the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or Sarbanes-OAldy Section 404 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act requires an independent registered pudiounting firm to deliver an attestation repartnosanagement’s assessment of, and the
operating effectiveness of our internal controlerdinancial reporting in conjunction with theiriofn on our audited financial statements
beginning with the year ending December 31, 2008s&ntial work on our part is required to impletegppropriate processes, document the
system of internal control over key processes,sasseir design, remediate any deficiencies idedtiéind test their operation. This process is
expected to be both costly and challenging. Weaaohtgive any assurances that material weaknesdasovbe identified in the future in
connection with our compliance with the provisi@fisSections 302 and 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Abe existence of any material
weakness described above would preclude a conaolbgionanagement and our independent auditors thamantained effective internal
control over financial reporting. Our managemeai/rhe required to devote significant time and egpédp remediate any material
weaknesses that may be discovered and may notidéoalemediate all material weaknesses in a timeypner. The existence of any
material weaknesses in our internal control ovearitial reporting could also result in errors im fiiancial statements that could require t
restate our financial statements, cause us tédfaileet our reporting obligations and cause investwlose confidence in our reported
financial information, all of which could lead tadacline in the trading price of our stock.
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The increasing number of proposed federal, state ahlocal laws may increase our risk of liability wih respect to certain mortgage
loans, may include judicial modification provisionsand could increase our cost of doing business.

The United States Congress and various state aatllegislatures are considering legislation, wharmong other provisions, would
permit limited assignee liability for certain vitilans in the mortgage loan origination process,andld allow judicial modification of loan
principal in the event of personal bankruptcy. ¥danot predict whether or in what form Congresthervarious state and local legislatures
may enact legislation affecting our business. Weexaluating the potential impact of these inities, if enacted, on our practices and results
of operations. As a result of these and otheiaitnies, we are unable to predict whether fedstate or local authorities will require changes
in our practices in the future or in our portfolidhese changes, if required, could adversely afecprofitability, particularly if we make
such changes in response to new or amended lagudatiens or ordinances in any state where we aegusignificant portion of our
mortgage loans, or if such changes result in usgdeeld responsible for any violations in the mageg loan origination process, or if the
principal amount of loans we own or are in RMBS Ipage own are modified in the personal bankruptocpess.

Risks Related to Our Investments

We might not be able to purchase residential mortgge loans, mortgage-backed securities and other instenents that meet our
investment criteria or at favorable spreads over ouborrowing costs.

To the extent we purchase assets using leveragegpincome depends on our ability to acquiredesiial mortgage loans,
mortgage-backed securities and other investmeriévatable spreads over our borrowing costs. @uestments are selected by our
Manager, and our stockholders will not have inpt such investment decisions. Our Manager hasumed due diligence with respect to
each investment purchased. However, there caw lassurance that our Manager's due diligence mwesesill uncover all relevant facts or
that any investment will be successful.

We may not realize income or gains from our investents.

We invest to generate both current income and alagiipreciation. The investments we invest in rhayyever, not appreciate in
value and, in fact, may decline in value, and thietdecurities we invest in may default on intecggirincipal payments. Accordingly, we
may not be able to realize income or gains fromiouestments. Any gains that we do realize maybaeosufficient to offset any other losses
we experience. Any income that we realize may edaufficient to offset our expenses.

Our investments may be concentrated and will be sygct to risk of default.

While we intend to diversify our portfolio of inviesents, we are not required to observe specifierdification criteria. To the exte
that our portfolio is concentrated in any one ragbo type of security, downturns relating gener&dlyuch region or type of security may
result in defaults on a number of our investmeriteiwa short time period, which may reduce ourinebme and the value of our shares and
accordingly may reduce our ability to pay divideba®ur stockholders.

Our investments in subordinated RMBS are generallyn the “first loss” position and our investments inthe mezzanine RMBS are
generally in the “second loss” position and theref@ subject to losses.

In general, losses on a mortgage loan includedsiecaritization will be borne first by the equityltier of the issuing trust, and then
by the “first loss” subordinated security holdedahen by the “second loss” mezzanine holder.héndvent of default and the exhaustion of
any classes of securities junior to those in whiehinvest and there is any further loss, we will In@ able to recover all of our investment in
the securities we purchase. In addition, if thdartying mortgage portfolio has been overvaluedh®yoriginator, or if the values
subsequently decline and, as a result, less caldageavailable to satisfy interest and principayments due on the related RMBS, the
securities in which we invest may effectively beeotie “first loss” position behind the more sersecurities, which may result in significant
losses to us. The prices of lower credit quakigwsities are generally less sensitive to intenast changes than more highly rated
investments, but more sensitive to adverse econdovititurns or individual issuer developments. #j@ction of an economic downturn, for
example, could cause a decline in the price of tawedit quality securities because the abilitpbligors of mortgages underlying RMBS to
make principal and interest payments may be imgaite such event, existing credit support in teeusitization structure may be insufficient
to protect us against loss of our principal on ¢hescurities.
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Increases in interest rates could negatively affet¢he value of our investments, which could resulinireduced earnings or losses and
negatively affect the cash available for distributbn to our stockholders.

We have and will continue to invest in real estaiated assets by acquiring RMBS, residential nagi¢goans, CMBS and CDOs
backed by real estate-related assets. Under aahgreld curve, an investment in these assetsdeitline in value if long-term interest rates
increase. Declines in market value may ultimateljuce earnings or result in losses to us, which meggtively affect cash available for
distribution to our stockholders. A significantkiassociated with these investments is the riskitbth long-term and short-term interest rates
will increase significantly. If long-term rates vegto increase significantly, the market value esthinvestments would decline, and the
duration and weighted average life of the investimi@mould increase. We could realize a loss if thessets were sold. At the same time, an
increase in short-term interest rates would in@e¢hse amount of interest owed on the repurchaseawgnts or other adjustable rate
financings we may enter into to finance the purehafthese assets. Market values of our invessimaay decline without any general
increase in interest rates for a number of reasut) as increases in defaults, increases in \alprepayments for those investments that
are subject to prepayment risk and widening oficisgateads.

In a period of rising interest rates, our interestexpense could increase while the interest we earn our fixed-rate assets would not
change, which would adversely affect our profitabity.

Our operating results will depend in large partlmn differences between the income from our assetf credit losses and
financing costs. We anticipate that, in most cagesincome from such assets will respond morelgléavinterest rate fluctuations than the
cost of our borrowings. Consequently, changesterést rates, particularly short-term interestgateay significantly influence our net
income. Increases in these rates will tend to dsereur net income and market value of our adsé¢sest rate fluctuations resulting in our
interest expense exceeding our interest incomedv@slult in operating losses for us and may limilaminate our ability to make
distributions to our stockholders.

Interest rate mismatches between our investments drany borrowings used to fund purchases of these sets may reduce our income
during periods of changing interest rates.

We intend to fund some of our acquisitions of restthl mortgage loans, real estate-related seesi@nd real estate loans with
borrowings that have interest rates based on iediod repricing terms with shorter maturities ttr@ninterest rate indices and repricing te
of our adjustable-rate assets. Accordingly, ifrsierm interest rates increase, this may harnpoofitability.

Some of the residential mortgage loans, real estddted securities and real estate loans we aequér and will be fixed-rate
securities. This means that their interest ratédnat vary over time based upon changes in atsteom interest rate index. Therefore, the
interest rate indices and repricing terms of trsesthat we acquire and their funding sourcesongiate an interest rate mismatch betwee
assets and liabilities. During periods of changigrest rates, these mismatches could reduceeduncome, dividend yield and the market
price of our stock.

Accordingly, in a period of rising interest rates could experience a decrease in net income et s because the interest rates
on our borrowings adjust whereas the interest @esur fixed-rate assets remain unchanged.

Interest rate caps on our adjustable rate RMBS maydversely affect our profitability.

Adjustable-rate RMBS are typically subject to pditoand lifetime interest rate caps. Periodic ies¢rate caps limit the amount an
interest rate can increase during any given petiddtime interest rate caps limit the amount aetiast rate can increase over the life of the
security. Our borrowings typically will not be sebf to similar restrictions. Accordingly, in a padiof rapidly increasing interest rates, the
interest rates paid on our borrowings could inaeashout limitation while caps could limit the erest rates on our adjustable-rate RMBS.
This problem is magnified for hybrid adjustableerand adjustable-rate RMBS that are not fully irtexFurther, some hybrid adjustable-rate
and adjustable-rate RMBS may be subject to peripadjenent caps that result in a portion of the egebeing deferred and added to the
principal outstanding. As a result, we may recédas cash income on hybrid adjustable-rate andstadjle-rate RMBS than we need to pay
interest on our related borrowings. These factotdccreduce our net interest income and cause sigfter a loss.

29




A significant portion of our portfolio investments will be recorded at fair value, as determined in agordance with our pricing policy as
approved by our board of directors and, as a resultthere will be uncertainty as to the value of thesinvestments.

A significant portion of our portfolio of investmemis in the form of securities that are not puplicaded. The fair value of securiti
and other investments that are not publicly tragiegt not be readily determinable. It may be diffiar impossible to obtain third party
pricing on the investments we purchase. We vdlasd investments quarterly at fair value, as deteahin accordance with our pricing
policy as approved by our board of directors. Beeasuch valuations are inherently uncertain, magtdlte over short periods of time and
may be based on estimates, our determinationsrofdlue may differ materially from the values thaduld have been used if a ready market
for these securities existed. The value of our comstock could be adversely affected if our detaatibns regarding the fair value of these
investments were materially higher than the vathaswe ultimately realize upon their disposal.

A prolonged economic slowdown, a recession or datlig real estate values could impair our investmestand harm our operating
results.

Many of our investments are susceptible to econahoMvdowns or recessions, which could lead to fiferiosses in our investmel
and a decrease in revenues, net income and ddsédsorable economic conditions also could incremgefunding costs, limit our access to
the capital markets or result in a decision by é¥adhot to extend credit to us. These events qmaident us from increasing investments and
have an adverse effect on our operating results.

Changes in prepayment rates could negatively affethe value of our investment portfolio, which couldresult in reduced earnings or
losses and negatively affect the cash available fdistribution to our stockholders.

There are seldom any restrictions on borrowerditasi to prepay their residential mortgage loahsmeowners tend to prepay
mortgage loans faster when interest rates dedlinasequently, owners of the loans have to reinhesmoney received from the prepaymi
at the lower prevailing interest rates. Conversetymeowners tend not to prepay mortgage loans \iterest rates increase. Consequently,
owners of the loans are unable to reinvest monailould have otherwise been received from prepaysreg the higher prevailing interest
rates. This volatility in prepayment rates may etfieur ability to maintain targeted amounts of k&g on our portfolio of residential
mortgage loans, RMBS, and CDOs backed by realeasthited assets and may result in reduced earnirigsses for us and negatively aff
the cash available for distribution to our stocklews.

To the extent our investments are purchased araipm, faster than expected prepayments resulfastar than expected
amortization of the premium paid, which would acbedy affect our earnings. Conversely, if thesegtmnents were purchased at a discount,
faster than expected prepayments accelerate oogmition of income. On February 10, 2010, FannaeMnd Freddie Mac announced their
intention to significantly increase their purchaeédelinquent loans from the pools of mortgagdiateralizing their Agency MBS beginning
in March 2010, which could materially impact theéeraf principal prepayments on our Agency MBS gaotead by these two government
sponsored enterprises or GSEs.
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The mortgage loans we invest in and the mortgagedas underlying the mortgage and asset-backed sectieis we invest in are subject
to delinquency, foreclosure and loss, which couldesult in losses to us.

Residential mortgage loans are typically securedibgle-family residential property and are subjeatisks of delinquency and
foreclosure and risks of loss. The ability of arbarer to repay a loan secured by a residentialgryps dependent upon the income or assets
of the borrower. A number of factors, includingengral economic downturn, acts of God, terrorismiat unrest and civil disturbances, may
impair borrowers’ abilities to repay their loans.dddition, we invest in non-Agency RMBS, which beeked by residential real property but,
in contrast to Agency RMBS, their principal anceirgtst is not guaranteed by federally charterediensuch as Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac
and, in the case of Ginnie Mae, the U.S. governniérg U.S. Department of Treasury and FHFA have egered into preferred stock
purchase agreements between the U.S. Departménéa$ury and Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac pursuamhich the U.S. Department of
Treasury will ensure that each of Fannie Mae ardidie Mac maintains a positive net worth. Asse&kbd securities are bonds or notes
backed by loans or other financial assets. Thétybil a borrower to repay these loans or otheafitial assets is dependent upon the income
or assets of these borrowers. Commercial mortgzayeslare secured by multifamily or commercial prigpand are subject to risks of
delinquency and foreclosure, and risks of loss dihatgreater than similar risks associated withdaaade on the security of single-family
residential property. The ability of a borrowerépay a loan secured by an income-producing prppgotcally is dependent primarily upon
the successful operation of such property ratham tipon the existence of independent income otsagbéhe borrower. If the net operating
income of the property is reduced, the borrowebitits to repay the loan may be impaired. Net ofiagaincome of an income producing
property can be affected by, among other thingmrtemix, success of tenant businesses, propentageament decisions, property location
and condition, competition from comparable typeprafperties, changes in laws that increase opegratipense or limit rents that may be
charged, any need to address environmental conddiminat the property, the occurrence of any unedcasualty at the property, changes in
national, regional or local economic conditionspecific industry segments, declines in regiondboal real estate values, declines in
regional or local rental or occupancy rates, ingggdn interest rates, real estate tax rates duea operating expenses, changes in
governmental rules, regulations and fiscal policiesluding environmental legislation, acts of Gtatyorism, social unrest and civil
disturbances. In the event of any default undepegage loan held directly by us, we will bearskrof loss of principal to the extent of any
deficiency between the value of the collateral #iredprincipal and accrued interest of the mortdaga, which could have a material adverse
effect on our cash flow from operations. In therdws the bankruptcy of a mortgage loan borrowes, mortgage loan to such borrower will
be deemed to be secured only to the extent ofahe\of the underlying collateral at the time ofkauptcy (as determined by the bankruptcy
court), and the lien securing the mortgage loahhelsubject to the avoidance powers of the barkyupustee or debtor-in-possession to the
extent the lien is unenforceable under state lawe&osure of a mortgage loan can be an expensivéeagthy process which could have a
substantial negative effect on our anticipatedrretun the foreclosed mortgage loan. RMBS evidentarésts in or are secured by pools of
residential mortgage loans and CMBS evidence iatslie or are secured by a single commercial mgedean or a pool of commercial
mortgage loans. Accordingly, the RMBS and CMBS meest in are subject to all of the risks of theesdive underlying mortgage loans.

We may be required to repurchase mortgage loans andemnify investors if we breach representations asthwarranties, which could
harm our earnings.

If we sell loans, we would be required to make oorgtry representations and warranties about sudis limethe loan purchaser. Our
residential mortgage loan sale agreements willirequs to repurchase or substitute loans in thatewe breach a representation or warranty
given to the loan purchaser. In addition, we maydugiired to repurchase loans as a result of bardmaud or in the event of early payment
default on a mortgage loan. Likewise, we are reguip repurchase or substitute loans if we breaelp@sentation or warranty in connection
with our securitizations. The remedies availabla frchaser of mortgage loans are generally brahda those available to us against the
originating broker or correspondent. Further, jiftsichaser enforces its remedies against us, wenwtdye able to enforce the remedies we
have against the sellers. The repurchased loaitatlypcan only be financed at a steep discounihéir repurchase price, if at all. They are
also typically sold at a significant discount te lmpaid principal balance. Significant repurchactévity could harm our cash flow, results of
operations, financial condition and business protspe

We may enter into derivative contracts that could gpose us to contingent liabilities in the future.
Subject to maintaining our qualification as a REd&rt of our investment strategy involves enteiimg derivative contracts that
could require us to fund cash payments in certagumstances. These potential payments will beiggent liabilities and therefore may not

appear on our consolidated statement of financiatlition. Our ability to fund these contingent lidkes will depend on the liquidity of our
assets and access to capital at the time, ancetitbto fund these contingent liabilities could adely impact our financial condition.
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Our Manager’s due diligence of potential investments may not veal all of the liabilities associated with such westments and may no
reveal other weaknesses in such investments, whicbuld lead to investment losses.

Before making an investment, our Manager asseleestrengths and weaknesses of the originatosoeii®f the asset as well as
other factors and characteristics that are mattritde performance of the investment. In makirggahsessment and otherwise conducting
customary due diligence, our Manager relies onuess available to it and, in some cases, an ilgagin by third parties. This process is
particularly important with respect to newly formexdginators or issuers with unrated and other adibated tranches of MBS and ABS
because there may be little or no information phplavailable about these entities and investmdrttere can be no assurance that our
Manager’s due diligence process will uncover dévant facts or that any investment will be suctidss

Our real estate investments are subject to risks pcular to real property.

We own assets secured by real estate and may avestate directly in the future, either througtedi investments or upon a defe
of mortgage loans. Real estate investments aredutioj various risks, including:

« acts of God, including earthquakes, floods andrathéural disasters, which may result in uninsuosges;

« acts of war or terrorism, including the consequerafeerrorist attacks, such as those that occuome8eptember 11, 2001;

» adverse changes in national and local economigraréiet conditions;

« changes in governmental laws and regulations,|figmlcies and zoning ordinances and the relatetiscof compliance with laws a
regulations, fiscal policies and ordinanc

« costs of remediation and liabilities associatedhweitvironmental conditions such as indoor mold; and

« the potential for uninsured or under-insured proplasses.

If any of these or similar events occurs, it majuae our return from an affected property or inwesit and reduce or eliminate our
ability to make distributions to stockholders.

We may be exposed to environmental liabilities witlmespect to properties to which we take title.

In the course of our business, we may take title#b estate, and, if we do take title, we couldblgiect to environmental liabilities
with respect to these properties. In such a cir¢ante, we may be held liable to a governmentatyeatito third parties for property damage,
personal injury, investigation, and cleap-costs incurred by these parties in connectidh @nvironmental contamination, or may be requ
to investigate or clean up hazardous or toxic sutzsts, or chemical releases at a property. The assbciated with investigation or
remediation activities could be substantial. If ever become subject to significant environmenéddilities, our business, financial condition,
liquidity, and results of operations could be miatgr and adversely affected.

We may in the future invest in RMBS collateralizedoy subprime mortgage loans, which are subject to oreased risks.

We may in the future invest in RMBS backed by dellal pools of subprime residential mortgage lod8sibprime” mortgage loan
refer to mortgage loans that have been originasathunderwriting standards that are less restadtian the underwriting requirements used
as standards for other first and junior lien moggan purchase programs, such as the prografenoie Mae and Freddie Mac. These
lower standards include mortgage loans made t@bens having imperfect or impaired credit histoiesluding outstanding judgments or
prior bankruptcies), mortgage loans where the amolihe loan at origination is 80% or more of tledue of the mortgage property,
mortgage loans made to borrowers with low creditess, mortgage loans made to borrowers who hawr d#bt that represents a large
portion of their income and mortgage loans madsotoowers whose income is not required to be désdoor verified. Due to economic
conditions, including increased interest rateslamer home prices, as well as aggressive lendiagtjpes, subprime mortgage loans have in
recent periods experienced increased rates ofqieditcy, foreclosure, bankruptcy and loss, and #éneyikely to continue to experience
delinquency, foreclosure, bankruptcy and loss rditasare higher, and that may be substantiallizdrigthan those experienced by mortgage
loans underwritten in a more traditional mannemug,tbecause of the higher delinquency rates asdsasssociated with subprime mortgage
loans, the performance of RMBS backed by subpriroggage loans in which we may invest could be spoadingly adversely affected,
which could adversely impact our results of operatj financial condition and business.
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Our Manager will utilize analytical models and datain connection with the valuation of our investmers, and any incorrect, misleading
or incomplete information used in connection therevth would subject us to potential risks.

Given the complexity of our investments and strigegour Manager must rely heavily on analyticatlele (both net present value
based loss mitigation models and those supplidthiby-parties) and information and data suppliedtbsd-parties, or Models and
Data. Models and Data will be used to value inwesits or potential investments and also in conoeetith hedging our investments. When
Models and Data prove to be incorrect, misleading@omplete, any decisions made in reliance them@ose us to potential risks. For
example, by relying on Models and Data, especialyation models, our Manager may be induced todautain investments at prices that
are too high, to sell certain other investmenigriges that are too low or to miss favorable opyuties altogether. Similarly, any hedging
based on faulty Models and Data may prove to beagessful. Furthermore, any valuations of our stments that are based on valuation
models may prove to be incorrect.

Some of the risks of relying on analytical modeid ¢hird-party data are particular to analyzingntfzes from securitizations, such as
MBS. These risks include, but are not limited bh® following: (i) collateral cash flows and/or liity structures may be incorrectly modeled
in all or only certain scenarios, or may be modéddased on simplifying assumptions that lead torsyi(@) information about collateral may
be incorrect, incomplete, or misleading; (iii) @aéral or bond historical performance (such ashisdl prepayments, defaults, cash flows,
etc.) may be incorrectly reported, or subject terpretation (e.qg., different issuers may repolindeency statistics based on different
definitions of what constitutes a delinquent loa)(iv) collateral or bond information may be catteld, in which case the models may cor
incorrect assumptions as to what has occurred sirecdate information was last updated.

Some of the analytical models used by our Managmt as mortgage prepayment models or mortgageltiefadels, are predictive
in nature. The use of predictive models has infteisks. For example, such models may incorrectigcast future behavior, leading to
potential losses on a cash flow and/or a mark-tckatebasis. In addition, the predictive models usgdur Manager may differ substantially
from those models used by other market participavith the result that valuations based on theediptive models may be substantially
higher or lower for certain investments than actonafket prices. Furthermore, since predictive nsdee usually constructed based on
historical data supplied by third-parties, the ssscof relying on such models may depend heavihemccuracy and reliability of the
supplied historical data and the ability of theistdrical models to accurately reflect future pdso

All valuation models rely on correct market datauts. If incorrect market data is entered into exevell-founded valuation model,
the resulting valuations will be incorrect. Howeveven if market data is inputted correctly, “mopates” will often differ substantially from
market prices, especially for securities with coexptharacteristics, such as derivative securities.

Exchange rate fluctuations may limit gains or resulin losses.

If we directly or indirectly hold assets denomirthie currencies other than U.S. dollars, we willlposed to currency risk that may
adversely affect performance. Changes in the Wblkark rate of exchange with other currencies raffgct the value of investments in our
portfolio and the income that we receive in respéauch investments. In addition, we may incut€@s connection with conversion betwe
various currencies, which may reduce our net incanteaccordingly may reduce our ability to payriisitions to our stockholders.

Regulatory and Legal Risks

Violations of federal, state and local laws by theriginator, the servicer, or may result in rescisgn of the loans or penalties that may
adversely impact our income.

Violations of certain provisions of federal, statel local laws by the originator, the servicer ®ras well as actions by governmei
agencies, authorities and attorneys general, maydur or the servicer’s ability to collect all part of the principal of, or interest on, the
residential mortgage loans we purchase and hottllcams that serve as security for the MBS we mseland hold. Violations could also
subject the entity that made or modified the ldmndamages and administrative enforcement (inctudisgorgement of prior interest and f
paid). In particular, a loan seller’s failure toneply with certain requirements of federal andestatvs could subject the seller (and other
assignees of the mortgage loans) to monetary pemalhd result in the obligors’ rescinding the mage loans against the seller and any
subsequent holders of the mortgage loans, evée issignee was not responsible for and was unaf#rese violations. These adverse
consequences vary depending on the applicablerdwray vary depending on the type or severity efvilolation, but they typically include:
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« the ability of the homeowner to rescind, or cantted,loan;
« the inability of the holder of the loan to colledt of the principal and interest otherwise duetomloan;

« the right of the homeowner to a refund of amoumévipusly paid (which may include amounts finanbgdhe loan), or t
set off those amounts against his or her future tddigations; an

« the liability of the servicer and the owner of flban for actual damages, statutory damages andiyrigiamages, civil «
criminal penalties, costs and attorr’ fees.

The terms of the documents under which we intemlitehase loans, and the terms of the documendstosgeate the MBS we
intend to purchase, may entitle the holders oldhes and the special purpose vehicles that halaslin MBS to contractual indemnification
against these liabilities. For example, the sgltdroans placed in an MBS typically represent #zch mortgage loan was made in
compliance with applicable federal and state lamér@gulations at the time it was made. If thera material breach of that representation,
the seller may be contractually obligated to cheelireach or repurchase or replace the affectethag® loan. If the seller is unable or
otherwise fails to satisfy these obligations, tiedyon the loans and MBS might be materially addesisely affected. Due to the well
publicized recent deterioration in the housing aochmercial property markets, many of the selleas ifsued these indemnifications are no
longer in business or are unable to financiallpoesl to their indemnification obligations. Consenlly, holders of interests in the loans and
MBS may ultimately have to absorb the losses agifiiom the sellers’ violations. While we attempttake these factors into account in the
prices we pay for loans and MBS, we can offer rseuamces concerning the validity of the assumptiemsise in our pricing decisions.

Furthermore, the volume of new and modified lawd segulations at both the federal and state ldvadsincreased in recent
years. For example, H.R. 1105, which was signemlaw in March 2009, gives the Federal Trade Cossion, or FTC, authority to issi
rules under which it will define what constitutesair and deceptive practices relating to mortgageing and loan servicing and which gi
enforcement authority to state attorneys genérhkre is also an increased risk that the both wietlae servicer of loans we purchase or that
are held in MBS we purchase may be involved igdition over violations or alleged violations ofeaty enacted and proposed laws. Itis
possible that these laws might result in additighificant costs and liabilities, which could thuer adversely affect the results of our
operations. Any litigation would increase our exges and reduce funds available for distributioouiostockholders.

Some local municipalities also have enacted laasithpose potentially significant penalties on Ieanvicing activities related to
abandoned properties or real estate owned progertie

Any of these preceding could result in delays and¢ductions in receipts of amounts due on thedo@® intend to purchase or on
loans held in MBS we intend to purchase, harmingilmeome and operating results.

We may be subject to liability for potential violatons of predatory lending and other laws, which cold adversely impact our results of
operations, financial condition and business.

Various federal, state and local laws have beenteddhat are designed to discourage predatoryrigmactices and more are
currently proposed. The federal Home OwnershipEauity Protection Act of 1994, commonly known asER®A, prohibits inclusion of
certain provisions in residential mortgage loara tlave mortgage rates or origination costs in €xoé prescribed levels and requires that
borrowers be given certain disclosures before oaipn. Some states have enacted, or may enadiasiaws or regulations, which in some
cases impose restrictions and requirements greésteithose in HOEPA. In addition, under the anéidatory lending laws of some states, the
origination of certain residential mortgage loans|uding loans that are not classified as “hightttoans under applicable law, must satis
net tangible benefits test with respect to theteeldorrower. This test may be highly subjectind apen to interpretation. As a result, a court
may determine that a residential mortgage loan olg, ior example, does not meet the test evereit¢ated originator reasonably believed
that the test was satisfied.
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Failure of residential mortgage loan originatorservicers to comply with these laws, to the exsayt of their residential mortgage
loans become part of our mortgage-related assmif] subject us, as an assignee or purchaser oéldied residential mortgage loans or
RMBS, to monetary penalties and could result inkbeowers rescinding the affected residential gage loans. Lawsuits have been broi
in various states making claims against assigneparchasers of high cost loans for violationstafeslaw. Named defendants in these cases
have included numerous participants in the seconuartgage market. If the loans are found to Haaen originated in violation of predatc
or abusive lending laws, we could incur lossescivitiould adversely impact our results of operatiéinancial condition and business.

There is the potential for limitations on our ability to finance purchases of loans and MBS, and fobkses on the loans and MBS we
purchase, as a result of violations of law by theriginating lenders.

In June 2003, a California jury found a warehoeselér and securitization underwriter liable in gartfraud on consumers
committed by a lender to whom it provided financargl underwriting services. The jury found that itvestment bank was aware of the
fraud and substantially assisted the lender ingiespng the fraud by providing financing and uvdeéting services that allowed the lender to
continue to operate, and held it liable for 109%haf plaintiff's damages. This instance of liailis the first case we know of in which an
investment bank was held partly responsible folations committed by a mortgage lender customdortf after the announcement of the
jury verdict in the California case, the Floridadxhey General filed suit against the same findngsitution, seeking an injunction to prev
it from financing mortgage loans within Florida,wasll as damages and civil penalties, based orriteeof unfair and deceptive trade
practices and fraud. The suit claimed that thiariicial institution aided and abetted the samedeimyolved in the California case in its
commission of fraudulent representations in Flarida

In December of 2008, the Massachusetts Supremeidu@ourt upheld a lower court’s order enterediragfea lender that enjoined
the lender from foreclosing, without court approwal certain mortgage loans secured by the borreweincipal dwelling that the court
considered “presumptively unfair.”

In May of 2009, another securitizer of residentiedrtgage loans entered into a settlement agreewitnthe Commonwealth of
Massachusetts stemming from its investigation bpsime lending and securitization markets. Theigsgzer agreed to provide loan
restructuring (including significant principal weitdowns) valued at approximately $50 million to BEshusetts subprime borrowers and to
make a $10 million payment to the Commonwealth.

If other courts or regulators take similar actiangestment banks and investors in residential@mmercial mortgage loans and MBS (such
as us) might face increased litigation as theynaraed as defendants in lawsuits and regulatorgrecagainst the mortgage companies or
securitizers with which they do business or theghhbe prohibited from foreclosing on loans theychased. Some investment banks may
charge more for warehouse lending and reduce tbespthey pay for loans to build in the costs @ ghotential litigation or exit the business
entirely, thereby increasing our cost of borrowirgy such actions by courts and regulators, aydsach increases in our costs of
borrowing, could, in turn, have a material adveafect on our results of operations, financial dtind, and business prospects.

We are required to obtain various state licenses iarder to purchase mortgage loans in the secondamarket and there is no
assurance we will be able to obtain or maintain thee licenses.

While we are not required to obtain licenses tachase mortgagbacked securities, we are required to obtain vargtate licenses
purchase mortgage loans in the secondary marketeT# no assurance that we will obtain all oflibenses that we desire or that we will not
experience significant delays in seeking thesa$ies. Furthermore, we will be subject to variodigrination reporting requirements to
maintain these licenses, and there is no assuthatere will satisfy those requirements. Our fagltw obtain or maintain licenses will restrict
our investment options and could harm our business.

The federal government’s pressing for refinancing bcertain loans may affect prepayment rates for magage loans in MBS.

In addition to the increased pressure upon resalanbrtgage loan investors and servicers to engafpess mitigation activities, the
federal government is pressing for refinancingeartain loans, and this encouragement may affegigyraent rates for mortgage loans in
MBS. In connection with government-related se@sitin February 2009 President Obama unveileditiraeowner Affordability and
Stability Plan, which, in part, calls upon Fanniaé&/and Freddie Mac to loosen their eligibility eri& for the purchase of loans in order to
provide access to low-cost refinancing for borraaweho are current on their mortgage payments bote@mnot otherwise qualify to
refinance at a lower market rate. The major chasmg® permit an increase in the LTV ratio of amahcing loan eligible for sale up to
105%. The charters governing the operations ohieaMae and Freddie Mac prohibit purchases of lagitis loan to value ratios in excess of
80% unless the loans have mortgage insurance lessinther types of credit enhancement are providadcordance with the statutory
requirements). The FHFA, which regulates Fannie sliad Freddie Mac, determined that new mortgageanse will not be required on the
refinancing if the applicable entity already owhe toan or guarantees the related MBS. Additign#ile U.S. Treasury reports that in some
cases a new appraisal will not be necessary ugmaneing. The U.S. Treasury estimates that up,®00,000 homeowners with loans owned
or guaranteed by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac mayigile for this refinancing program, which is schied to terminate in June 2010.
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In connection with all RMBS, the HERA authorizegt@duntary FHA mortgage insurance program called H@® Homeowners, or
H4H Program, designed to refinance certain delingberrowers into new FHA-insured loans. The HdldgPam targets delinquent
borrowers under conventional mortgage loans, asasainder government-insured or -guaranteed mgettgans, that were originated on or
before January 1, 2008. Holders of existing mayégaans being refinanced under the H4H Programnt aacept a write-down of principal
and waive all prepayment fees. While the use efptogram has been extremely limited to date, Gzascontinues to amend the program to
encourage its use. The H4H Program is effectiveujh September 30, 2011.

To the extent these and other economic stabilizaticstimulus efforts are successful in increagiregpayment speeds for residential
mortgage loans, such as those in RMBS, that cootleiially harm our income and operating resuléstipularly in connection with loans or
MBS purchased at a premium or our interest-onlysges.

Federal and state agencies have taken enforcememtians and enacted regulations and government progms that require
government sponsored enterprises (such as Fannie Bland Freddie Mac), insured depository institutionsand state regulated loan
servicers to engage in loss mitigation activitiesetating to residential mortgage loans.

Federal and state agencies have taken enforcert@risaand enacted regulations that require govemisponsored enterprises
(such as Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac), insured deppmstitutions, and state regulated loan sar8do engage in loss mitigation activities
relating to residential mortgage loans. Other aggnhave published policies that strongly recondrteese entities to engage in loss
mitigation activities. These loss mitigation aittes may include, for example, loan modificatidhat significantly reduce interest and
payments, deferrals of payments, and reductiopsin€ipal balances.

On March 4, 2009, the U.S. Treasury announced HAM#Gh is intended to enable borrowers to reta@girthomes when
feasible. Eligibility for relief initially is limied to owner occupant borrowers with loans of teas $729,000 that were in existence as of
January 1, 2009. HAMP requires eligibility crigeand modification terms that may be more favortdblbe borrower than an investor or the
servicer may otherwise choose to use. As the noadiibn plan applies to owner occupied residemiiaftgage loans in default or imminent
default, absent a modification the loans may bgesuitbo foreclosure. Nevertheless, an increaseans that take advantage of the
modification opportunities may result in the refhase of pooled loans in RMBS, thereby terminatingrights to earn interest on those loi

There is litigation currently pending that challesgrior loss mitigation activities on the prentisat they are contrary to the terms
the agreements under which established residentitgage securities were formed. Neverthelesgeitent enactment of the HFSTH Act
provides a safe harbor in some circumstances frasettypes of lawsuits for servicers entering ‘igtalified loss mitigation plans” with
respect to residential mortgages originated befugeact was enacted. A servicer’s duty to anystareor other party to maximize the net
present value of any mortgage being modified wélidonstrued to apply to all investors and othetigmmand will be deemed satisfied when
the following criteria are met: (a) a default die payment of the mortgage has occurred, is immjoerns reasonably foreseeable, (b) the
mortgagor occupies the property securing the mgeges his or her principal residence and (c) thée reasonably determined that the
application of such qualified loss mitigation phaiil likely provide an anticipated recovery on thetstanding principal mortgage debt that
will exceed the anticipated recovery through faveare. Any servicer that is deemed to be actirtbarbest interests of all investors and
parties is relieved of liability to any party owadluty as discussed above and shall not be subjaaly injunction, stay or other equitable
relief to such party based solely upon the implaiatgn by the servicer of a qualified loss mitigatiplan. The act further provides that any
person, including a trustee, issuer and loan aaigin shall not be liable for monetary damageaubjest to an injunction, stay or other
equitable relief based solely upon that persontpeaation with a servicer in implementing a quatifioss mitigation program that meets the
criteria set forth above. By protecting servideosn such liabilities, this safe harbor may enegé loan modifications and servicers may not
be able to service the mortgage loans in accordaitheheir prior practices. As a result of theaetment of the HFSTH Act, loss mitigation
activities may result in even more significant retitns in the returns on loans and RMBS we purchasientially harming our income and
operating results.
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Proposed Congressional legislation (H.R. 3126) sttpd by President Obama would, if passed, cre@ensumer Financial
Protection Agency (“CFPA”"). The bill has underganenerous changes since its introduction, and thereeports about broad revisions to
the bill. The bill would establish a new federgkacy whose principal purpose would be to regutaggorovision of financial services and
products. As proposed, the bill would grant the®@FBweeping and broad powers and provide the CRRAodty to both mandate and limit
the financial products offered to consumers. fiassible the CFPA could significantly limit ourilétly to offer products and services, and
impose requirements on us as to what financialices\and products we offer and the manner in whiehmarket our services and
products. Because of the uncertainty concerningtindr the bill will be passed, and its coveragss, difficult to predict the impact it will
have on our operations, income and expenses.

We will likely be subject to civil liability if we fail to make required disclosures to consumers.

Purchasers of consumer purpose, residential martipams have affirmative disclosure obligationsaasumers under the HFSTH
Act, which Congress enacted in May 2009 with an aédiate effective date. This new statutory obligrativill subject purchasers of mortge
loans to civil liability if they fail to make theequired disclosures. Specifically, section 404hef HFSTH Act amends the Truth in Lending
Act to provide that a creditor that purchases @ssigned a mortgage loan must notify the borramerriting of a sale or transfer of his or t
mortgage loan, not later than 30 days after thesaetion’s completion. The notice must include howeach an agent or party having
authority to act on behalf of the new creditor, libegation of the place where the transfer of owigrés recorded and any other relevant
information about the new creditor. This discleswould be in addition to any transfer of servicirdice required under the Real Estate
Settlement Procedures Act. Federal consumer deaditloes not typically impose responsibility osigaees to communicate directly with
mortgagors, and the statutory language is ambiguous

Litigation alleging inability to foreclose may limit our ability to recover on some of the loans we pahase or that are held in RMBS.

In October 2007, a judge in the U.S. District Cdartthe Northern District of Ohio dismissed 14ea# which plaintiffs sought to
foreclose mortgages held in securitization trugtsuting that those plaintiffs lacked standing tes In each case, the judge found that the
plaintiff was not the owner of the note and mortgag the date the foreclosure complaint was fifedourt. Similar actions have been
initiated in other states. These actions arise r@sult of the common practice in the mortgagestg of mortgage loan sellers providing the
loan purchasers unrecorded assignments of the agmtg blank (i.e., the assignments do not namaghiginee). Some courts have held that
before a note holder may initiate a foreclosure,rtbte holder must show proof to the court thatntloetgage itself has been properly assigned
to the purchaser each time the mortgage loan s dmd. It is sometimes difficult to obtain ahén record originals of each successive
assignment. It is still unclear whether higherrtowill uphold the requirements imposed by theseer courts.

Until the issue is settled, investors in mortgagpnk are at risk of being unable to foreclose daulied loans, or at a minimum will
be subject to delays until all assignments in thesrcof the loan’s title are properly recorded.u$hwe may not be able to recover on some of
the loans we purchase or that are held in the RMB®urchase, or we may suffer delays in foreclgsltef which could result in a lower
return on our loans and RMBS.

In addition, some legislatures are also institustrgngent proof of ownership requirements thagrxiser must satisfy before
commencing a foreclosure action. By way of examiple New York State Assembly earlier this year ateeihstate law to require that any
foreclosure complaint contain an affirmative allegathat the plaintiff is the owner and holdertioé note and mortgage at issue or has been
delegated the authority to institute the foreclesattion by the owner and holder of the subjecttgage and note. Again, laws of this type
may limit our ability to recover on some of therisave purchase or that are held in the RMBS wehase, and may result in delays in the
foreclosure process, all of which could result ipwaer return on our loans and RMBS.
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Legislative action to provide mortgage relief anddreclosure moratoriums may negatively impact our bsiness.

As delinquencies and defaults in residential mayégehave recently increased, there has been aasicg amount of legislative
action that might restrict our ability to foreclosed resell the property of a customer in defakitir example, some recently enacted state
may require the lender to deliver a notice of interforeclose, provide borrowers additional tirnectire or reinstate their loans, impose
mandatory settlement conference and mediation rexpeints, require lenders to offer loan modificagicand prohibit initiation of foreclosure
until the borrower has been provided time to cansith foreclosure counselors.

Alternatively, new federal legislation and somed&gjures provide a subsidy to a customer to pettmitustomer to continue to
make payments during a period of hardship. Irctse of a subsidy, it is possible that we mightdagiired to forego a portion of the amount
otherwise due on the loan for a temporary period.

Finally, some state legislatures are requiringdlmging lenders to give special notices to tenanpsoperties that the lenders are
foreclosing on, or to permit the tenants to renimithe property for a period of time following tfareclosure.

These laws delay the initiation or completion akfdosure proceedings on specified types of resimlenortgage loans, or otherwi
limit the ability of residential loan servicerstake actions that may be essential to preserveatue of the mortgage loans on behalf of the
holders of MBS. Any such limitations are likety tause delayed or reduced collections from mooigagnd generally increased servicing
costs. Any restriction on our ability to foreclase a loan, any requirement that we forego a porsicthe amount otherwise due on a loan or
any requirement that we modify any original loams is likely to negatively impact our businessaficial condition, liquidity and results of
operations.

United States military operations may increase rislof Servicemembers Civil Relief Act shortfalls.

Under the federal Service members Civil Relief Achorrower who enters active military service rafitee origination of his or her
mortgage loan generally may not be required toipiyest above an annual rate of 6%, and the ratiehis restricted from exercising
certain enforcement remedies, during the periati@borrower’s active duty status. Several stalss have enacted or are considering
similar laws with varying applicability and effecfs a result of military operations in Afghanistand Iraq, the United States has placed a
substantial number of armed forces reservists agmilmers of the National Guard on active duty status possible that the number of
reservists and members of the National Guard plaoeattive duty status may remain at high levelafoextended time. To the extent that a
member of the military, or a member of the armadde reserves or National Guard who is called teeduty, is a mortgagor on a loan
underlying RMBS we may purchase, the interestliati¢ation of the Servicemembers Civil Relief Aeind any comparable state law, will
apply. An increase in the number of borrowersrtglddvantage of those laws may increase servicipgreses for loans underlying RMBS
may purchase, and may also reduce cash flow andtdgrest payments collected from those borrowérghe event of default, the laws may
result in delaying or preventing the loan servitem exercising otherwise available remedies fdadk. If these events occur, they may
result in interest shortfalls on the loans in uhdeg RMBS we may purchase that will be borne bidkes of those RMBS.

Risks Related To Our Common Stock
The market price and trading volume of our shares bcommon stock may be volatile.

At December 31, 2009, we had 670,371,587 sharesmion stock issued and outstanding. The marke pf shares of our
common stock may be highly volatile and could bigjesct to wide fluctuations. In addition, the tnaglivolume in our shares of common st
may fluctuate and cause significant price variaitmoccur. We cannot assure you that the markea pf our shares of common stock will
not fluctuate or decline significantly in the futuiSome of the factors that could negatively aféectshare price or result in fluctuations in the
price or trading volume of our shares of commomwlsiaclude those set forth under “Risk Factors” aadVarning About Forward-Looking
Statements” and in the information incorporated @éaelmed to be incorporated by reference hereiwegliss:
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« actual or anticipated variations in our quartegheiating results or business prospects;

« changes in our earnings estimates or publicatioesd#arch reports about us or the real estatetiyglus

« an inability to meet or exceed securities analgstsimates or expectations;

« increases in market interest rates;

« hedging or arbitrage trading activity in our shasésommon stock;

« capital commitments;

« changes in market valuations of similar companies;

- changes in valuations of our assets;

» adverse market reaction to any increased indebssdme incur in the future;

- additions or departures of management personnel;

- actions by institutional shareholders;

« speculation in the press or investment community;

« changes in our distribution policy;

« regulatory changes affecting our industry generatlpur business;

« general market and economic conditions; and

« future sales of our shares of common stock or gi&siconvertible into, or exchangeable or exeldisdor, our shares of comm
stock.

Common stock eligible for future sale may have advse effects on our share price.

If we issue a significant number of shares of commstock or securities convertible into common stiock short period of time, the
could be a dilution of the existing common stock ardecrease in the market price of the commorkstoc

We cannot predict the effect, if any, of futureesabf common stock, or the availability of shamsfiture sales, on the market price
of the common stock. Sales of substantial amoafintemmon stock, or the perception that such sadetd occur, may adversely affect
prevailing market prices for the common stock.D&cember 31, 2009, we had 670,371,587 shares ahoonstock issued and
outstanding. Annaly owned approximately 6.7% aof autstanding shares of common stock as of DeceBhe2009. Our equity incentive
plan provides for grants of restricted common sta#t other equity-based awards up to an aggref)&% of the issued and outstanding
shares of our common stock (on a fully diluted $gat the time of the award, subject to a ceilihg®000,000 shares available for issuance
under the plan. On January 2, 2008, our execuoffigers and other employees of our Manager andraiependent directors were grantec
a group, 1,301,000 shares of our restricted comstamek. The restricted common stock granted toeaecutive officers and other employees
of our Manager or its affiliates vests in equatafisments on the first business day of each figcalrter over a period of 10 years beginning on
January 2, 2008, of which 269,800 shares veste@ a/8b5 shares were forfeited as of December 319.20he restricted common stock
granted to our executive officers and other empdsyaf our Manager or its affiliates that remainstariding and are unvested will fully vest
on the death of the individual. The 1,031,200 skaf our restricted common stock granted to oacetive officers and other employees of
our Manager or its affiliates and to our independfrectors that remains unvested as of Decembe2@®19 represents approximately 0.15%
of the issued and outstanding shares of our constamk (on a fully diluted basis). We will not madlistributions on shares of restricted
stock that have not vested.

Annaly has agreed with us to a further lock-up @@rn connection with the shares purchased by Ancahcurrently with our initial
public offering that will expire at the earlier Gf November 15, 2010 or (ii) the termination oéthanagement agreement. Annaly has a¢
with us to a further lock-up period in connectioithithe shares purchased by Annaly immediately afte 2008 secondary offering that will
expire at the earlier of (i) October 24, 2011 drtfie termination of the management agreemenmafnhas agreed with us to a further lock-
up period in connection with the shares purchagefirmaly immediately after our April 15, 2009 sedary offering that will expire at the
earlier of (i) April 15, 2012 or (ii) the terminati of the management agreement. Annaly has agritedisvto a further lock-up period in
connection with the shares purchased by Annaly idiately after our May 27, 2009 secondary offeringttwill expire at the earlier of (i)
May 27, 2012 or (ii) the termination of the managetragreement. When the lock-up periods expirsetitemmon shares will become
eligible for sale, in some cases subject to theirements of Rule 144 under the Securities Act9#3], as amended, or the Securities
Act. The market price of our common stock maylidecsignificantly when the restrictions on reshjecertain of our stockholders
lapse. Sales of substantial amounts of commork stothe perception that such sales could occur adagrsely affect the prevailing market
price for our common stock.
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There is a risk that our stockholders may not receie distributions or that distributions may not grow over time.

We intend to make distributions on a quarterly $asit of assets legally available to our stockhwldle amounts such that all or
substantially all of our REIT taxable income in legear is distributed. We have not establishedrammim distribution payment level and ¢
ability to pay distributions may be adversely aféetby a number of factors, including the risk éastdescribed herein. All distributions will
be made at the discretion of our board of direcami will depend on our earnings, our financialditian, maintenance of our REIT status
and other factors as our board of directors mayndedevant from time to time. Among the factorstttauld adversely affect our results of
operations and impair our ability to pay distriloms to our stockholders are:

« the profitability of the investments of net procedbm our equity raises;

« our ability to make profitable investments;

- margin calls or other expenses that reduce our ftash

« defaults in our asset portfolio or decreases invéilee of our portfolio; and

« the fact that anticipated operating expense lavelg not prove accurate, as actual results mayfvany estimates.

A change in any one of these factors could affectability to make distributions. We cannot assyoe that we will achieve
investment results that will allow us to make acéfed level of cash distributions or year-to-y@areases in cash distributions.

Market interest rates may have an effect on the trding value of our shares.

One of the factors that investors may considereiciding whether to buy or sell our shares is osiritiution rate as a percentage of
our share price relative to market interest rdfasarket interest rates increase, prospectivestors may demand a higher distribution rate or
seek alternative investments paying higher dividemdinterest. As a result, interest rate fluctuaiand capital market conditions can affect
the market value of our shares. For instancetdfr@st rates rise, it is likely that the marketerof our shares will decrease as market rates or
interest-bearing securities, such as bonds, inereas

Investing in our shares may involve a high degreef oisk.

The investments we make in accordance with oursimrent objectives may result in a high amountsk vwhen compared to
alternative investment options and volatility osdaf principal. Our investments may be highly siegitve and aggressive, are subject to
credit risk, interest rate, and market value riskspng others, and therefore an investment in loares may not be suitable for someone with
lower risk tolerance.

Broad market fluctuations could negatively impact he market price of our common stock.

The stock market has experienced extreme pricevalnehe fluctuations that have affected the markitepof many companies in
industries similar or related to ours and that Hasen unrelated to these companies’ operating ipesaioces. These broad market fluctuations
could reduce the market price of our common stBakthermore, our operating results and prospecistradelow the expectations of public
market analysts and investors or may be lower thase of companies with comparable market capitttins, which could lead to a material
decline in the market price of our common stock.

Future sales of shares may have adverse consequenfm investors.

We may issue additional shares in subsequent potiicdngs or private placements to make new innesits or for other purposes.
We are not required to offer any such shares ttiegi shareholders on a pre-emptive basis. Thergfiomay not be possible for existing
shareholders to participate in such future shaugeis, which may dilute the existing shareholdetgrests in us. Annaly owns approximately
6.7% of our shares of common stock excluding umeeshares of restricted stock granted to our ekexafficers and employees of our
Manager or its affiliates. Annaly will be permittesubject to the requirements of Rule 144 undeiStcurities Act, to sell such shares upon
the earlier of (i) (a) November 15, 2010 with resge shares acquired concurrently with our inigiablic offering and (b) October 24, 2011
with respect to shares Annaly acquired immediaaétigr our 2008 secondary offering (c) April 15, 204ith respect to shares Annaly
acquired immediately after our April 2009 secondafifering (d) May 27, 2012 with respect to sharemaly acquired immediately after our
May 2009 secondary offering or (ii) the terminatmfithe management agreement.
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Our charter and bylaws contain provisions that mayinhibit potential acquisition bids that stockholders may consider favorable, and
the market price of our common stock may be lowersa result.

Our charter and bylaws contain provisions that havanti-takeover effect and inhibit a change intmard of directors. These
provisions include the following:

« There are ownership limits and restrictions on transferability and ownership in our charter. To qualify as a REIT for each taxa
year after 2007, not more than 50% of the valueuwfoutstanding stock may be owned, directly orstattively, by five or fewe
individuals during the second half of any calengear. In addition, our shares must be beneficialljned by 100 or more perse
during at least 335 days of a taxable year of 1athmor during a proportionate part of a shortzalde year for each taxable y
after 2007. To assist us in satisfying these testscharter generally prohibits any person fromdiieially or constructively ownir
more than 9.8% in value or number of shares, whieh&s more restrictive, of any class or serie®wf outstanding capital sto
These restrictions may discourage a tender offestloer transactions or a change in the composiifoaur board of directors
control that might involve a premium price for ahares or otherwise be in the best interests ofstmakholders and any she
issued or transferred in violation of such reswits being automatically transferred to a trustdocharitable beneficiary, there
resulting in a forfeiture of the additional shai

« Our charter permits our board of directors to issue stock with terms that may discourage a third party from acquiring us . Our charte
permits our board of directors to amend the chavt#rout stockholder approval to increase the tatahber of authorized shares
stock or the number of shares of any class or samé to issue common or preferred stock, haviefepences, conversion or ot
rights, voting powers, restrictions, limitations #&s dividends or other distributions, qualificatsonor terms or conditions
redemption as determined by our board. Thus, oardcould authorize the issuance of stock witm$eand conditions that col
have the effect of discouraging a takeover or ottersaction in which holders of some or a majooityour shares might receiv
premium for their shares over the t-prevailing market price of our shari

« Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act. Maryland law provides that “control shares” ofcarporation acquired in acontrol shar
acquisition” will have no voting rights except tbe extent approved by a vote of twords of the votes eligible to be cast on
matter under the Maryland Control Share Acquisithan. “Control shares”means voting shares of stock that, if aggregateid all
other shares of stock owned by the acquirer oegpe&ct of which the acquirer is able to exercisdict the exercise of voti
power (except solely by a revocable proxy), woultitke the acquirer to exercise voting power inctiteg directors within one of tl
following ranges of voting power: one-tenth or moré less than one-third, ortieird or more but less than a majority, or a may
or more of all voting power. ,*‘control share acquisitic’’ means the acquisition of control shares, subjecettain exception:

If voting rights or control shares acquired in atrol share acquisition are not approved at a $ioiders’meeting, or if the acquirir
person does not deliver an acquiring person stateagerequired by the Maryland Control Share Adtjais Act, then, subject to certain
conditions and limitations, the issuer may redeama all of the control shares for fair valuevtfting rights of such control shares are
approved at a stockholders’ meeting and the aago@eomes entitled to vote a majority of the shafestock entitled to vote, all other
stockholders may exercise appraisal rights. Ouaveylcontain a provision exempting acquisitionswfshares from the Maryland Control
Share Acquisition Act. However, our board of distmay amend our bylaws in the future to repeahodify this exemption, in which case
any control shares of our company acquired in @robshare acquisition will be subject to the Maryli Control Share Acquisition Act.

« Business Combinations . Under Maryland law, “business combinationsgietween a Maryland corporation and an intere
stockholder or an affiliate of an interested staéler are prohibited for five years after the mmstent date on which the interes
stockholder becomes an interested stockholder.eThasiness combinations include a merger, conswitashare exchange or,
circumstances specified in the statute, an asmes$far or issuance or reclassification of equigusiées. An interested stockholde
defined as
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0 any person who beneficially owns 10% or more ofubiing power of the corporati’s shares; c

o an affiliate or associate of the corporation whoary time within the twarear period before the date in question, wa
beneficial owner of 10% or more of the voting powéthe then outstanding voting stock of the coagtion.

A person is not an interested stockholder undesthieite if the board of directors approved in adeathe transaction by which such
person otherwise would have become an interesbetttsblder. However, in approving a transaction,libard of directors may provide that
its approval is subject to compliance, at or atftertime of approval, with any terms and conditidesermined by the board. After the five-
year prohibition, any business combination betw&erMaryland corporation and an interested stoaldrajjenerally must be recomment
by the board of directors of the corporation andraped by the affirmative vote of at least:

0 80% of the votes entitled to be cast by holdersutétanding shares of voting stock of the corporatand

0 two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast by holdefrs/oting stock of the corporation, other than sisaheld by th
interested stockholder with whom or with whoseliatfie the business combination is to be effectededd by an affiliate ¢
associate of the interested stockholi

These super-majority vote requirements do not aifphe corporation’s common stockholders receiveiaimum price, as defined
under Maryland law, for their shares in the forncah or other consideration in the same form egigusly paid by the interested
stockholder for its shares. The statute permit®ua exemptions from its provisions, including imess combinations that are exempted by
the board of directors before the time that therggted stockholder becomes an interested stoaho@ur board of directors has adopted a
resolution which provides that any business contlindetween us and any other person is exempoed thhe provisions of the Maryland
Control Share Acquisition Act, provided that thesim@ss combination is first approved by the boddirectors. This resolution, however,
may be altered or repealed in whole or in parhgttame. If this resolution is repealed, or thatbof directors does not otherwise approve a
business combination, this statute may discourdiggr®from trying to acquire control of us and ease the difficulty of consummating any
offer.

« Saggered board. Our board of directors is divided into three claseédirectors. The current terms of the direcexpire in 201(
2011 and 2012 respectively. Directors of each ctaeschosen for thregear terms upon the expiration of their curreningrani
each year one class of directors is elected bystihekholders. The staggered terms of our direattag reduce the possibility o
tender offer or an attempt at a change in conédn though a tender offer or change in controhinie in the best interests of
stockholders

« Our charter and bylaws contain other possible anti-takeover provisions. Our charter and bylaws contains other provisibias ma;
have the effect of delaying, deferring or prevegtinchange in control of us or the removal of éxgstlirectors and, as a result, cc
prevent our stockholders from being paid a premfiontheir common stock over the tt-prevailing market price

Our rights and the rights of our stockholders to t&ke action against our directors and officers are tited, which could limit
stockholder's recourse in the event of actions nah their best interests.

Our charter limits the liability of our directora@ officers to us and our stockholders for monayalges, except for liability resultii
from:

« actual receipt of an improper benefit or profinioney, property or services; or
« a final judgment based upon a finding of active detiberate dishonesty by the director or offideattwas material to the cause
action adjudicate

for which Maryland law prohibits such exemptionrfrdiability.
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In addition, our charter authorizes us to obligate company to indemnify our present and formeeators and officers for actions
taken by them in those capacities to the maximurargpermitted by Maryland law. Our bylaws requiseto indemnify each present or
former director or officer, to the maximum exteetmitted by Maryland law, in the defense of anycegexing to which he or she is made, or
threatened to be made, a party because of hig @ehéce to us. In addition, we may be obligatefLind the defense costs incurred by our
directors and officers.

Tax Risks
Your investment has various federal income tax risk.

This summary of certain tax risks is limited to federal tax risks addressed below. Additionalgigkissues may exist that are not
addressed in this Form 10-K and that could affeetféderal tax treatment of us or our stockhold@itss is not intended to be used and
cannot be used by any stockholder to avoid pesdhigt may be imposed on stockholders under tleeniat Revenue Code, or the Code. We
strongly urge you to seek advice based on youicpdait circumstances from an independent tax adwiencerning the effects of federal, s
and local income tax law on an investment in comstock and on your individual tax situation.

Complying with REIT requirements may cause us to foego otherwise attractive opportunities.

To qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purmysge must continually satisfy various tests regarthe sources of our income,
the nature and diversification of our assets, theunts we distribute to our stockholders and theeyghip of our stock. To meet these tests,
we may be required to forego investments we migfierovise make. We may be required to make disiobatto stockholders at
disadvantageous times or when we do not have figadsly available for distribution. Thus, complianwith the REIT requirements may
hinder our investment performance.

Complying with REIT requirements may force us to Iguidate otherwise attractive investments.

To qualify as a REIT, we generally must ensure #tahe end of each calendar quarter at least T3#ewalue of our total assets
consists of cash, cash items, government secuaitidgjualified REIT real estate assets, includergain mortgage loans and mortgage-
backed securities. The remainder of our investritesécurities (other than government securitiesqralifying real estate assets) generally
cannot include more than 10% of the outstandingngatecurities of any one issuer or more than 10%etotal value of the outstanding
securities of any one issuer. In addition, in gahero more than 5% of the value of our assete(dtian government securities, qualifying
real estate assets, and stock in one or more T&a8)onsist of the securities of any one issuet,ranmore than 25% of the value of our total
securities can be represented by securities oboneore TRSs. If we fail to comply with these regments at the end of any quarter, we
must correct the failure within 30 days after the ef such calendar quarter or qualify for cerstitutory relief provisions to avoid losing ¢
REIT status and suffering adverse tax consequeAses.result, we may be required to liquidate fraumn portfolio otherwise attractive
investments. These actions could have the effexdifcing our income and amounts available forifigtion to our stockholders.

Potential characterization of distributions or gainon sale may be treated as unrelated business taxalincome to taxexempt investors.

If (1) all or a portion of our assets are subjedtie rules relating to taxable mortgage poolsw@pre a “pension-held REIT 6r (3)
a tax-exempt stockholder has incurred debt to @selor hold our common stock, then a portion offibibutions to and, in the case of a
stockholder described in clause (3), gains realarethe sale of common stock by such tax-exempkbtider may be subject to federal
income tax as unrelated business taxable incomeruhd Internal Revenue Code.

Classification of a securitization or financing arangement we enter into as a taxable mortgage poadud subject us or certain of our
stockholders to increased taxation.

We intend to structure our securitization and ftiag arrangements as to not create a taxable ngertgaol. However, if we have
borrowings with two or more maturities and, (1)sadoorrowings are secured by mortgages or morthagked securities and (2) the
payments made on the borrowings are related tpaliments received on the underlying assets, treehdhrowings and the pool of mortga
or mortgage-backed securities to which such bomga/irelate may be classified as a taxable mortgageunder the Internal Revenue Code.
If any part of our investments were to be treated taxable mortgage pool, then our REIT statuddvoot be impaired, but a portion of the
taxable income we recognize may, under regulatioh® issued by the Treasury Department, be claizetl as “excess inclusion” income
and allocated among our stockholders to the exteand generally in proportion to the distributioms make to each stockholder. Any excess
inclusion income would:
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« not be allowed to be offset by a stockholder’'saprating losses;

« be subject to a tax as unrelated business incomstdckholder were a tax-exempt stockholder;

» be subject to the application of federal incomeuédthholding at the maximum rate (without reductimn any otherwise applicak
income tax treaty) with respect to amounts allogablforeign stockholders; al

» be taxable (at the highest corporate tax ratetaather than to our stockholders, to the extemteixcess inclusion income relate
stock held by disqualified organizations (generatlx-exempt organizations not subject to tax on unrdldiasiness incom
including governmental organization

Failure to qualify as a REIT would subject us to feleral income tax, which would reduce the cash avaible for distribution to our
stockholders.

We qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purmosemmencing with our taxable year ending on Deeer8lh, 2007. However, t
federal income tax laws governing REITs are extigroemplex, and interpretations of the federal meotax laws governing qualification as
a REIT are limited. Qualifying as a REIT requiresta meet various tests regarding the nature oéssets and our income, the ownership of
our outstanding stock, and the amount of our digtibns on an ongoing basis. While we intend torajgeso that we will qualify as a REIT,
given the highly complex nature of the rules gouwggrREITS, the ongoing importance of factual defeations, including the tax treatment
certain investments we may make, and the posgibilifuture changes in our circumstances, no asseraan be given that we will so qualify
for any particular year. If we fail to qualify afREIT in any calendar year and we do not qualifyciertain statutory relief provisions, we
would be required to pay federal income tax ontaxable income. We might need to borrow money brassets to pay that tax. Our payn
of income tax would decrease the amount of ourrireavailable for distribution to our stockholddfarthermore, if we fail to maintain our
qualification as a REIT and we do not qualify fertain statutory relief provisions, we no longerulebbe required to distribute substantially
all of our REIT taxable income to our stockholdéssless our failure to qualify as a REIT were exatuander federal tax laws, we would be
disqualified from taxation as a REIT for the foarable years following the year during which quedifion was lost.

Failure to make required distributions would subjed us to tax, which would reduce the cash availabl®r distribution to our
stockholders.

To qualify as a REIT, we must distribute to ourcktwolders each calendar year at least 90% of oUif Rixable income (excluding
certain items of non-cash income in excess of aiipé threshold), determined without regard to dleeluction for dividends paid and
excluding net capital gain. To the extent that atis$y the 90% distribution requirement, but distite less than 100% of our taxable income,
we will be subject to federal corporate incomedaxour undistributed income. In addition, we wiltur a 4% nondeductible excise tax on the
amount, if any, by which our distributions in arglendar year are less than the sum of:

« 85% of our REIT ordinary income for that year;
« 95% of our REIT capital gain net income for thaayeand
« any undistributed taxable income from prior years.

We intend to distribute our REIT taxable incometw stockholders in a manner intended to satigfy9lo distribution requirement
and to avoid both corporate income tax and the d#@leductible excise tax. However, there is no requént that TRSs distribute their after-
tax net income to their parent REIT or their staaklers. Our taxable income may substantially exargchet income as determined by
GAAP, because, for example, realized capital lossk®e deducted in determining our GAAP net inagrbut may not be deductible in
computing our taxable income. In addition, we mayeist in assets that generate taxable income essxaf economic income or in advance
of the corresponding cash flow from the assetgh&extent that we generate such non-cash taxadxenie in a taxable year, we may incur
corporate income tax and the 4% nondeductible exeis on that income if we do not distribute suatbme to stockholders in that year. As a
result of the foregoing, we may generate less fiashthan taxable income in a particular year.Hattevent, we may be required to use cash
reserves, incur debt, or liquidate non-cash asgatses or at times that we regard as unfavotatdatisfy the distribution requirement and to
avoid corporate income tax and the 4% nondeduatikdése tax in that year. Moreover, our abilitydistribute cash may be limited by
financing facilities we may enter into.
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Ownership limitations may restrict change of contrd or business combination opportunities in which oustockholders might receive a
premium for their shares.

In order for us to qualify as a REIT for each tdrajear after 2007, no more than 50% in value ofcaistanding capital stock may
be owned, directly or indirectly, by five or fewiadividuals during the last half of any calendaaneé‘Individuals” for this purpose include
natural persons, private foundations, some emplbgeefit plans and trusts, and some charitabléstrli® preserve our REIT qualification,
our charter generally prohibits any person fronectily or indirectly owning more than 9.8% in valuein number of shares, whichever is
more restrictive, of any class or series of thestauntding shares of our capital stock. This ownerbhitation could have the effect of
discouraging a takeover or other transaction irctviiolders of our common stock might receive a juemnfor their shares over the then
prevailing market price or which holders might beé to be otherwise in their best interests.

Our ownership of and relationship with any TRS whit we may form or acquire will be limited, and a falure to comply with the limits
would jeopardize our REIT status and may result inthe application of a 100% excise tax.

A REIT may own up to 100% of the stock of one oren®RSs. A TRS may earn income that would not aifying income if
earned directly by the parent REIT. Both the subsjdand the REIT must jointly elect to treat thésidiary as a TRS. Overall, no more than
25% of the value of a REIT’s assets may consistaék or securities of one or more TRSs. A TRS pay federal, state and local income tax
at regular corporate rates on any income thatitseedn addition, the TRS rules impose a 100% ext@g on certain transactions between a
TRS and its parent REIT that are not conductednoaren’s-length basis. Any TRS that we may form wiquay federal, state and local
income tax on its taxable income, and its afterraiincome would be available for distributiorubut would not be required to be
distributed to us. We anticipate that the aggregalge of the TRS stock and securities owned byilibe less than 25% of the value of our
total assets (including the TRS stock and secajitieurthermore, we will monitor the value of onvéstments in our TRSs to ensure
compliance with the rule that no more than 25%hef\talue of our assets may consist of TRS stocksandrities (which is applied at the end
of each calendar quarter). In addition, we willuicize all of our transactions with taxable RELbsidiaries to ensure that they are entered
into on arm’slength terms to avoid incurring the 100% excisedascribed above. There can be no assurance, hgwleaewe will be able t
comply with the 25% limitation discussed abovematoid application of the 100% excise tax discdsgzove.

We could fail to qualify as a REIT or we could becme subject to a penalty tax if income we recogniZeom certain investments that
are treated or could be treated as equity interestm a foreign corporation exceeds 5% of our grossicome in a taxable year.

We may invest in securities, such as subordinatiexiasts in certain CDO offerings, that are treatecbuld be treated for federal
(and applicable state and local) corporate incaametirposes as equity interests in foreign corpmrat Categories of income that qualify for
the 95% gross income test include dividends, isteaad certain other enumerated classes of passiome. Under certain circumstances, the
federal income tax rules concerning controlledifpmecorporations and passive foreign investmentpamies require that the owner of an
equity interest in a foreign corporation includecamts in income without regard to the owner’s rptef any distributions from the foreign
corporation. Amounts required to be included iroime under those rules are technically neither adivuelends nor any of the other
enumerated categories of passive income specifiétei 95% gross income test. Furthermore, theme dear precedent with respect to the
qualification of such income under the 95% groseme test. Due to this uncertainty, we intendrtotlour direct investment in securities t
are or could be treated as equity interests imgidn corporation such that the sum of the amowetare required to include in income with
respect to such securities and other amounts efjnatifying income do not exceed 5% of our grog®ine. We cannot assure you that we
will be successful in this regard. To avoid ank ia$ failing the 95% gross income test, we maydxguired to invest only indirectly, through a
domestic TRS, in any securities that are or coelddnsidered to be equity interests in a foreigpaation. This, of course, will result in any
income recognized from any such investment to bgestito federal income tax in the hands of the TWIsich may, in turn, reduce our yield
on the investment.
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Liquidation of our assets may jeopardize our REIT galification.

To qualify as a REIT, we must comply with requirertseregarding our assets and our sources of inclhiwe. are compelled to
liquidate our investments to repay obligationsuo lenders, we may be unable to comply with thesgiirements, ultimately jeopardizing our
qualification as a REIT, or we may be subject id&a% tax on any resultant gain if we sell assetgainsactions that are considered to be
prohibited transactions.

The tax on prohibited transactions will limit our ability to engage in transactions, including certairmethods of securitizing mortgage
loans that would be treated as sales for federal tome tax purposes.

A REIT’s net income from prohibited transactionsihject to a 100% tax. In general, prohibitedgdemtions are sales or other
dispositions of property, other than foreclosurepgrty, but including mortgage loans, held prinyafdlr sale to customers in the ordinary
course of business. We might be subject to thisftar sold or securitized our assets in a maringtrwas treated as a sale for federal income
tax purposes. Therefore, to avoid the prohibitadgactions tax, we may choose not to engage iaicesdles of assets at the REIT level and
may securitize assets only in transactions thatraated as financing transactions and not as &aléax purposes even though such
transactions may not be the optimal execution preatax basis. We could avoid any prohibited taatisns tax concerns by engaging in
securitization transactions through a TRS, sulifecertain limitations described above. To the mixteat we engage in such activities thro
domestic TRSs, the income associated with suctiitiesi will be subject to federal (and applicabiate and local) corporate income tax.

Characterization of the repurchase agreements we & into to finance our investments as sales for ¥apurposes rather than as
secured lending transactions would adversely affectur ability to qualify as a REIT.

We have entered into and will enter into repurctegeements with a variety of counterparties toeaghour desired amount of
leverage for the assets in which we invest. Whemmter into a repurchase agreement, we generdllgssets to our counterparty to the
agreement and receive cash from the counterpangy cbunterparty is obligated to resell the ass®t& b us at the end of the term of the
transaction, which is typically 30 to 90 days. Wiidwe that for federal income tax purposes we dltreated as the owner of the assets that
are the subject of repurchase agreements anchthatpurchase agreements will be treated as seleundgidg transactions notwithstanding
that such agreement may transfer record ownershiheassets to the counterparty during the terth@fgreement. It is possible, however,
that the IRS could successfully assert that wendidown these assets during the term of the repgechgreements, in which case we could
fail to qualify as a REIT.

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our abil ity to hedge effectively.

The REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Codestantially limit our ability to hedge mortgage-kad securities and related
borrowings. Under these provisions, our annualgjlesome from non-qualifying hedges, together \aitly other income not generated from
qualifying real estate assets, cannot exceed 258@radinnual gross income. In addition, our aggeegabss income from non-qualifying
hedges, fees, and certain other non-qualifyingcasucannot exceed 5% of our annual gross incoma.rAsult, we might have to limit our
use of advantageous hedging techniques or implethes¢ hedges through a TRS, which we may forrherfuture. This could increase the
cost of our hedging activities or expose us to gm@sks associated with changes in interest ths we would otherwise want to bear.

We may be subject to adverse legislative or regulaty tax changes that could reduce the market pricef our common stock.

At any time, the federal income tax laws or regala governing REITs or the administrative intetatiens of those laws or
regulations may be amended. We cannot predict whérany new federal income tax law, regulatioradministrative interpretation, or any
amendment to any existing federal income tax lagulation or administrative interpretation, will adopted, promulgated or become
effective and any such law, regulation or intergtien may take effect retroactively. We and ouckhmlders could be adversely affected by
any such change in, or any new, federal incomdataxregulation or administrative interpretation.
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Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for the educed tax rates.

Legislation enacted in 2003 generally reduces thgimum tax rate for dividends payable to domegtclholders that are
individuals, trusts and estates from 38.6% to 18%©(gh 2010). Dividends payable by REITs, howeass,generally not eligible for the
reduced rates. Although this legislation does doessely affect the taxation of REITs or dividempdsd by REITSs, the more favorable rates
applicable to regular corporate dividends couldseainvestors who are individuals, trusts and estat@erceive investments in REITS to be
relatively less attractive than investments in lstocnon-REIT corporations that pay dividends, vwhiould adversely affect the value of the
stock of REITs, including our common stock.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

We do not own any property. Our executive and adstrative office is located at 1211 Avenue of Araericas, Suite 2902, New
York, New York 10036, telephone (646) 454-3759. $Mare this office space with Annaly and FIDAC.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are not party to any material litigation or legeceedings, or to the best of our knowledge, thngatened litigation or legal
proceedings, which, in our opinion, individuallyiarthe aggregate, would have a material advefsetedn our results of operations or
financial condition.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of SecurtHolders

None.
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Part Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Rty Securities

Our common stock began trading publicly on the Newk Stock Exchange under the trading symbol “Cldfi’ November 16,
2007. As of February 17, 2010, we had 670,371db@2es of common stock issued and outstanding wirch held by approximately
81,155 beneficial holders. The following tablesfeeth, for the periods indicated, the high, lowdaclosing sales prices per share of our
common stock as reported on the New York Stock BERgk composite tape and the cash dividends deglarezshare of our common stock.

Stock Price
High Low Close
Quarter Ended December 31, 2( $ 414 % 3.4¢ $ 3.8¢
Quarter Ended September 30, 2! $ 43C$% 320% 3.8
Quarter Ended June 30, 20 $ 3.7¢ $ 3.0 $ 3.4¢
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $ 36C$% 24¢ $ 3.3¢
Quarter Ended December 31, 2( $ 61C$ 19C $ 3.4
Quarter Ended September 30, 2! $ 90t 3% 47 % 6.21
Quarter Ended June 30, 20 $ 1417 $ 9.01 $ 9.01
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $ 195¢ $ 1200 $ 12.3(
Common
Dividends
Declared Per
Share
Quarter Ended December 31, 2( $ 0.17
Quarter Ended September 30, 2( $ 0.12
Quarter Ended June 30, 20 $ 0.0¢
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $ 0.0¢€
Quarter Ended December 31, 2( $ 0.04
Quarter Ended September 30, 2! $ 0.1¢
Quarter Ended June 30, 20 $ 0.1¢€
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $ 0.2¢€

We pay quarterly dividends and distribute to oockholders all or substantially all of our taxalileome in each year (subject to
certain adjustments). This enables us to quatifittie tax benefits accorded to a REIT under théeC@/e have not established a minimum
dividend payment level and our ability to pay diaidis may be adversely affected for the reasonsidedainder the caption “Risk Factors.”
All distributions will be made at the discretionair board of directors and will depend on our eay®, our financial condition, maintenance
of our REIT status and such other factors as oardof directors may deem relevant from time toetim
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Share Performance Graph

The following graph and table set forth certairomfiation comparing the yearly percentage changenmulative total return on our
common stock to the cumulative total return of $t@endard & Poor's Composit&d0 Stock Index or S&P 500 Index, and the BloomBREGT
Mortgage Index, or BBG REIT Index, an industry irad mortgage REITs. The comparison is for thaquefrom November 15, 2007, the
day our common stock commenced trading on the NY&BEecember 31, 2009 and assumes the reinvesthdividends. The graph and
table assume that $100 was invested in our comiook and the two other indices on November 15, 200@on written request we will
provide stockholders with a list of the REITs iradul in the BBG REIT Index.

140
120
100
20 r
60
40 r
20 r
.D i i i i i
11/15407 12551507 12/51/08 12/531/00
—{— Chimera — -—- 5&P 500 Index ---4--- BBGREIT Index
11/15/2007 12/31/2007 12/31/200¢ 12/31/200¢

Chimer 100 119 27 33

S&P 500 Inde 100 101 64 81

BBG REIT Inde; 100 105 65 78

The information in the share performance graphtahté has been obtained from sources believed teliadle, but neither its
accuracy nor its completeness can be guaranteee historical information set forth above is notesarily indicative of future
performance. Accordingly, we do not make or enéensy predictions as to future share performance.

The share performance graph and table shall ndebmed, under the Securities Act of 1933, as antkmléhe Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, to be (i) “soliciting met& or “filed” or (ii) incorporated by referendey any general statement into any filing
made by us with the Securities and Exchange Cononissxcept to the extent that we specifically mpmoates such share performance graph
and table by reference.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

We have adopted a long term stock incentive plaimeentive Plan, to provide incentives to our ipeledent directors, employees of
our Manager and its affiliates to stimulate théfoes towards our continued success long-term g¢inaamd profitability and to attract, reward
and retain personnel and other service providéhe Incentive Plan authorizes the Compensation Citieerof the board of directors to grant
awards, including incentive stock options as defineder Section 422 of the Code, or ISOs, non-fiedlstock options, or NQSOs, restricted
shares and other types of incentive awards. Téentive Plan authorizes the granting of optionstber awards for an aggregate of
40,000,000 shares of common stock. For a desamijti our Incentive Plan, see Note 9 to the Codatdid Financial Statements.

The following table provides information as of Dad®er 31, 2009 concerning shares of our common stothorized for issuance
under our existing Incentive Plan.

Number of Securities Weighted Average Number of Securities
to be Issued Upon Exercise Price of Remaining Available
Exercise of Outstanding for Future Issuance
Outstanding Options, Options, Warrants, Under Equity
Plan Categor Warrants, and Righi and Rights Compensation Plar
Equity Compensation Plans Approved
by Stockholder: 1,031,20C - 38,968,80(

Equity Compensation Plans Not
Approved by Stockholders (
Total 1,031,20(C - 38,968,80(

(1) We do not have any equity plans that have sehtapproved by our stockholde

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data are derivehf our audited consolidated financial statememtste years ended December
2009 and 2008. The selected financial data shoeilegtad in conjunction with the more detailed infation contained in the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Notes thereto and “Managés Discussion and Analysis of Financial Coonditind Results of Operations”
included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition Higlghts
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzed
December December

31, 31,

2009 2008
Nonr-Agency Mortgag-Backed securitie $ 2,398,86'$ 613,10!
Agency Mortgag-Backed securitie $ 1,690,022 242,36.
Securitized loans held for investm $ 470,53($ 583,34t
Total asset $ 4,618,320 $ 1,477,50
Repurchase agreemel $ 1,716,39 $ =
Repurchase agreements with affilia $ 259,000 $ 562,11
Securitized dek $ 390,35($% 488,74
Total liabilities $ 2,491,761 $ 1,063,04
Shareholders' equit $ 2,126,56: $ 414,45
Book value per shai $ 317 % 2.3¢
Number of shares outstandi 670,371,58 177,198,21
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Consolidated Statement of Operations Highlight:
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slag

For the For the For the perioc
November 21,
year ende year ende 2007 to
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2009 2008 2007

Net interest incom $ 263,45¢ $ 44,71 $ 3,071
Net income (loss $ 32398. $ (119,809 $ (2,906
Income (loss) per she-basic and dilute: $ 064 $ 1.90 $ (0.0¢)
Average share«basic and dilute: 507,042,42 63,155,87. 37,401,73
Dividends declared per share $ 04z $ 0.6z $ 0.02¢

(1) For applicable period as reported in our egmi@nnouncement
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of i@ncial Condition and Result of Operations

The following discussion of our financial conditiand results of operations should be read in catijom with the consolidated
financial statements and notes to those statemwitgled in Item 8 of this Form 10-K. The discassmay contain certain forward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertaintiewird-looking statements are those that are mtbfical in nature. As a result of many
factors, such as those set forth under “Risk Fatiarthis Form 10-K, our actual results may diffeaterially from those anticipated in such
forward-looking statements.
Executive Summary

We are a specialty finance company that invedtiseedirectly or indirectly through our subsidiarjén residential mortgage-backed
securities, or RMBS, residential mortgage loanal, @state related securities and various othet akEsses. We are externally managed by
Fixed Income Discount Advisory Company, which wieréo as FIDAC or our Manager. FIDAC is a fixattdme investment management
company that is registered as an investment adwislethe Securities and Exchange Commission, d2.SEIDAC is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Annaly Capital Management, Inc., omaly. FIDAC has a broad range of experience inagang investments in Agency
RMBS, non-Agency RMBS, collateralized debt obligas, or CDOs, and other real estate related invagsrincluding managing CreXus
Investment Corp., a publicly traded REIT.

We have elected and intend to qualify to be taxeed REIT for federal income tax purposes commenwiitly our taxable year
ending on December 31, 2007. Our targeted assstas and the principal investments we expect ke imaeach are as follows:

« RMBS, consisting of:

o Non-Agency RMBS, including investment-grade and noresitment grade classes, including the BB-ratedatBdr and non-
rated classe

0 Agency RMBS
- Whole mortgage loans, consisting of:
o Prime mortgage loar
0 Jumbo prime mortgage loa
0 Alt-A mortgage loan
« Asset Backed Securities, or ABS, consisting of:
o Commercial mortgac-backed securities, or CME
o Debt and equity tranches of collateralized debigalblons, or CDO:
0 Consumer and non-consumer ABS, including investrgesaie and non-investment grade classes, inclutiegBB-rated, B-

rated and nc-rated classe
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We completed our initial public offering on Noveml2d, 2007. In that offering and in a concurremgte offering we raised net
proceeds of approximately $533.6 million. We costgdl a second public offering and second privéeriofj on October 29, 2008. In these
offerings we raised net proceeds of approximat81$0 million. During the second quarter 2009,completed a third public offering and
third private offering on April 21, 2009, and a fdupublic offering and fourth private offering &8, 2009. In these offeringsye raised ne
proceeds of approximately $850.9 million and $6IRikion.

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubsteturns to our investors over the long-term, prity through dividends and
secondarily through capital appreciation. We idtemachieve this objective by investing in a broass of financial assets to construct an
investment portfolio that is designed to achievmative risk-adjusted returns and that is strieduo comply with the various federal income
tax requirements for REIT status and to maintainexemption from the Investment Company Act of 19tthe 1940 Act.

Since we commenced operations in November 200 have focused our investment activities on acquinog-Agency RMBS and
on purchasing residential mortgage loans that baea originated by select high-quality originatamsjuding the retail lending operations of
leading commercial banks. Our investment portf@ioeighted toward non-Agency RMBS. At DecemhkrZ)09, approximately 67.7% of
our investment portfolio was nokgency RMBS, 25.0% of our investment portfolio wegency RMBS, and 7.3% of our investment portf
was secured residential mortgage loans. At DeceBhe2008, approximately 52.5% of our investmemtfplio was non-Agency RMBS,
13.7% of our investment portfolio was Agency RMB8&d 33.8% of our investment portfolio was secussidential mortgage loans. We
expect that over the near term our investment plastfvill continue to be weighted toward RMBS, saitfjto maintaining our REIT
qualification and our 1940 Act exemption. In aduit we have engaged in and depending on markelitomms, anticipate continuing to
engage in transactions with residential mortgagditeg operations of leading commercial banks aherohigh-quality originators in which
we identify and re-underwrite residential mortgémgns owned by such entities, and rather than asing and securitizing such residential
mortgage loans ourselves, we and the originatoddwstnucture the securitization and we would pusehthe resulting mezzanine and
subordinate non-Agency RMBS. We may also engagénmilar transactions with non-Agency RMBS in whigb would acquire AAA-rated
non-Agency RMBS and re-securitize those securitié& would sell some or all of the resulting AAAed RMBS and retain some of the
AAA-rated RMBS and other subordinate bonds and-é&sts.

Our investment strategy is intended to take adggntd opportunities in the current interest raté aredit environment. We will
adjust our strategy to changing market conditionshifting our asset allocations across these varasset classes as interest rate and credit
cycles change over time. We believe that ouresgsgtcombined with FIDAG experience, will enable us to pay dividends aitdexe capite
appreciation throughout changing market cycles. efiect to take a long-term view of assets andliligls, and our reported earnings and
mark-to-market valuations at the end of a finan@galorting period will not significantly impact oabjective of providing attractive risk-
adjusted returns to our stockholders over the kemngp.

We use leverage to seek to increase our potestialns and to fund the acquisition of our assétsr income is generated primarily
by the difference, or net spread, between the ircamm earn on our assets and the cost of our bargswiWe expect to finance our
investments using a variety of financing sourcetuiting, when available, repurchase agreementsheaise facilities, securitizations,
commercial paper and term financing CDOs. We magage our debt by utilizing interest rate hedgash sis interest rate swaps, to reduce
the effect of interest rate fluctuations relatedto debt.

Recent Developments

We commenced operations in November 2007 in thstaidchallenging market conditions which affectieel cost and availability
of financing from the facilities with which we exgted to finance our investments. These instrumentsded repurchase agreements,
warehouse facilities, securitizations, asset-baddedmercial paper, or ABCP, and term CDOs. Theidiidy crisis which commenced in
August 2007 affected each of these sources—andititividual providers—to different degrees; sormarses generally became unavailable,
some remained available but at a high cost, ana seene largely unaffected. For example, in theirelpase agreement market, non-Agency
RMBS became harder to finance, depending on the ayjassets collateralizing the RMBS. The amaentn and margin requirements
associated with these types of financings wereiaipacted. At that time, warehouse facilitiesitmhce whole loan prime residential
mortgages were generally available from major bablsat significantly higher cost and had greatargin requirements than previously
offered. It was also extremely difficult to termdnce whole loans through securitization or bdeslsed by a CDO structure. Financing
using ABCP froze as issuers became unable to ptagell) their securities, which resulted, in somstances, in forced sales of mortgage-
backed securities, or MBS, and other securitiecvhirther negatively impacted the market valuthese assets.
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Although the credit markets had been undergoingmtubulence, as we started ramping up our poatfoliate 2007, we noted a
slight easing. We entered into a number of remselagreements we could use to finance RMBS. nimaia 2008, we entered into two
whole mortgage loan repurchase agreements. Asgantto see the availability of financing, we wals seeing better underwriting
standards used to originate new mortgages. We emoad buying and financing RMBS and also enteredagreements to purchase whole
mortgage loans. We purchased high credit quadisgis which we believed we would be readily ablintnce.

Beginning in mid-February 2008, credit markets eipeed a dramatic and sudden adverse changeseleeity of the limitation on
liquidity was largely unanticipated by the market€redit once again froze, and in the mortgageketavaluations of nomgency RMBS ani
whole mortgage loans came under severe pressiis.credit crisis began in early February 2008, whdeavily leveraged investor
announced that it had to de-lever and liquidatertfgio of approximately $30 billion of non-Agen®MBS. Prices of these types of
securities dropped dramatically, and lenders stdawering the prices on non-Agency RMBS that theid as collateral to secure the loans
they had extended. The subsequent failure in M20€l8 of Bear Stearns & Co. worsened the crisis.th& year progressed, deterioration in
the fair value of our assets continued, we recearetimet margin calls under our repurchase agreismehich resulted in our obtaining
additional funding from third parties, includingpfn Annaly Capital Management, Inc., or Annaly, #iliate, and taking other steps to
increase our liquidity.

The challenges of the first half of 2008 contintim®ughout 2008 and 2009, as financing difficultiese severely pressured liquic
and asset values. In September 2008, Lehman Bsattadings, Inc., a major investment bank, experéel a major liquidity crisis and
failed. Securities trading remains limited and tgage securities financing markets remain challemgss the industry continues to report
negative news. This dislocation in the non-Agemoytgage sector has made it difficult for us toagbshort-term financing on favorable
terms. As a result, we have completed loan stzations in order to obtain long-term financingdaerminated our un-utilized whole loan
repurchase agreements in order to avoid payingusage fees under those agreements. In additiohawecontinued to seek funding from
Annaly. Under these circumstances, we expect® aations intended to protect our liquidity, whitly include reducing borrowings and
disposing of assets as well as raising capital.

Subsequent to June 30, 2008, there were increaadentoncerns about Freddie Mac and Fannie Médisyao withstand future
credit losses associated with securities heldeir ihvestment portfolios, and on which they pravglarantees, without the direct support of
the U.S. Government. In September 2008, Fannie dide-reddie Mac were placed into the conservardtthe Federal Housing Finance
Agency, or FHFA, their federal regulator, pursu@nits powers under The Federal Housing FinancaiRéary Reform Act of 2008, a part of
the Housing and Economic Recovery Act of 2008.thesconservator of Fannie Mae and Freddie Maci-Hi€A controls and directs the
operations of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and mgtake over the assets of and operate Fannie Mh&m@adie Mac with all the powers of
the shareholders, the directors, and the officeFsaonie Mae and Freddie Mac and conduct all bssiné Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac; (2)
collect all obligations and money due to Fannie Maé Freddie Mac; (3) perform all functions of FienMae and Freddie Mac which are
consistent with the conservator’'s appointmentp{éserve and conserve the assets and propertynofé-slae and Freddie Mac; and (5)
contract for assistance in fulfilling any functiagtivity, action or duty of the conservator.

In addition to FHFA becoming the conservator of iarMae and Freddie Mac, the Treasury and FHFA leatvered into Preferred
Stock Purchase Agreements, or PSPAs between thsumeand Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac pursuant kchvthe Treasury will ensure that
each of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac maintains dipesiet worth. On December 24, 2009, the U.Sa3uey amended the terms of the U.S.
Treasurys PSPAs with Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac to rerttow&200 billion per institution limit establishedder the PSPAs until the e
of 2012. The U.S. Treasury also amended the PS#Agespect to the requirements for Fannie MaeFreddie Mac to reduce their
portfolios.

53




The Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008E&SA, was also enacted. The EESA provides ti$e Secretary of the
Treasury with the authority to establish a Troubdasdet Relief Program, or TARP, to purchase framariicial institutions up to $700 billion
equity or preferred securities, residential or careial mortgages and any securities, obligationstler instruments that are based on or
related to such mortgages, that in each case vigisated or issued on or before March 14, 2008yasas any other financial instrument t
the U.S. Secretary of the Treasury, after consattatith the Chairman of the Board of Governorshef Federal Reserve System, determines
the purchase of which is necessary to promote €iimhmarket stability, upon transmittal of suchetetination, in writing, to the appropriate
committees of the U.S. Congress. The EESA alsaighes for a program that would allow companiesigure their troubled assets.

In addition, the U.S. Government, the Board of Gowes of the Federal Reserve System, or FederariResand other governmen
and regulatory bodies have taken or are consideaiigg other actions to address the financiaixri§he Term Asset-Backed Securities
Loan Facility, or TALF, was first announced by theS. Department of Treasury, or the Treasury, onddtber 25, 2008, and has been
expanded in size and scope since its initial ancenment. Under the TALF, the Federal Reserve BaiNew York makes nomecourse loar
to borrowers to fund their purchase of eligibleegsscurrently certain asset-backed securitiesibutesidential mortgage-backed securities.
On March 23, 2009, the U.S. Treasury announcedhpirery plans to expand the TALF beyond non-moregA@S to include legacy
securitization assets, including non-Agency RMB8& @MBS that were originally rated AAA and issuegpto January 1, 2009. On May 1,
2009, the Federal Reserve published the term$igoexpansion of TALF to CMBS and announced thainmng in June 2009, up to $100
billion of TALF loans would be available to finanperchases of CMBS. The Federal Reserve has atsmuaced that, beginning in July
2009, eligible legacy CMBS may also be purchasettuthe TALF. Many legacy CMBS, however, have ther ratings downgraded, and
at least one rating agency, S&P, has announceduttiher downgrades are likely in the future agperty values have declined. These
downgrades may significantly reduce the quantitieghcy CMBS that are TALF eligible. There camioeassurance that we will be able to
utilize this program successfully or at all.

In addition, on March 23, 2009 the government amced that the Treasury in conjunction with the FabdBeposit Insurance
Corporation, or FDIC, and the Federal Reserve, dotgate the Public-Private Investment ProgranP,RIP. The PPIP aims to recreate a
market for specific illiquid residential and comrmiat loans and securities through a number of jpirilic and private investment funds. The
PPIP is designed to draw new private capital ineorharket for these securities and loans by progidovernment equity co-investment and
attractive public financing. As these programssiilein early stages of operations, it is not gib& for us to predict how these programs will
impact our business.

There can be no assurance that the EESA, TALF, BiPdEher policy initiatives will have a beneficialpact on the financial
markets, including current extreme levels of vditgti We cannot predict whether or when such antimay occur or what impact, if any, s
actions could have on our business, results ofatipers and financial condition.

The liquidity crisis could adversely affect onenoore of our lenders and could cause one or mooeiofenders to be unwilling or
unable to provide us with additional financing. iSTbould potentially increase our financing costd eeduce liquidity. If one or more major
market participants fails, it could negatively inspthe marketability of all fixed income securiti@scluding mortgage securities, and this
could negatively impact the value of the securitiesur portfolio, thus reducing its net book valueurthermore, if many of our lenders are
unwilling or unable to provide us with additionaildncing, we could be forced to sell our assetmahopportune time when prices are
depressed.

Trends

We expect the results of our operations to be &fteby various factors, many of which are beyondamntrol. Our results of
operations will primarily depend on, among othéngis, the level of our net interest income, thekatwwalue of our assets, and the supply of
and demand for such assets. Our net interest iecatnich reflects the amortization of purchase puems and accretion of discounts, varies
primarily as a result of changes in interest rates;owing costs, and prepayment speeds, whichmieasurement of how quickly borrowers
pay down the unpaid principal balance on their gagge loans.

Prepayment Speeds. Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the Constapmaynent Rate, or CPR, vary according to interdssrdahe
type of investment, conditions in financial marketsmpetition and other factors, none of which barmpredicted with any certainty. In
general, when interest rates rise, it is relativess attractive for borrowers to refinance theirtgage loans, and as a result, prepayment
speeds tend to decrease. When interest rateprigfiayment speeds tend to increase. For mortgageahd RMBS investments purchased at
a premium, as prepayment speeds increase, the dwfdnnome we earn decreases because the purptfers@m we paid for the bonds
amortizes faster than expected. Conversely, deesda prepayment speeds result in increased ineochean extend the period over which
we amortize the purchase premium. For mortgage doa@rRMBS investments purchased at a discountggapment speeds increase, the
amount of income we earn increases because ottidesation of the accretion of the discount imi@iest income. Conversely, decreases in
prepayment speeds result in decreased income arektend the period over which we accrete the @mselliscount into interest income.
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Rising Interest Rate Environment. As indicated above, as interest rates rise, prepayspeeds generally decrease. Rising interest
rates, however, increase our financing costs wimali result in a net negative impact on our ner@seincome. In addition, if we acquire
Agency and non-Agency RMBS collateralized by montielset adjustable-rate mortgages, or ARMs, arekthand five-year hybrid ARMs,
such interest rate increases could result in deessi@ our net investment income, as there coulltbring mismatch between the interest
reset dates on our RMBS portfolio and the finandiosts of these investments. We expect, howévat pur fixed-rate assets would decline
in value in a rising interest rate environment #rat our net interest spreads on fixed rate asseiisl decline in a rising interest rate
environment to the extent such assets are finawadbdloating rate debt.

Falling Interest Rate Environment. As interest rates fall, prepayment speeds genaralhgase. Falling interest rates, however,
decrease our financing costs which may resultrietgpositive impact on our net interest incomeaddition, if we acquire Agency and non-
Agency RMBS collateralized by monthly reset adjbktaate mortgages, or ARMs, and three- and fivarygbrid ARMs, such interest rate
decreases could result in increases in our nesimant income, as there could be a timing mismiagtiveen the interest rate reset dates on
our RMBS portfolio and the financing costs of theéseestments. We expect, however, that our fisa@d-assets would increase in value in a
falling interest rate environment and that ourintdrest spreads on fixed rate assets could ineli@as falling interest rate environment to the
extent such assets are financed with floatingdets.

Credit Risk. One of our strategic focuses is acquiring assetshwhie believe to be of high credit quality. Weibeé this strategy
will generally keep our credit losses and finanaingts low. We retain the risk of potential créd#ses on all of the residential mortgage
loans we hold in our portfolio. Additionally, sor&our investments in RMBS may be qualifying il&tis for purposes of maintaining our
exemption from the 1940 Act because we retain &d06@&nership interest in the underlying loans. & purchase all classes of these
securitizations, we have the credit exposure outtterlying loans. Prior to the purchase of tresmirities, we conduct a due diligence
process that allows us to remove loans that doneett our credit standards based on loan-to-vatigsrdoorrowerstredit scores, income al
asset documentation and other criteria that webelio be important indications of credit risk.

Sze of Investment Portfolio. The size of our investment portfolio, as measurnethb aggregate unpaid principal balance of our
mortgage loans and aggregate principal balanceroiortgage related securities and the other aggetsvn is also a key revenue
driver. Generally, as the size of our investmentfplio grows, the amount of interest income wesetige increases. The larger investment
portfolio, however, drives increased expenses amewe additional interest expense to finance thielpase of our assets.
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Since changes in interest rates may significarffgcaour activities, our operating results depandarge part, upon our ability to
effectively manage interest rate risks and prepaymisks while maintaining our status as a REIT.

Current Environment. The current weakness in the broader mortgageetsadould adversely affect one or more of our gaden
lenders or any of our lenders and could cause pn@ee of our potential lenders or any of our lesde be unwilling or unable to provide us
with financing or require us to post additionallatdral. In general, this could potentially ingeaur financing costs and reduce our liquidity
or require us to sell assets at an inopportune. tiile expect to use a number of sources to finaocénvestments, including repurchase
agreements, warehouse facilities, securitizatiasset-backed commercial paper and term CDOs. @urarket conditions have affected the
cost and availability of financing from each of $besources and their individual providers to dédferdegrees; some sources generally are
unavailable, some are available but at a high emst,some are largely unaffected. For exampltharrepurchase agreement market,
borrowers have been affected differently dependimthe type of security they are financing. NoreAgy RMBS have been harder to
finance, depending on the type of assets collatarglthe RMBS. The amount, term and margin rezgpagnts associated with these types of
financings have been negatively impacted.

Currently, warehouse facilities to finance wholarigrime residential mortgages are generally availitom major banks, but at
significantly higher cost and have greater margiuirements than previously offered. Many majorkdsahat offer warehouse facilities have
also reduced the amount of capital available to eetrants and consequently the size of those tiasilbffered now are smaller than those
previously available.

It is currently a challenging market to term finarvehole loans through securitization or bonds iddyea CDO structure. The higt
rated senior bonds in these securitizations and €@@tures currently have liquidity, but at mucidev spreads than issues priced in recent
history. The junior subordinate tranches of thesectures currently have few buyers and currentetazonditions have forced issuers to
retain these lower rated bonds rather than seththe

Certain issuers of ABCP have been unable to placceo(l) their securities, which has resulted, am® instances, in forced sales of
MBS and other securities which has further neghtivepacted the market value of these assets. eltresket conditions are fluid and likely
to change over time. As a result, the executfasuo investment strategy may be dictated by tret and availability of financing from these
different sources.

If one or more major market participants fails treywise experiences a major liquidity crisis, aswhe case for Bear Stearns & Co.
in March 2008, and Lehman Brothers Holdings IncS@aptember 2008, it could negatively impact theketability of all fixed income
securities and this could negatively impact theigalf the securities we acquire, thus reducingnetibook value. Furthermore, if many of
our potential lenders or any of our lenders areilling or unable to provide us with financing, weutd be forced to sell our securities or
residential mortgage loans at an inopportune tirhemprices are depressed.

As described above, there has been significantrgovent action in the capital markets. Howeverrdtean be no assurance that the
government’s actions with respect to Freddie Mat annie Mae, the EESA, the TARP, the TALF, theRP&1 other policy initiatives will
have a beneficial impact on the financial markéte.the extent the market does not respond favptalthese actions, or these actions do not
function as intended, our business may not redbiwanticipated positive impact from them. In &ddi the U.S. Government, Federal
Reserve and other governmental and regulatory bddiee taken or are considering taking other astioraddress the financial crisis. We
cannot predict whether or when such actions mayromcwhat impact, if any, such actions could hameur business, results of operations
and financial condition.

In the current market, it may be difficult or impiisle to obtain third party pricing on the investiteewe purchase. In addition,
validating third party pricing for our investmemigy be more subjective as fewer participants mayilb@g to provide this service to
us. Moreover, the current market is more illigtiidn in recent history for some of the investmaspurchase. llliquid investments typic:
experience greater price volatility as a ready madoes not exist.  As volatility increases quidity decreases we may have greater
difficulty financing our investments which may négaly impact our earnings and the execution ofiouestment strategy.
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Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with accounting principles generatigepted in the United States
America, or GAAP. These accounting principles mequire us to make some complex and subjectivesides and assessments. Our most
critical accounting policies will involve decisioasd assessments that could affect our reportedsaasd liabilities, as well as our reported
revenues and expenses. We believe that all afebisions and assessments upon which our consalifiaincial statements are based will
be reasonable at the time made and based upomiation available to us at that time. At each qeraghd, we calculate estimated fair value
of the investment portfolio using a pricing mod®le validate our pricing model by obtaining indeghent pricing on all of our assets and
performing a verification of those sources to ownadnternal estimate of fair value. The followiage our most critical accounting policies:

Mortgage Loan Sales and Securitizations

We periodically enter into transactions in which sed financial assets, such as RMBS, mortgageslaawl other assets. We also
securitize and re-securitize financial assets. s€hrmnsactions are recorded as either a “salettenibans held for investment are removed
from the consolidated statements of financial coodior as a “financing” and are classified as ‘{Bézed loans held for investment” on our
consolidated statements of financial condition,at&ling upon the structure of the securitizationgeation. In these securitizations and re-
securitizations we sometimes retain or acquiresseri subordinated interests in the securitizetbegecuritized assets. Gains and losses on
such securitizations or re-securitizations aregated using a financial components approach tiatdes on control. Under this approach,
after a transfer of financial assets, an entitpgaizes the financial and servicing assets it adsfand the liabilities it has incurred,
derecognizes financial assets when control has sigeendered, and derecognizes liabilities wheimguished.

We determine the gain or loss on sale of mortgaged by allocating the carrying value of the undeg mortgage between
securities or loans sold and the interests retdiaséd on their fair values. The gain or lossade is the difference between the cash proc
from the sale and the amount allocated to the g&ior loans sold.

Valuation of Investments

FASB establishes a framework for measuring faiugalnd establishes a three-level valuation hibyafiar disclosure of fair value
measurement and enhances disclosure requiremerfiigsrfealue measurements. The valuation hieraistbased upon the transparency of
inputs to the valuation of an asset or liabilityohshe measurement date. The three levels aneeadkhs follows:

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology awetgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imgquoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs that
are observable for the asset or liability, eitheeatly or indirectly, for substantially the fukttm of the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to overall fair value.

Non-Agency and Agency MBS are valued using a pgicirodel. The MBS pricing model incorporates swadidrs as coupons,
prepayment speeds, spread to the Treasury andswags, convexity, duration, periodic and life cegosd credit enhancement. Management
reviews the fair values determined by the pricingdel and compares its results to dealer quote$vegten each investment to validate the
reasonableness of the valuations indicated byribng models. The dealer quotes incorporate commarket pricing methods, including
spread measurement to the Treasury curve or intertesswap curve as well as underlying charatiesisf the particular security including
coupon, periodic and life caps, rate reset pergstier, additional credit support and expecteddiféhe security.

Although we utilize a pricing model to compute thé value of the securities in our portfolio, walidate our fair values by seeking
indications of fair value from thirgarty dealers and/or pricing services. The vaiitgldlf fair value among dealers and pricing sersican b¢
wide at this time as full liquidity for the non-Agey RMBS market has yet to return. In additiomréhare fewer participants in the RMBS
sector available to fair value investments. Indggregate, our internal valuations of the se@gitin which we received dealer marks were
1.05% lower than the aggregated dealer marks.

Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtbtsy management to ensure the changes are agteopts markets and
products develop and the pricing for certain praslbecomes more transparent, we continue to refin@aluation methodologies. The
methods used by us may produce a fair value cdionlthat may not be indicative of net realizabddue or reflective of future fair values.
Furthermore, while we believe our valuation methadsappropriate and consistent with other mar&gigipants, the use of different
methodologies, or assumptions, to determine thiesédile of certain financial instruments could tegua different estimate of fair value at
the reporting date. We use inputs that are cuaemf the measurement date, which may includegeef market dislocation, during which
price transparency may be reduced. This condat@arid cause our financial instruments to be retflagdsfrom Level 2 to Level 3.
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Other-than-Temporary Impairments

FASB issued new guidance to improve the recognifiwesentation and disclosure of other-thamporary impairments, or OTTI, «
debt and equity securities. We evaluate each imasst in our RMBS portfolio for OTTI quarterly orare often if market conditions
warrant. The amortized cost of each investmeahininrealized loss position is compared to thegmtegalue of expected future cash flow:
the position. If the amortized cost of the segustless than the present value of its expecteddicash flows, an other-than-temporary credit
impairment has occurred. If we do not intend tibrsar are required to sell the debt security ptmits anticipated recovery, the credit loss, if
any, is recognized in the statement of earningdevte balance of impairment related to otherdegis recognized in OCI. If we intend to
sell the debt security, or will be required to $ké security before its anticipated recovery,ftheOTTI is recognized in the statement of
earnings. The determination cannot be overcommdnyagement judgment of the probability of collegtall cash flows previously projecte

Securitized Loans Held for Investment

Our securitized residential mortgage loans are cm®g of fixed-rate and adjustable-rate loans. tlybmge loans are designated as
held for investment, recorded on trade date, aaatamied at their principal balance outstandirgs pny premiums or discounts which are
amortized or accreted over the estimated life efitfan, less allowances for loan losses.

Non-Agency and Agency Residential Mortgage-BackedeSurities

We invest in RMBS representing interests in oblayat backed by pools of mortgage loans and caoyelsecurities at fair value
estimated using a pricing model. Management revign fair values generated by the model to deterwhether prices are reflective of the
current market. Management performs a validatfahefair value calculated by the pricing modeldmmparing its results to independent
prices provided by dealers in the securities anitMod party pricing services. If dealers or indagent pricing services are unable to provi
price for an asset, or if the price provided bynthe deemed unreliable by FIDAC, then the assdtheilvalued at its fair value as determined
in good faith by FIDAC. In the current marketpigy be difficult or impossible to obtain third pagricing on certain of our investments. In
addition, validating third party pricing for ouniastments may be more subjective as fewer partitspaay be willing to provide this service
to us. Moreover, the current market is more iliigiihan in recent history for some of the investtaeme own. llliquid investments typically
experience greater price volatility as a ready readoes not exist. As volatility increases or idlity decreases, we may have greater
difficulty financing its investments which may néigaly impact its earnings and the execution ofritestment strategy.

Our investment securities are classified as eittagling investments, available-for-sale investmentseld-to-maturity investments.
We intend to hold our RMBS as available-for-sald as such may sell any of our RMBS as part of @eral management of our
portfolio. All assets classified as available-fade are reported at estimated fair value, witkealired gains and losses included in other
comprehensive income (loss).

When the fair value of an available-for-sale sdgus less than its amortized cost for an extenuleribd or there is a significant
decline in value, we consider whether there is O the value of the security. If, based on owalgsis, a credit portion of OTTI exists, the
cost basis of the security is written down to thentcurrent fair value, and the unrealized loggaissferred from accumulated other
comprehensive loss as an immediate reduction oécuearnings (as if the loss had been realizé¢ldeperiod of OTTI). The determination
of OTTlI is a subjective process, and different juegits and assumptions could affect the timing sf kealization.
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We consider the following factors when determin®gT| for a security:
« the length of time and the extent to which the raaxkalue has been less than the amortized cost;
« ourintent not to sell;
« and the financial condition and near-term prospetthe issuer;
« the credit quality and cash flow performance ofgskeurity; and
« whether we will be more likely than not requiredstl the investment before the expected recovery.

The determination of OTTI is made at least quayte we determine an impairment to be other ttamporary we will realize a lo:
which will negatively impact current income.

RMBS transactions are recorded on the trade dRéalized gains and losses from sales of RMBS dsgrdeed based on the
specific identification method and recorded asia ¢Jass) on sale of investments in the stateménperations. Accretion of discounts or
amortization of premiums on available-for-sale sii@s and mortgage loans is computed using thecttffe interest yield method and is
included as a component of interest income in thiement of operations.

Interest Income

Interest income on RMBS and loans held for investngerecognized over the life of the investmernihgshe effective interest
method. Income recognition is suspended for ledmsn, in the opinion of management, a full recowdrincome and principal becomes
doubtful. Income recognition is resumed when tdanlbecomes contractually current and performandemonstrated to be resumed.

Accounting For Derivative Financial Instruments andHedging Activities

Our policies permit us to enter into derivative traats, including interest rate swaps and intaistcaps, as a means of mitigating
our interest rate risk. We intend to use interat# derivative instruments to mitigate interest régk rather than to enhance returns. If we
hedge using interest rate swaps we account foe tinssgruments as either assets or liabilities éndbnsolidated statement of financial
condition, and measure the derivatives at fair@alith realized and unrealized gains and lossasyrézed in earnings.

The FASB issued additional guidance that attempisprove the transparency of financial reportiggoboviding additional
information about how derivative and hedging atitigi affect an entity’s financial position, finaatperformance and cash flows. This
guidance requires the disclosure requirementsddvaltive instruments and hedging activities byuiggg enhanced disclosure about (1) how
and why an entity uses derivative instrumentsh(®y derivative instruments and related hedged itemd (3) how derivative instruments :
related hedged items affect the entity’s finanpiadition, financial performance, and cash flows.

We use derivatives for economic hedging purposteerahan speculation. We will rely on quotatiorani third parties to determine
fair values. If our hedging activities do not amlé our desired results, our reported earningsheadversely affected.

Allowance for Loan Losses

We have established an allowance for loan lossadeatel that management believes is adequate loasad evaluation of known
and inherent probable losses related to our loatigtio. The estimate is based on a variety ofdexincluding current economic conditions,
industry loss experience, the loan originator'slegperience, credit quality trends, loan portfalionposition, delinquency trends, national
and local economic trends, national unemploymet#,ddnanges in housing appreciation or depreciaimmhwhether specific geographic ai
where we have significant loan concentrations apeeencing adverse economic conditions and ev&nik as natural disasters that may
affect the local economy or property values. Uporchase of the pools of loans, we obtained writegmesentations and warranties from the
sellers that we could be reimbursed for the vafub®loan if the loan fails to meet the agreedrupngination standards. Since we have |
history of our own to establish loan trends, we dsénquency trends of the originators and theemtrmarket conditions in determining the
allowance for loan losses. We also performed dligedce procedures on a sample of loans that metiiteria during the purchase
process. We have created an unallocated provisiqorobable loan losses estimated as a percenfabe remaining principal on the
loans. Management’s estimate is based on histaiqeerience of similarly underwritten pools.
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When we determine it is probable that specific @msttially due amounts are uncollectible, the am@ioconsidered
impaired. Where impairment is indicated, a vahmativrite-off is measured based upon the excedseofdcorded investment over the net fair
value of the collateral, reduced by selling cogtay deficiency between the carrying amount of agetand the net sales price of repossesset
collateral is charged to the allowance for loarséss

Income Taxes

We have elected and intend to qualify to be taxed REIT. Therefore we will generally not be sabje corporate federal or state
income tax to the extent that we make qualifyingributions to our stockholders, and provided wesBaon a continuing basis, through
actual investment and operating results, the RE¢irements including certain asset, income, tistion and stock ownership tests.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT, and do not qualffyr certain statutory relief provisions, we wik Isubject to federal, state and local
income taxes and may be precluded from qualifysig &EIT for the subsequent four taxable yearsviolig the year in which we lost our
REIT qualification. Accordingly, our failure to glify as a REIT could have a material adverse ihpacur results of operations and
amounts available for distribution to our stocktevkd

The dividends paid deduction of a REIT for qualifyidividends to its stockholders is computed usimgtaxable income as opposed
to net income reported on the consolidated findstéements. Taxable income, generally, willgifirom net income reported on the
consolidated financial statements because therdetation of taxable income is based on tax prowisiand not financial accounting
principles.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
General Principles

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (ASC 105)

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@or FASB issued The Accounting Standards Cattiic and the Hierarchy
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, or Cadifion which revises the framework for selecting éiccounting principles to be used in
the preparation of financial statements that aesgmted in conformity with Generally Accepted Aatiing Principles or GAAP. The
objective of the Codification is to establish theIB Accounting Standards Codification, or ASC ass sburce of authoritative accounting
principles recognized by the FASB. Codificationsvedfective for us as of September 30, 2009. bptdg the Codification, all non-
grandfathered, non-SEC accounting literature ndtited in the Codification was superseded and dderar-authoritative. Codification
requires any references within our consolidatedrfaial statements be modified from FASB issues$&€A However, in accordance with the
FASB Accounting Standards Codification Notice tan€tituents (v 2.0), we do not reference specifitisas of the ASC but will use broad
topic references.

Our recent accounting pronouncementsosehas been reformatted to reflect the same @gtaonal structure as the ASC. Broad
topic references will be updated with pending cohtes they are released.

Assets

Investments in Debt and Equity Securities (ASC 320)

New guidance was provided to make impairment guidanore operational and to improve the presentatighdisclosure of OTTI
on debt and equity securities, as well as bengfitiarests in securitized financial assets, imficial statements. This guidance was the result
of the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEkn-market study mandated under the EESA. THE& S§recommendation was to
“evaluate the need for modifications (or the eliation) of current OTTI guidance to provide for armaniform system of impairment testing
standards for financial instruments.” The guidareases the OTTI evaluation methodology. PreMiptise analytical focus was on whether
the company had the “intent and ability to ret&nimvestment in the debt security for a periotirak sufficient to allow for any anticipated
recovery in fair value.” Now the focus is on whetthe company (1) has the intent to sell thestment securities, (2) is more likely than
not that it will be required to sell the investmenturities before recovery, or (3) does not exfrertcover the entire amortized cost basis of
the investment securities. Further, the secusignalyzed for credit loss, (the difference betwiberpresent value of cash flows expected to
be collected and the amortized cost basis). Téeitdoss, if any, is then be recognized in théesteent of operations, while the balance of
impairment related to other factors will be recagui in OCI. If the entity intends to sell the sgtyu or will be required to sell the security
before its anticipated recovery, the full OTTI wbk recognized in the statement of operations.
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OTTI has occurred if there has been an adversegeharfuture estimated cash flows and its impaitécted in current earnings. T
determination cannot be overcome by managemenirjadgof the probability of collecting all cash fleygreviously projected. The
objective of OTTI analysis is to determine whetiés probable that the holder will realize sometjpm of the unrealized loss on an impaired
security. Factors to consider when making OTTlglens include information about past events, auroenditions, reasonable and
supportable forecasts, remaining payment termanéial condition of the issuer, expected defawvt#ije of underlying collateral, industry
analysis, sector credit rating, credit enhancenaard,financial condition of guarantor. Our non-Agg RMBS and Agency RMBS
investments fall under this guidance and as suehyilv assess each security for OTTI based on egtichfuture cash flows. This guidance
became effective for us on June 30, 2009.

Broad Transactions

Business Combinations (ASC 805)

This guidance establishes principles and requirésrfen recognizing and measuring identifiable asseid goodwill acquired,
liabilities assumed and any non-controlling intefesa business combination at their fair valuaauisition date. ASC 805 alters the
treatment of acquisition-related costs, businessbimations achieved in stages (referred to aspaagtquisition), the treatment of gains from a
bargain purchase, the recognition of contingenicidmisiness combinations, the treatment of in-@ecesearch and development in a
business combination as well as the treatmentoofgizable deferred tax benefits. ASC 805 is éiffedor business combinations closed in
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008isuaghplicable to business acquisitions completest danuary 1, 2009. We did not make
any business acquisitions during the year endeéidber 31, 2009. The adoption of ASC 805 did noetmwmaterial impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

Consolidation (ASC 810)

On January 1, 2009, FASB amended the guidance adngenon-controlling interests in consolidatedaficial statements. This
guidance required us to classify non-controllinggiasts (previously referred to as “minority insfgas part of consolidated net income and
to include the accumulated amount of non-contrgllinterests as part of stockholders’ equity. Sanhyi, in its presentation of stockholders’
equity, we distinguish between equity amountstaiteble to controlling interest and amounts attabie to the non-controlling interests —
previously classified as minority interest outsadestockholders’ equity. In addition to these fia&l reporting changes, this guidance
provides for significant changes in accountingtezlao non-controlling interests; specifically, i@eases and decreases in its controlling
financial interests in consolidated subsidiariels g reported in equity similar to treasury stadnsactions. If a change in ownership of
consolidated subsidiary results in a loss of cdranal deconsolidation, any retained ownership @gisrare re-measured with the gain or loss
reported in net earnings.

Effective January 1, 2010, the consolidation stassldave been amended by ASU 2009-17. This ameantdipdates the existing
standard and eliminates the exemption from conatitid of a Qualified Special Purpose Entity or QSPHEhe update requires an enterprise
to perform an analysis to determine whether therpnise’s variable interest or interests give ébatrolling financial interest in a variable
interest entity, or VIE. The analysis identifieg fhrimary beneficiary of a VIE as the enterprisa thas both: a) the power to direct the
activities that most significantly impact the eyisteconomic performance and b) the obligationliscab losses of the entity or the right to
receive benefits from the entity which could potaht be significant to the VIE. The update re@sienhanced disclosures to provide use
financial statements with more transparent inforomabout an enterprises involvement in a VIE. tiver, ongoing assessments of whethe
enterprise is the primary beneficiary on a VIE @guired. We expect that we will be required tosmlidate RMBS re-securitization
transactions previously recorded during the yededrDecember 31, 2009 as sales for GAAP beginnitigthe effective date of this
ASU. We expect consolidation of these transacttoriscrease our non-Agency portfolio by includeggproximately $1.3 billion in principal
value of AAA senior securities. In addition, wepext to record a corresponding increase of $1lidiin principal value of non-recourse
liabilities, for which we have no continuing obltgas, in our consolidated financial statementhe €onsolidation is expected to reverse
approximately $98.1 million in previously record8&AP gains on sales of assets related to the neriizations undertaken in 2009. The
reversal of this gain will be accreted into intéiesome over the remaining life of the re-secmetl assets. We are currently considering the
complete impact of this ASU on our consolidatedficial statements.
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On January 27, 2010, the FASB voted to indefinitijer the effective date of ASU 2009-17 for a réipg enterprises interest in
entities for which it is industry practice to isdirgancial statements in accordance with investngentpany standards (ASC 946). This
deferral is expected to most significantly affezparting entities in the investment managementstigiiand therefore, as it stands, has no
material impact on our consolidated financial steats.

Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815)

Effective January 1, 2009 and adopted prospectitietyFASB issued additional guidance attemptinigiorove the transparency of
financial reporting by mandating the provision dflgional information about how derivative and hiedgactivities affect an entitg'financial
position, financial performance and cash flowsisTuidance changed the disclosure requirementicidvative instruments and hedging
activities by requiring enhanced disclosure abadyhpw and why an entity uses derivative instrureef#) how derivative instruments and
related hedged items are accounted for, and (3)derivative instruments and related hedged iterfieziaéin entity’s financial position,
financial performance, and cash flows. To adheithis guidance, qualitative disclosures aboutahbjes and strategies for using derivatives,
guantitative disclosures about fair value amoudfs and losses on derivative instruments, aradodigres about credit-risk-related
contingent features in derivative agreements meshade. This disclosure framework is intendedettelb convey the purpose of derivative
use in terms of the risks that an entity is intagdio manage. The adoption of this ASC had no nah&ffect on our consolidated financial
statements.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (ASC 820)

In response to the deterioration of the credit raemkFASB issued guidance clarifying how fair vataeasurements should be apg
when valuing securities in markets that are navactThe guidance provides an illustrative examptiizing management’s internal cash
flow and discount rate assumptions when relevaséntable data do not exist. It further clarifieshobservable market information and
market quotes should be considered when measwingdiue in an inactive market. It reaffirms thation of fair value as an exit price as of
the measurement date and that fair value analysisransactional process and should not be bregublljed to a group of assets. The
guidance was effective upon issuance includingrgrésiods for which financial statements had n@rbissued. The implementation of this
guidance did not have a material effect on thevaiue of our assets.

In October 2008 the EESA was signed into law. i8act33 of the EESA mandated that the SEC condstidy on mark-to-market
accounting standards. The SEC provided its stadld U.S. Congress on December 30, 2008. Péreaecommendations within the study
indicated that fair value requirements should be improved throdgbelopment of application and best practices guiddor determining fa
value in illiquid or inactive markets.” As a resaf this study and the recommendations thereimpml 9, 2009, the FASB issued additional
guidance for determining fair value when the volwend level of activity for the asset or liabilitgve significantly decreased when compared
with normal market activity for the asset or liatyil(or similar assets or liabilities). The guidangives specific factors to evaluate if there has
been a decrease in normal market activity and, ipsavides a methodology to analyze transactiorguoted prices and make necessary
adjustments to fair value. The objective is teed®ine the point within a range of fair value esties that is most representative of fair value
under current market conditions. This guidanceabrexeffective for the June 30, 2009 reporting meribhe adoption did not have a material
impact on the manner in which we estimate fair @ahor did it have any impact on our financial etia¢nt disclosures.

In August 2009, FASB provided further guidance i8lA2009-05 regarding the fair value measuremelidloilities. The guidance
states that a quoted price for the identical ligbiwhen traded as an asset in an active marketisvel 1 fair value measurement. If the value
must be adjusted for factors specific to the lighithen the adjustment to the quoted price ofabset shall render the fair value measurement
of the liability a lower level measurement. Thigsdance had no material effect on the fair valuatibour liabilities.
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In September 2009, FASB issued guidance in ASU 2008n measuring the fair value of certain alteugsinvestments. This
guidance offers investors a practical expedientfeasuring the fair value of investments in ceréaitities that calculate net asset value or
NAV per share. If an investment falls within trepe of the ASU, the reporting entity is permittiedt not required to use the investn’s
NAYV to estimate its fair value. This guidance madmaterial effect on the fair valuation of ouretssas we do not hold any assets qualif
under this guidance.

In January 2010, FASB issues guidance in ASU 2@,0sBiich increases disclosure regarding the fdirevaf assets. The key
provisions of this guidance include the requirenterdisclose separately the amounts of signifiteamtsfers in and out of Level 1 and Level 2
including a description of the reason for the tfarss Previously this was only required of transfeetween Level 2 and Level 3
assets. Further, reporting entities are requingatdvide fair value measurement disclosures fohetass of assets and liabilities; a class is
potentially a subset of the assets or liabilitiéthin a line item in the statement of financial pio1. Additionally, disclosures about the
valuation techniques and inputs used to measurgdhie for both recurring and nonrecurring failueameasurements are required for either
Level 2 or Level 3 assets. This portion of thedgmice is effective for all interim and annual reéjmor periods after December 15, 2009. The
guidance also requires that the disclosure on &velL3 assets is presented separately informatiopurchases, sales, issuances and
settlements. In other words, Level 3 assets arggmted on a gross basis rather than as one nbenutdowever, this last portion of the
guidance is not effective until December 15, 20A@doption of this guidance results in increasedrote disclosure.

Financial Instruments (ASC 820)

On April 9, 2009, the FASB issued guidance whiajuiees disclosures about fair value of financigtioments for interim reporting
periods as well as in annual financial statememtss guidance became effective June 30, 2009. atlbption did not have any impact on
financial reporting as all financial instruments aurrently reported at fair value in both inteamd annual periods.

Subsequent Events (ASC 855)

ASC 855 provides general standards governing a¢itmufor and disclosures of events that occur dfterbalance sheet date thro
the date of issuance of the consolidated finarste&ements but before the financial statementsaned or are available to be issued. ASC
855 also provides guidance on the period afteb#tience sheet date during which management ofaatheg entity should evaluate events or
transactions that may occur for potential recognitir disclosure in the financial statements, fh@imstances under which an entity should
recognize events or transactions occurring afeebtilance sheet date in its financial statememtghandisclosures that an entity should make
about events or transactions occurring after thanse sheet date. We adopted this ASC effective 30n2009, and adoption had no impact
on our consolidated financial statements. The wermaterial subsequent events through the dassadnce of this Annual Report on Form
10-K.

Transfers and Servicing (ASC 860)

In February 2008, FASB issued guidance addresshegher transactions where assets purchased frartiaytar counterparty and
financed through a repurchase agreement with tine saunterparty can be considered and accountexs feeparate transactions, or are
required to be considered “linked” transactions an&y be considered derivatives. This guidanceiregpurchases and subsequent financing
through repurchase agreements be considered linkeshctions unless all of the following conditi@pply: (1) the initial purchase and the
use of repurchase agreements to finance the p@eimasot contractually contingent upon each o{{2@rthe repurchase financing entered
into between the parties provides full recoursthéotransferee and the repurchase price is fix@dhe financial assets are readily obtainable
in the market; and (4) the financial instrument #marepurchase agreement are not coterminous glindlance was effective on January 1,
2009 and the implementation did not have a mateffatt on our consolidated financial statements.
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On June 12, 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-16 andment update to the accounting standards goygtinéntransfer and
servicing of financial assets. This amendment wgxltte existing standard and eliminates the corafepQSPE clarifies the surrendering of
control to effect sale treatment; and modifiesfthancial components approach — limiting the cirstemces in which a financial asset or
portion thereof should be derecognized when thesfegior maintains continuing involvement. It defirthe term “Participating
Interest”. Under this standard update, the transferor musigréze and initially measure at fair value all assibtained and liabilities incurr
as a result of a transfer, including any retaineddficial interest. Additionally, the amendmentuiegs enhanced disclosures regarding the
transferors risk associated with continuing invahemt in any transferred assets. The amendmeffeistive beginning January 1, 2010 and
is not expected to have a material impact on onsalidated financial statements.

Financial Condition
At December 31, 2009, and 2008 our portfolio carsi®f $4.6 billion and $1.4 billion of RMBS andcseitized loans, respectively.
The following table summarizes certain charactiesstf our portfolio at December 31, 2009, and 2008
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition Higlights

(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzag
December December

31, 31,

2009 2008
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed securitie $ 2,398,86!$ 613,10!
Agency Mortgag-Backed securitie $ 1,690,020 242,36:
Securitized loans held for investm $ 470,53\ $ 583,34t
Total asset $ 4,618,320 $ 1,477,50
Repurchase agreemei $ 1,716,39 $ S
Repurchase agreements with affilia $ 259,000 $ 562,11
Securitized dek $ 390,35($% 488,74
Total liabilities $ 2,491,761 $ 1,063,04
Shareholders' equit $ 2,126,56: $ 414,45
Book value per shai $ 317 % 2.34
Number of shares outstandi 670,371,58 177,198,21

The following tables summarize certain charactiesstf our RMBS portfolio at December 31, 2009 2088. The CPR presentec
the actual experience of the asset class.

Non-Agency RMBS

Agency Securitized
December 31, 20C Senior Subordinater RMBS Loans
Weighted average cost ba $ 7721 % 23.9: $ 103.4. % 101.0¢
Weighted average fair value ( $ 7338 % 233 $ 1045 % 101.0¢
Weighted average coup 5.7/% 5.9(% 5.5(% 5.4%%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 12.9%% 11.5¢% 25.02% 3.14%
Adjustablerate percentage of portfol 29.71% 13.4% 0.0(% 4.14%
Weighted average 3 month CPR at pe-end (2) 17.3% 15.2t% 22.7¢% 18.8t%

Non-Agency RMBS

Agency Securitized
December 31, 20C Senior Subordinater RMBS Loans
Weighted average cost ba $ 98.1: $ 93.8: $ 102.7: $ 101.0¢
Weighted average fair value ( $ 68.4¢ $ 55.0¢ $ 103.5¢ % 101.0¢
Weighted average coup 5.98% 5.35% 6.65% 5.95%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 0.4&% 0.7¢% 13.7(% 15.0(%
Adjustablerate percentage of portfol 50.95% 0.2¢% 0.0(% 18.8(%
Weighted average 3 month CPR at pe-end (2) 12.5% 6.8(% 14.5(% 7.8(%

(1) Securitized loans are carried at amortized.:
(2) Represents the estimated percentage of printigawill be prepaid over the next three monthsdal on historical principal paydowi
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After the reset date, interest rates on our hyadidistable rate RMBS securities adjust annuallgéas spreads over various LIB(
and Treasury indices. These interest rates areduioj caps that limit the amount the applicabterist rate can increase during any year,
known as periodic cap, and through the maturitthefapplicable security, known as a lifetime cape Weighted average periodic cap for the
RMBS portfolio is 0.92% and the weighted averag&imam increases for the RMBS portfolio is 5.27%.

The constant prepayment rate, or CPR, attemptsettiqh the percentage of principal that will begaiel over the next 12 months
based on historical principal paydowns. As interatds rise, the rate of refinancings typicallylohes, which we expect may result in lower
rates of prepayment and, as a result, a lowerg@mt€PR. Conversely, as interest rates fall, tite of refinancings typically increases, which
we expect may result in higher rates of prepayraadt as a result, a higher portfolio CPR.

The following table summarizes certain charactiessaf our non-Agency portfolio at December 31, 2@dd 2008:

December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
Number of securities in portfoli 20¢ 30
Weighted average maturity (yea 28.t 22.1
Weighted average amortized loan to ve 73.8% 74.2%
Weighted average FIC 715.7 717t
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa 415.¢ 394.:
Weighted average percentage owner occu 82.8% 77.€%
Weighted average percentage single family resid 59.9% 54.8%
Weighted average current credit enhancer 12.2% 25.4%
Weighted average geographic concentra CA 44.&% CA 53.(%
FL 17.2% FL 10.6%
NY 7.5% AZ 8.2%
MD 4.9% NV 5.€%
NJ 4.4% NJ 4.1%
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Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities
The tables below summarize our RMBS investmenBeaember 31, 2009 and 2008:

December 31, 20C
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Gross
Principal Unamortized Unamortized  Unrealized Unrealized
Value Premium Discount Gain Loss Fair Value
Non-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ 2,757,21 % 153¢ $ (628,209 $ 83,94¢ $ (192,079 $ 2,022,40
Subordinate: 1,616,03. 10,34¢ (1,239,76) 65,99¢ (76,145 376,45¢
Agency RMBS 1,616,45 55,08 (29 20,76 (2,240 1,690,02!
Total $ 5,989,69 % 66,96: $ (1,868,00) $ 170,70¢ $ (270,469) $ 4,088,89
December 31, 200
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Gross
Principal Unamortizec  Unamortizec Unrealized Unrealized
Value Premium Discount Gain Loss Fair Value
Non-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ 881,11: $ 1,85¢ $ (18,379 $ 3457 $ (265,05) $ 603,00:
Subordinate: 18,34¢ 247 (1,38)) 2,20¢ (9,316) 10,10¢
Agency RMBS 233,97t 6,35( - 2,03¢ - 242,36
Total $ 1,133,443 $ 8,45 $ (19,759 $ 7,701 $ (274,369 $ 855,46

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the RMBS in autfglio were purchased at a net discount to thairvalue and our RMBS had
a weighted average amortized cost of 69.9 and 88spectively.

The table below summarizes the credit ratings ofRMMBS investments at December 31, 2009 and 2008:

RMBS Portfolio
December 31, December 31,

2009 2008
AAA 39.41% 97.28%
AA 0.75% 0.4(%
A 0.55% 0.04%
BBB 1.07% 0.02%
BB 1.71% 0.02%
B 2.1€% 0.01%
Below B or not rated 54.21% 2.22%
Total 100.0(% 100.0(%
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The tables below summarize our RMBS according édr #stimated weighted average life classificatias®f December 31, 2009
and 2008:

December 31, 20C
(dollars in thousand:

Non-Agency
Non-Agency Non-Agency Subordinatet Agency
Non-Agency Subordinatet Senior RMB¢ RMBS RMBS
Senior RMBS  RMBS Fair  Agency RMBS  Amortized Amortized Amortized
Weighted Average Lifi Fair Value Value Fair Value Cost Cost Cost
Less than one ye: $ 20,53 $ 137 % - $ 20,54¢ $ 76 $ -
Greater than one year
and less than five yea 1,520,80! 204,48 1,690,02! 1,631,46. 244,93° 1,671,50:
Greater than five yea 481,06! 171,84( - 478,53( 141,59: -
Total $ 2,02240 $ 376,45¢ $ 1,690,020 $ 2,130,541 $ 386,600 $ 1,671,50
December 31, 200
(dollars in thousand:
Non-Agency
Non-Agency Non-Agency Subordinatet Agency
Non-Agency Subordinatet Senior RMB¢ RMBS RMBS
Senior RMBS  RMBS Fair  Agency RMBS  Amortized Amortized Amortized
Weighted Average Lifi Fair Value Value Fair Value Cost Cost Cost
Less than one ye: $ - % - % - % - $ - $ =
Greater than one year
and less than five yea 520,73 5,06¢ 242,36 729,49! 6,01z 240,32¢
Greater than five yea 82,26¢ 5,03t - 135,10: 11,19¢ -
Total $ 603,00. $ 10,10 $ 242,36. $ 864,59° $ 1721 $ 240,32t

Actual maturities of RMBS are generally shortemtistéated contractual maturities, as they are afteby the contractual lives of the
underlying mortgages, periodic payments of prinicipad prepayments of principal. The stated cotuieddinal maturity of the mortgage
loans underlying our portfolio of RMBS ranges u@Bfbyears, but the expected maturity is subjechamge based on the prepayments of the
underlying loans. As of December 31, 2009 and 2€6@8average final contractual maturity of the RMB®tfolio was 29 and 30 years,
respectively.

Securitized Loan Portfolio Characteristics
The following tables present certain charactessticour securitized loans portfolio as of Decentiker2009 and 2008.

(dollars in thousand:
December 31, December 31,

2009 2008
Original loan balanc $ 500,01¢ $ 598,40:
Unpaid principal balanc $ 469,97¢ $ 578,99¢
Weighted average coupon rate on lo 5.9:% 5.95%
Weighted average original term (yea 29 29
Weighted average remaining term (ye: 27 28
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December 31, 200

Geographic Distributio Remaining Balanc

Top 5 State: (dollars in thousands % of Loan Portfolic Loan Couni

California $ 158,81: 33.7%% 21¢

Florida 29,94¢ 6.37% 41

New Jerse) 29,68¢ 6.32% 43

lllinois 28,24 6.01% 38

Virginia 22,55 4.8(% 37

Total $ 269,24 57.2% 377

December 31, 20C
Geographic Distributio Remaining Balanc
Top 5 State: (dollars in thousands % of Loan Portfolic Loan Couni

California $ 190,00 32.82% 254

New Jerse 38,57¢ 6.6€% 57

Florida 34,20¢ 5.91% 46

lllinois 34,027 5.88% 45

New York 26,641 4.6(% 42

Total $ 323,45t 55.87% 444

December 31, 200 December 31, 20C
Remaining Remaining
Balance % of Balance % of
(dollars in Loan Loan (dollars in Loan Loan

Occupancy StatL thousands Portfolio Count thousands Portfolio Count
Owner occupiel $ 427,02 90.8¢% 611 $  521,21: 90.02% 74C
Second hom 35,081 7.47% 55 47,78¢ 8.25% 65
Investor 7,86 1.67% 15 10,00( 1.72% 17
Total $ 469,97¢ 100.0(% 681 $ 578,99t 100.0(% 822

% of Loan Portfolic

December 31,

December 31,

Loan Purpos: 2009 2008

Purchast 62.7¢% 62.96%
Cash out refinanc 21.5%% 14.9%%
Rate and term refinant 15.6%% 22.0¢%
Total 100.0(% 100.0(%

% of ARM Loans

December 31,

December 31,

ARM Loan Type 2009 2008
Traditional ARM loans - -
Hybrid ARM loans 100.0(% 100.0(%
Total 100.0(% 100.0(%

December 31,

December 31,

2009 2008
Unpaid Principal Balanc (dollars in thousand:
$417,000 or les $ 4,66¢ $ 5,48¢
$417,001 to $650,00 186,15 225,92
$ 650,001 to $1,000,0C 188,74 237,62!
$1,000,001 to $2,000,0C 84,84¢ 104,35¢
$2,000,001 to $3,000,0( 5,56¢ 5,59¢
Over $3,000,00. - -
Total $ 469,97¢ $ 578,99!
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% of Loan Portfolic
December 31, December 31,

FICO Score 2009 2008
740 and abov 69.55% 69.82%
700 to 73¢ 17.42% 18.3%
660 to 69¢ 10.01% 9.28%
620 to 65¢ 2.1%% 1.7/%
Below 620 0.8%% 0.85%
Total 10C(% 10(%
Weighted average FICO scc 75€ 75€
December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
Original Loan to Value Rati (dollars in thousand:
80.01% and abov $ 54,84 $ 65,32(
70.01 to 80.009 $ 267,35. $ 321,15(
60.01% to 70.009 $ 72,05¢ $ 89,54
60.00% or les $ 75,72, % 102,98:
Total $ 469,97¢ $ 578,99t
Weighted Average Origin:
Loan to Value Ratic 73.02% 72.51%

% of Loan Portfolic
December 31, December 31,

Property Type 2009 2008

Single-family detachec 60.01% 59.6(%
Planned urban developm-detachec 31.31% 31.72%
Condominium 6.3%% 6.6(%
Other residentie 2.25% 2.08%
Total 100.0(% 100.0(%

% of ARM Loans
December 31, December 31,
Periodic Cap on Hybrid ARM Loar 2009 2008
3.00% or les! 100.0(% 100.00%
3.01% to 4.00% - -
4.01% to 5.00% - -
Total 100.0(% 100.0(%

Results of Operations for the Years Ended Decemb&l, 2009, 2008 and the Period Ended December 31020
We commenced operations on November 21, 2007 randfore do not have any comparable results for periods.
Net Income (Loss) Summary

Our net income for the year ended December 31, 2@39$324.0 million, or $0.64 per average sharet r@t loss for the year enc
December 31, 2008 was $119.8 million, or $1.90gverage share. Our net loss for the period commgmdovember 21, 2007 and ending
December 31, 2007 was $2.9 million, or $0.08 perage share.

Net income per share increased by $2.54 per sharéotal net income increased by $443.8 milliontfa year ending December 31,
2009, when compared to the year ending Decemb&(®B. We attribute the increase in net incomeairt to realized gains on sales of
investments equal to $103.6 million for the yealirg December 31, 2009 as compared to realizeédoms sales of investments equal to
$144.3 million for the year ending December 31,82008et income for the year ending December 3192060 increased in part due to the
355 basis point increase in interest rate spreatieportfolio of assets for the year ending Decen®i, 2009, when compared to the year
ending December 31, 2008.
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Net loss per share increased by $1.82 per shartotaldhet loss increased by $116.9 million for yiear ending December 31, 2008,
when compared to the period November 21, 2007 tebBer 31, 2007. We attribute the increase inasstper share to the realized losses

on sale of investments of $144.3 million recordadrdy the year ending December 31, 2008. There wergains or losses on sales of
investments during the period November 21, 200@doember 31, 2007.

The table below presents the net income (loss) aamfor the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008he period commenci

November 21, 2007 to December 31, 2C

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slag

For the Year

For the Year

For the Perio
November 21

Ended Ended to December
December 3. December 3! 31,

2009 2008 2007
Net Interest Income:
Interest incom $ 298,53¢ $ 105,25¢ $ 3,492
Interest expens 35,08 60,54+ 41F
Net interest incom 263,45¢ 44,71¢ 3,071
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (16,269 - -
Non-credit portion of loss recognized in other
comprehensive income (los 6,26¢ - -
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (9,996 - -
Other gains (losses):
Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ - 4,15¢ (4,156
Realized gains (losses) on sales of investment: 103,64t (144,304 -
Realized losses on principal write-downs of non-#ge
RMBS (255) - -
Realized losses on terminations of interest ratgps - (10,337 -
Total other gains (losse 103,39: (150,485 (4,156
Net investment income (expense) 356,85 (105,77() (1,079
Other expenses
Management fe 25,70« 8,42¢ 1,217
Provision for loan losse 3,102 1,54( 81
General and administrative expen 4,061 4,05¢ 524
Total other expense 32,86 14,027 1,822
Income (loss) before income taxe 323,98 (119,79) (2,907
Income taxe: 1 12 5
Net income (loss $ 32398 $ (119,809 $ (2,906
Net income (loss) per shi-basic and dilute $ 064 $ (1.90 $ (0.0¢)
Weighted average number of shares outstarbasic and dilute 507,042,42 63,155,87 37,401,73
Comprehensive income (loss
Net income (loss $ 323,98 $ (119,809 $ (2,906)
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gain (loss) on availa-for-sale securitie 260,30¢ (421,125 10,15:
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includeatet
income for othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 9,99¢ - -
Reclassification adjustment for realized (gainsy&s
included in net income (los (103,39) 144,30« -
Other comprehensive income (los 166,91« (276,82) 10,15
Comprehensive income (los $ 490,890 $ (396,630 $ 7,241
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We had average earning assets of $4.3 billion, §illign and $399.7 million for the years ended Bexber 31, 2009, 2008 and the
period November 21, 2007 to December 31, 2007 easgely. Our primary source of income is interiesbme earned on our assets. Our
interest income was $298.5 million, $105.3 millemd $3.5 million for the years ended December 80922008 and the period November
21, 2007 to December 31, 2007, respectively. Tiékl yn our portfolio was 6.90%, 5.96% and 7.02%tfe years ended December 31,
2009, 2008 and the period November 21, 2007 to ibbee 31, 2007, respectively. The prepayment spieedsased to an average of 17%
CPR for the year ended December 31, 2009 from a@B® for the year ended December 31, 2008 and 8%hédqeriod November 21, 20
to December 31, 2007. For the year ended Dece®Ih&009 as compared to the year ended Decemb20@8&, interest income increased
by $193.3 million due to the increase in the yiefdaverage earning assets of 94 basis pointstesttemcome for the year ended December
31, 2008 increased as compared to the period Nose#ih 2007 to December 31, 2007 due to the shexttpariod for our initial year of
operations.

Interest Expense and the Cost of Funds

Our largest expense is the cost of borrowed fuMie.had average borrowed funds of $1.7 billion33illion and $270.6 million
and total interest expense of $35.1 million, $6@illion and $415,000 for the years ended DecemtePB09, 2008 and the period Novem
21, 2007 to December 31, 2007, respectively. @arame cost of funds was 2.03%, 4.64% and 5.08%méoyears ended December 31, 2
2008 and the period November 21, 2007 to Decembe2@®7, respectively. The average cost of fuatisdeclined by 261 basis points and
the average borrowed funds increased by $419.&milluring the year ended December 31, 2009, wberpared to the year ended
December 31, 2008. We attribute the decline inioigrest expense to the decline in the averageofdsnds.

The table below shows our average borrowed fundsamarage cost of funds as compared to averagenonéh and average Six-
month LIBOR for the years ended December 31, 20@928008 and the quarters ended December 31, 2e8&gth December 31, 2009.

Average Cost of Func

Average Average
One- Cost Average
Month of Funds Cost

LIBOR Relative tc  of Funds
Average Average Relative tc Average Relative tc

Average Average One- Six- Average One- Average
Borrowed Interest Cost of Month Month Six-Month Month Six-Month
Funds Expense Funds LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For the year ende

December 31, 20C $1,724,69: $ 35,08 2.05% 0.3%% 1.12% (0.7%) 1.7(% 0.91%
For the quarter ende

December 31, 20C $2,266,35 $  8,53( 1.51% 0.24% 0.52% (0.28%) 1.27% 0.9%
For the quarter ende

September 30, 20( $2,207,44. $ 9,197 1.67% 0.27% 0.84% (0.57%) 1.4(% 0.85%
For the quarter ende

June 30, 200 $1,386,53! $ 8,31t 2.4(% 0.37% 1.3% (1.02%) 2.02% 1.01%
For the quarter ende

March 31, 200¢ $1,038,46! $  9,04: 3.48% 0.4€% 1.74% (1.2€%) 3.02% 1.7/%
For the year ende

December 31, 20C $1,304,87. $ 60,54« 4.64% 2.6&% 3.06% (0.3t%) 1.96% 1.58%
For the quarter ende

December 31, 20C $1,105,23' $ 10,95¢ 3.96% 2.22% 2.9% (0.71%) 1.7% 1.02%

Net Interest Income

Our net interest income, which equals interestimedess interest expense, totaled $263.5 millidd, Bmillion and $3.1 million for
the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and tloelp¢ovember 21, 2007 to December 31, 2007, resmdet Our net interest spread,
which equals the yield on our average assets éopéhtiod less the average cost of funds for thiegewas 4.87%, 1.32% and 1.94% for the
years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and the pdaeember 21, 2007 to December 31, 2007, respegtiv@lr net interest incorr
increased by $218.8 million for the year ended Drduer 31, 2009, when compared to the year endedniieere31, 2008 due to the 355 basis
point increase in our net interest spread. Ouimetest income increased by $41.6 million for ylear ended December 31, 2008 as
compared to the period November 21, 2007 to Deceihe2007. We attribute the increase in net @geincome during the year ended
December 31, 2008, when compared to the period iNbee 21, 2007 to December 31, 2007, to the shadteperating history for 2007.
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The table below shows our average assets heldljritdeest income, yield on average interest egraissets, average balance of
repurchase agreements, interest expense, aversigef onds, net interest income, and net intenast spread for the years ended December
31, 2009 and 2008 and the quarters ended Decerih2038 through December 31, 2009.

Net Interest Incom

Yield on
Average Average Net
Earning Interest Interest Average Average Net Interest
Assets Earned or  Earning Debt Interest Cost Interest Rate
Held Assets Assets Balance Expense of Funds Income Spreac

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For the year ende

December 31, 20C $4,328,89. $ 298,53 6.9(% $1,724,69: $ 35,08 2.05% $ 263,45t 4.81%
For the quarter ende

December 31, 20C $6,329,58 $ 100,76! 6.31% $2,266,35 $  8,53( 1.51% $ 92,23t 4.86%
For the quarter ende

September 30, 20¢ $5,433,32. $ 104,69 7.71% $2,207,44. $  9,19i 1.67% $ 95,490 6.04%
For the quarter ende

June 30, 200 $3,812,89° $ 65,07" 6.82% $1,386,53' $  8,31: 2.4(% $ 56,76¢ 4.42%
For the quarter ende

March 31, 200¢ $1,739,76° $ 28,00 6.44% $1,038,46! $ 9,047 3.48% $ 18,96 2.96%
For the year ende

December 31, 20C $1,711,700 $ 105,25¢ 5.9¢% $1,304,87. $ 60,54« 464 $ 44,71t 1.32%
For the quarter ende

December 31, 20C $1,621,200 $ 23,65¢ 5.7 $1,105,23' $ 10,95¢ 3.9¢% $ 12,70: 1.78%

Management Fee, Loan Loss Provision and General akdiministrative Expenses

We paid FIDAC a management fee of $25.7 million4%&illion and $1.2 million for the years ended Bexber 31, 2009, 2008 and
the period November 21, 2007 to December 31, 2@3pectively. We attribute the $17.3 million irese in management fees recorded
during the year ended December 31, 2009, when caudpa the year ended December 31, 2008, to thedse in stockholders equity
resulting from our April and May 2009 secondaryeoiigs. Our management fee increased by $7.2omilbr the period ending December
31, 2008, when compared to the period NovembeP@Q7 to December 31, 2007. The increase in managiei@es reflects the increase in
stockholder’s equity from our October 2008 secopadiering and our short operating history for ffeiod November 21, 2007 to December
31, 2007.

The loan loss provision was $3.1 million, $1.5 mailland $81,000 for the years ended December 39, ZD08 and the period
November 21, 2007 to December 31, 2007, respegtiv@lr loan loss provision increased by $1.6 wrilfor the year ending December
2009, when compared to the year ending Decembe&®B due to management’s estimate of the effattitisreasing rates of delinquencies,
foreclosure and bankruptcy activities specific tw securitized loans and the broader mortgage rhaska whole will have on the realizable
value our securitized loan portfolio. The loansigsovision for the year ending December 31, 20@8iased by $1.5 million when compared
to the period November 21, 2007 to December 317 20is increase in the provision is attributaiol¢he increase in the principal value of
the loan portfolio.

General and administrative expenses, or G&A, wéré #illion, $4.1 million and $524,000 for the ye@nded December 31, 2009,
2008 and the period November 21, 2007 to Decembe2@)7, respectively. G&A remained relatively banged for the year ending
December 31, 2009, when compared to the year eftiagmber 31, 2008. Our G&A expenses increasekBtB/ million for the year ended
December 31, 2008, when compared to the period iKbee 21, 2007 to December 31, 2007, largely dubeashort period of our operating
history during 2007.
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Total expenses as a percentage of average totdbassre 0.99%, 0.85% and 1.55% for the years eDeéedmber 31, 2009, 2008
and the period November 21, 2007 to December 317, 2@spectively.

From our inception through 2009, FIDAC has waivsdight to require us to pay our pro rata portabment, telephone, utilities,
office furniture, equipment, machinery and othdicef, internal and overhead expenses of FIDAC #dffiliates required for our operations.

The table below shows our total management fee, llmss provision and G&A expenses as compareddoage total assets and
average equity for the years ended December 3B 2060 2008 and the quarters ended December 31 tB6fg&)h December 31, 2009.

Management Fees, Loan Loss Provision and G&A Exgeand Operating Expense Ra

Total
Managemet
Fee, Loan Management Management Fe
Loss Fee, Loan Los Loan Loss
Provision  Provision and Provision and
and G&A G&A
G&A Expenses/Tot Expenses/Averay
Expense! Assets Equity
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in
thousands
For the year ended December 31, 2 $ 32,865 0.95% 2.25%
For the quarter ended December 31, 2 $ 11,44¢ 1.02% 2.12%
For the quarter ended September 30, - $ 9,75: 0.91% 1.8%%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 $ 7,94¢ 1.08% 2.61%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( $ 3,722 0.94% 3.51%
For the year ended December 31, 2 $ 14,027 0.85% 3.5(%
For the quarter ended December 31, 2 $ 3,91¢ 1.1(% 4.78%

Net Income (Loss) and Return on Average Equity

Our net income was $324.0 million for the year ehBecember 31, 2009. Our net loss was $119.8amilind $2.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2008 and for the periogiber 21, 2007 to December 31, 2007, respectivalg.attribute the $443.8 millic
increase in net income for the year ended DeceBhe2009, when compared to the year ended DeceBih@008 to realized gains on sales
of investments equal to $103.6 million during 2@0®@ realized losses on sales of investments tgt&lid4.3 million during 2008. In
addition, our net interest income increased by $2&@llion for the year ending December 31, 200Bew compared to December 31,

2008. The table below shows our net interest iresdoss on sale of assets and termination of isteage swaps, unrealized gains (loss) on
interest rate swaps, total expenses, income tak, #na percentage of average equity, and theretuaverage equity for the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the quarters eneleehiiber 31, 2008 through December 31, 2009.

Components of Return on Average Eqt

Realized Gail
(Loss) on
Sales, Unrealized
Credit Losse:  Gain (Loss) ol Total
Net Interest and Interest Rate  Expenses/ Income Return on
Income/Averag OTTI/Average Swaps/Averac Average Tax/Averag: Average
Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity
(Ratios have been annualiz¢
For the year ended December 31, 2 18.0% 6.41% 0.0(% (2.25%) 0.0(% 22.1%
For the quarter ended December 31
2009 17.09% 2.72% 0.0(% (2.12%) 0.0(% 17.6%
For the quarter ended September 3l
2009 18.47% 13.9%% 0.0(% (1.8%) 0.0(% 30.55%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 19.08% 0.95% 0.0(% (2.67%) 0.0(% 17.36%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( 17.91% 3.42% 0.0(% (3.51%) 0.0(% 17.82%
For the year ended December 31, 2 11.1% (38.64%) 1.04% (3.50%) 0.0(% (29.9%)
For the quarter ended December 31
2008 15.5(% 0.0(% 0.0(% (4.7¢%) 0.0(% 10.72%
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity measures our ability to meet cash reguients, including ongoing commitments to repaybmurowings, fund and
maintain RMBS, mortgage loans and other assetsdpéends and other general business needs. @wigeal sources of capital and funds
for additional investments primarily include eagsrfrom our investments, borrowings under secuatitins, repurchase agreements and othel
financing facilities, and proceeds from equity offgs. We expect these sources of financing velsbfficient to meet our shairm liquidity
needs.

We expect to continue to borrow funds in the fofmepurchase agreements as well as other typasasfding. The terms of the
repurchase transaction borrowings under our masperrchase agreements generally conform to thesterithe standard master repurchase
agreement as published by the Securities IndustiyFinancial Markets Association, or SIFMA, ase¢payment, margin requirements and
segregation of all securities we have initiallydsohder the repurchase transaction. In additiach éender typically requires that we include
supplemental terms and conditions to the standastenrepurchase agreement. Typical supplememtaktand conditions include changes
to the margin maintenance requirements, requir@duta, purchase price maintenance requiremerdsjnements that all controversies
related to the repurchase agreement be litigatadparticular jurisdiction and cross default pravis. These provisions will differ for each
our lenders and will not be determined until weageyin a specific repurchase transaction.

For our short-term (one year or less) and long-téynidity, which include investing and complianaéh collateralization
requirements under our repurchase agreements(gléudged collateral decreases in value or inveateof margin calls created by
prepayments of the pledged collateral), we alsparlthe cash flow from investments, primarily ntaptprincipal and interest payments tc
received on our RMBS and whole mortgage loans, fiashfrom the sale of securities as well as anynary securities offerings authorized
by our board of directors.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe ose@swill be sufficient to enable
us to meet anticipated short-term (one year o) lepsidity requirements such as to fund our inmestt activities, pay fees under our
management agreement, fund our distributions tckbtalders and pay general corporate expenses. Howawecline in the value of our
collateral or an increase in prepayment rates aabatly above our expectations could cause a teampdiquidity shortfall due to the timing
of the necessary margin calls on the financingngeanents and the actual receipt of the cash retatedncipal paydowns. If our cash
resources are at any time insufficient to satisfylmuidity requirements, we may have to sell debadditional equity securities in a common
stock offering. If required, the sale of RMBS oraldamortgage loans at prices lower than their ¢gagryalue would result in losses and
reduced income.

Our ability to meet our long-term (greater than gaar) liquidity and capital resource requiremenitsbe subject to obtaining
additional debt financing and equity capital. Sabje our maintaining our qualification as a REWg expect to use a number of sources to
finance our investments, including repurchase agesgs, warehouse facilities, securitization, conuiaépaper and term financing
CDOs. Such financing will depend on market condii for capital raises and for the investment gf aioceeds. If we are unable to renew,
replace or expand our sources of financing on ambisily similar terms, it may have an adversedafa our business and results of
operations. Upon liquidation, holders of our dedatgities and shares of preferred stock and lendigihsrespect to other borrowings will
receive a distribution of our available assetsroahe holders of our common stock.

We held cash and cash equivalents of approxim&dy3 million, $27.5 million and $6.0 million at Bember 31, 2009, 2008 and
2007, respectively.

Our operating activities provided net cash of agpnately $168.7 million and $30.7 million and useash of approximately $1.5
million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 20i8the period November 21, 2007 to December @17 2espectively.

Our investing activities used net cash of $2.8dsill $1.1 billion and $795.6 million for the yeamsded December 31, 2009, 2008

the period November 21, 2007 to December 31, 2@&pectively, primarily for the purchases of inwesihts and the securitizations which
were accounted for as sales.
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Our financing activities as of December 31, 2008sisted of net proceeds from our April and May,286condary offerings in
which we raised approximately $1.5 billion, repuasé agreements, and payments received on ourtsaations. We currently have
established uncommitted repurchase agreementsM&3Rwith 18 counterparties, including Annaly. Asldécember 31, 2009, we had
$259.0 million outstanding under our repurchaseagent with Annaly, which constituted 10.95% of tmial financing. As of December !
2009, our repurchase agreement with Annaly hashieigaverage borrowing rates of 1.72% and weightedage remaining maturities of 5
days. This agreement is collateralized by our RMBf&h had an estimated fair value of $314.3 millad December 31, 2009. The interest
rates of these repurchase agreements are genacdiked to the one-month LIBOR rate and repriceatingly.

Our financing activities as of December 31, 2008ststed of net proceeds from our October 2008 skryrofferings in which we
raised approximately $299.6 million, repurchaseagrents, and the debt obligations of a $619.7anilliecuritization which was accounted
for as a financing. As of December 31, 2008 we éwtdblished uncommitted repurchase agreemenM&S with 13 counterparties,
including Annaly. As of December 31, 2008, we $&62.1 million outstanding under our repurchaseagent with Annaly, which
constituted approximately 53% of our total finamcinrAt December 31, 2008, our repurchase agreewigmAnnaly had weighted average
borrowing rates of 1.43% and weighted average neimgimaturities of 2 days. This agreement is ¢etkized by our RMBS which had an
estimated fair value of $680.8 million at Decem®&y 2008. The interest rates of these repurchgrezments are generally indexed to the
one-month LIBOR rate and reprice accordingly.

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the repurchaseamnts for RMBS had the following remaining maiesi

December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
(dollars in thousands
Overnight $ - 9 =
1-30 days (1. 1,772,66. 562,11¢
30 to 59 day: 62,24 -
60 to 89 day: - -
90 to 119 day - -
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 140,49° -
Total $ 1,975,40. $ 562,11¢

(1) Repurchase agreements with affiliates totah269.0 million and $562.1 million for the years edd>ecember 31, 2009
and 2008, respectivel

We are not required to maintain any specific dekgguity ratio as we believe the appropriate levefagéhe particular assets we i
financing depends on the credit quality and riskhofe assets. At December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2d@7otal debt was approximately $2.4
billion, $1.1 billion and $270.6 million, which regsented a debt-to-equity ratio of approximately1,.2.5:1 and 0.5:1, respectively.

Stockholder’ Equity

On April 15, 2009, we announced the sale of 235,00 g)tares of common stock at $3.00 per share fonatstd proceeds, less t
underwriters’ discount and offering expenses, af468 million. Immediately following the sale ofetbe shares Annaly purchased 24,955,752
shares at the same price per share as the pufdiingf, for proceeds of approximately $74.9 millidm addition, on April 16, 2009 the
underwriters exercised the option to purchase wmtadditional 35,250,000 shares of common stockver over-allotments for proceeds,
less the underwriters’ discount, of approximatel®3$.3 million. These sales were completed on A#jl2009. In all, we raised net proceeds
of approximately $850.9 in these offerings.

On May 27, 2009, we announced the sale of 168,00068ares of common stock at $3.22 per share fiona&ed proceeds, less the
underwriters’ discount and offering expenses, df%8 million. Immediately following the sale ofethe shares Annaly purchased 4,724,017
shares at the same price per share as the pufdiingf, for proceeds of approximately $15.2 milliém addition, on June 1, 2009 the
underwriters exercised the option to purchase wmtadditional 25,200,000 shares of common stockver over-allotments for proceeds,
less the underwriters’ discount, of approximately ® million. These sales were completed on Ju28@. In all, we raised net proceeds of
approximately $612.4 million in these offerings.
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On October 24, 2008, we announced the sale of QMO0 shares of common stock at $2.25 per shaesfonated proceeds, less
the underwriters’ discount and offering expensé€$238.8 million. Immediately following the salé these shares Annaly purchased
11,681,415 shares at the same price per share asiltfic offering, for proceeds of approximatehs&million. In addition, on October 28,
2008 the underwriters exercised the option to pasetup to an additional 16,500,000 shares of constomk to cover over-allotments for
proceeds, less the underwriters’ discount, of agprately $26.2 million. These sales were completedctober 29, 2008. In all, we raised
net proceeds of approximately $301.0 million insthefferings.

On September 24, 2009, we adopted a dividend rsiment and share purchase plan, or DRSPP. The PR&Rides holders of
record of our common stock an opportunity to autiically reinvest all or a portion of their cashtdisutions received on common stock in
additional shares of our common stock as well asdke optional cash payments to purchase shamg @bmmon stock. Persons who are
not already stockholders may also purchase our ammstock under the plan through optional cash paysne The DRSPP is administerec
the Administrator, The Bank of New York Mellon. @ate no shares were issued under the DRSPP.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, we dethiividends to common shareholders totaling $24dlHon, or $0.43 per
share. During the year ended December 31, 2008gafared dividends to common shareholders totdi#8y9 million, or $0.62 per share.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstarangf December 31, 2009 and 2008.

Our charter provides that we may issue up to 10000 shares of stock, consisting of up to 1@@WN00 shares of common st
having a par value of $0.01 per share and up tg0DOQD00 shares of preferred stock having a parevai $0.01 per share. On May 22, 2009,
we filed an amendment to our Articles of Incorpamat Our Articles of Incorporation previously alled us to issue up to a total of
550,000,000 shares of capital stock, par valuel3ped share. As of May 22, 2009, we had 472,4@Lshares of common stock issued and
outstanding. To retain the ability to issue addisil shares of capital stock, we have increaseduh#er of shares are authorized to issue to
1,100,000,000 shares consisting of 1,000,000,086:shof common stock, $0.01 par value per commareshnd 100,000,000 shares of
preferred stock, $0.01 par value per preferredeshar

Management Agreement and Related Party Transactions
Management Agreemer

On November 15, 2007 we entered into a managengea¢ment with FIDAC, pursuant to which FIDAC isidat to receive a
management fee and, in certain circumstancespartation fee and reimbursement of certain expeasatescribed in the management
agreement. Such fees and expenses do not hadeafixkdeterminable payments. The management feg/able quarterly in arrears in an
amount equal to 1.50% per annum, calculated gurtdrour stockholders’ equity (as defined in thanagement agreement). FIDAC uses
the proceeds from its management fee in part tacpaypensation to its officers and employees whtwitlosstanding that certain of them also
are our officers, receive no cash compensatiortitjréeom us. The management fee will be reduted not below zero, by our proportion
share of any CDO base management fees FIDAC rec#iv@mnnection with the CDOs in which we investsdéd on the percentage of equity
we hold in such CDOs.

Financing Arrangements with Annaly

In March 2008, we entered into a RMBS repurchaseeagent with Annaly. This agreement contains guaty representations,
warranties and covenants contained in such agresm@s of December 31, 2009 and 2008, we had $288lion, $562.1 million
outstanding under the agreement with a weightedagesborrowing rate of 1.72% and 1.43%.

Restricted Stock Grant

We granted 1,301,000 shares of restricted stockitdVlanager’s employees and members of our boadit@ttors during the year
ended December 31, 2008. During the years endedrbber 31, 2009 and 2008, 128,900 and 140,908ssbérestricted stock we had
awarded to FIDAC's employees and our board memissted and 4,075 and 17,880 shares were forfeitednzelled, respectively. At
December 31, 2009 and 2008 there are approximat@lgnillion and 1.2 million unvested shares ofiestd stock issued to employees of
FIDAC, respectively. For the years ended DecerBthie009 and 2008, compensation expense less §iandradministrative costs
associated with the amortization of the fair vadfithe restricted stock totaled $451,150 and $lillfom, respectively.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The following tables summarize our contractual gédgions at December 31, 2009 and 2008.

December 31, 200

Greater
Than or
Within One One to Three to Equal to
Contractual Obligation Year Three Year: Five Years Five Years Total
(dollars in thousand:
Repurchase agreements for RMBS $ 1,97540 $ - % - $ - $ 1,975,40:
Securitized dek 37,19: 70,88t 59,38: 240,94! 408,40:
Interest expense on RMBS repurch
agreements (2 1,05(C - - - 1,05(C
Interest expense on securitized debt 19,70¢ 36,82¢ 30,30¢ 132,41¢ 219,25¢
Total $ 203335 $ 107,71, $ 89,68{ $ 373,360 $ 2,604,11
(1) Repurchase agreements with affiliates for $258illion are included in balanc
(2) Interest is based on variable rates in effeaféDecember 31, 200
December 31, 200
Greater
Than or
Within One One to Three to Equal to
Contractual Obligation Year Three Year: Five Years Five Years Total
(dollars in thousand:
Repurchase agreements for RMBS $ 562,11¢ $ - 8 - $ - 8 562,11¢
Securitized dek 65,56 112,74! 85,95t 246,53! 510,79t
Interest expense on RMBS repurch
agreements (2 22 - - - 22
Interest expense on securitized debi 26,46¢ 42,694 31,96¢ 92,12¢ 193,25:
Total $ 654,17. $ 155,43¢ $ 117,92( $ 338,66( $ 1,266,19

(1) Repurchase agreements with affiliates represamtire balance
(2) Interest is based on variable rates in effscifaDecember 31, 200

The repurchase agreements for our repurchasetifsijenerally do not include substantive provisiother than those contained in
the standard master repurchase agreement as mebhgithe Securities Industry and Financial Marketsociation.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any relationships with unconsolidi@tetities or financial partnerships, such as iestivften referred to as structured
finance or special purpose entities, which wouldehlaeen established for the purpose of facilitatifigpalance sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. Furtlveg,have not guaranteed any obligations of uncaeteld entities nor do we have any
commitment or intent to provide funding to any seditities. As such, we are not materially expaseahy market, credit, liquidity or
financing risk that could arise if we had engagediich relationships.

Dividends

To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividetwdsur stockholders of at least 90% of our taxatdeme, determined without
regard to the deduction for dividends paid andudiclg any net capital gains. We intend to pay ragguarterly dividends to our
stockholders. Before we pay any dividend, whetbetX.S. federal income tax purposes or otherwisgchvwould only be paid out of
available cash to the extent permitted under marfting facilities, we must first meet any opemtiaquirements and scheduled debt service
on our financing facilities and other debt payable.
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Inflation

Virtually all of our assets and liabilities areeéntst rate sensitive in nature. As a result, istawges and other factors influence our
performance far more so than does inflation. Chamgé@nterest rates do not necessarily correlati inflation rates or changes in inflation
rates. Our consolidated financial statements apgved in accordance with GAAP and our distribitindill be determined by our board of
directors consistent with our obligation to distrié to our stockholders at least 90% of our REKBlde income on an annual basis in order to
maintain our REIT qualification; in each case, adtivities and balance sheet are measured withergfe to historical cost and/or fair market
value without considering inflation.

Subsequent Events

On January 28, 2010, we formed Chimera SpecialiHgédLLC, a Delaware limited liability company, asvholly owned subsidiat
of Chimera Asset Holding LLC, which is a wholly oadhsubsidiary of Chimera Investment Corporation.

On January 29, 2010, we transferred $1.7 billioprincipal value of our RMBS to the CSMC 2010-1Rigtrin a re-securitization
transaction. In this transaction, we sold $128illian of AAA-rated fixed rate bonds to third parigvestors for net proceeds of $127.7
million. We retained $563.6 million of AAA-ratecbhds, $1.0 billion in subordinated bonds and theemrust certificate, and interest only
bonds with a notional value of $1.6 billion. Thébserdinated bonds and the owner trust certificad@ige credit support to the AAA-rated
bonds. The bonds issued by the trust are collatedaby RMBS that were transferred to the CSMC®QR Trust.

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosuresAbout Market
Risk

The primary components of our market risk are eeldb credit risk, interest rate risk, prepaymésk, market value risk and real
estate market risk. While we do not seek to avisil@aompletely, we believe the risk can be quaadifirom historical experience and we seek
to actively manage that risk, to earn sufficienhpensation to justify taking those risks and tonten capital levels consistent with the risks
we undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in connection with mvestments and face more credit risk on assetswn which are rated below
“AAA”. The credit risk related to these investmisnpertains to the ability and willingness of trerowers to pay, which is assessed before
credit is granted or renewed and periodically neig throughout the loan or security term. We belithat residual loan credit quality is
primarily determined by the borrowers’ credit ptedi and loan characteristics. Our Manager usesnp@hensive credit review process. Our
Manager’s analysis of loans includes borrower pesfias well as valuation and appraisal data. Camdder uses compensating factors such
as liquid assets, low loan to value ratios andsgalbility in evaluating loans. Our Manager’s rases include a proprietary portfolio
management system, as well as third party softeystems. Our Manager utilizes a third party duigeliice firm to perform an independent
underwriting review to insure compliance with exigtguidelines. Our Manager selects loans for m@\peedicated on risk-based criteria such
as loan-to-value, borrower’s credit score(s) amahlsize. Our Manager also outsources underwrimgices to review higher risk loans,
either due to borrower credit profiles or collaterauation issues. In addition to statistical séimptechniques, our Manager creates adverse
credit and valuation samples, which we individualyiew. Our Manager rejects loans that fail tofoom to our standards. Our Manager will
accept only those loans which meet our underwritiitgria. Once we own a loan, our Manager’s sllevaie process includes ongoing
analysis through our proprietary data warehousesandcer files. Additionally, the non-Agency RMB&d other ABS which we acquire for
our portfolio are reviewed by our Manager to enghes they satisfy our risk based criteria. Our iger’s review of non-Agency RMBS and
other ABS includes utilizing its proprietary poftiomanagement system. Our Manager's review of Agancy RMBS and other ABS are
based on quantitative and qualitative analysihefrisk-adjusted returns on non-Agency RMBS anédm#BS present.

78




Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many éast including governmental monetary and tax pesicdomestic and international
economic and political considerations and othetofacbeyond our control. We are subject to interast risk in connection with our
investments and our related debt obligations, whiehgenerally repurchase agreements, warehousgescsecuritization, commercial paf
and term financing CDOs. Our repurchase agreenagmtsvarehouse facilities may be of limited durativat are periodically refinanced at
current market rates. We intend to mitigate thék through utilization of derivative contracts,marily interest rate swap agreements.

Interest Rate Effect on Net Interest Income

Our operating results depend, in large part, ofedihces between the income from our investmerdanborrowing costs. Most of
our warehouse facilities and repurchase agreemeotide financing based on a floating rate of iag¢icalculated on a fixed spread over
LIBOR. The fixed spread varies depending on the typunderlying asset which collateralizes therftiag. Accordingly, the portion of our
portfolio which consists of floating interest ratgsets will be match-funded utilizing our expecedrces of short-term financing, while our
fixed interest rate assets will not be match-fund®uating periods of rising interest rates, the bating costs associated with our investments
tend to increase while the income earned on oedfirterest rate investments may remain substhntiathanged. This will result in a
narrowing of the net interest spread between tlaed assets and borrowings and may even resiasses. Further, during this portion of the
interest rate and credit cycles, defaults couldease and result in credit losses to us, whichdcadlersely affect our liquidity and operating
results. Such delinquencies or defaults could ladgs@ an adverse effect on the spread betweenstiegiening assets and interest-bearing
liabilities. Hedging techniques are partly basedssumed levels of prepayments of our fixed-rateharid adjustable-rate mortgage loans
and RMBS. If prepayments are slower or faster #esumed, the life of the mortgage loans and RMBSowilonger or shorter, which would
reduce the effectiveness of any hedging strategiesiay use and may cause losses on such transadtiedging strategies involving the use
of derivative securities are highly complex and rpayduce volatile returns.

Interest Rate Effects on Fair Value

Another component of interest rate risk is thectftdanges in interest rates will have on thevfaiue of the assets we acquire. We
face the risk that the fair value of our asset$ wdrease or decrease at different rates tharothadr liabilities, including our hedging
instruments. We primarily assess our interestniakeby estimating the duration of our assets &edduration of our liabilities. Duration
essentially measures the market price volatilitfirincial instruments as interest rates changeg@verally calculate duration using various
financial models and empirical data. Different medind methodologies can produce different duratiombers for the same securities.

It is important to note that the impact of changimigrest rates on fair value can change signifigamhen interest rates change
beyond 100 basis points from current levels. Theeeefthe volatility in the fair value of our assetsild increase significantly when interest
rates change beyond 100 basis points. In addivitver factors impact the fair value of our intemade-sensitive investments and hedging
instruments, such as the shape of the yield cunegket expectations as to future interest rate @bsiand other market conditions.
Accordingly, in the event of changes in actualriest rates, the change in the fair value of ouetassould likely differ from that shown abc
and such difference might be material and adverseit stockholders.

Interest Rate Cap Risk

We also invest in adjustable-rate mortgage loadsRIMBS. These are mortgages or RMBS in which thdetging mortgages are
typically subject to periodic and lifetime intereate caps and floors, which limit the amount byclitthe security’s interest yield may change
during any given period. However, our borrowingteqaursuant to our financing agreements will nostigject to similar restrictions.
Therefore, in a period of increasing interest ratasrest rate costs on our borrowings could iaseewithout limitation by caps, while the
interest-rate yields on our adjustalsddée mortgage loans and RMBS would effectivelyilmatéd. This problem will be magnified to the ext:
we acquire adjustable-rate RMBS that are not basedortgages which are fully indexed. In additittre mortgages or the underlying
mortgages in an RMBS may be subject to periodierayt caps that result in some portion of the irstilbeing deferred and added to the
principal outstanding. This could result in oura#t of less cash income on our adjustable-rategages or RMBS than we need in order to
pay the interest cost on our related borrowinggseHfactors could lower our net interest incomeamse a net loss during periods of rising
interest rates, which would harm our financial dtiod, cash flows and results of operations.
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Interest Rate Mismatch Risk

We intend to fund a substantial portion of our asijons of hybrid adjustable-rate mortgages andB8Wvith borrowings that, after
the effect of hedging, have interest rates basaddices and repricing terms similar to, but of sevhat shorter maturities than, the interest
rate indices and repricing terms of the mortgagesRMBS. Thus, we anticipate that in most casedntiegest rate indices and repricing tel
of our mortgage assets and our funding sourcewilbe identical, thereby creating an interes mismatch between assets and liabilities.
Therefore, our cost of funds would likely rise all inore quickly than would our earnings rate oseds. During periods of changing interest
rates, such interest rate mismatches could nedjatimpact our financial condition, cash flows amsults of operations. To mitigate interest
rate mismatches, we may utilize the hedging strasedjscussed above. Our analysis of risks is basaxir Manager’s experience, estimates,
models and assumptions. These analyses rely onlsnetlich utilize estimates of fair value and intreate sensitivity. Actual economic
conditions or implementation of investment decisiby our management may produce results that difgmificantly from the estimates and
assumptions used in our models and the projecsedtseshown in this Form 10-K.

Our profitability and the value of our portfolion@luding interest rate swaps) may be adverselygtteduring any period as a result
of changing interest rates. The following tableugtifies the potential changes in net interestrimeoportfolio value should interest rates go
up or down 25, 50, and 75 basis points, assumiagitiid curves of the rate shocks will be parathebach other and the current yield
curve. All changes in income and value are measasepercentage changes from the projected ne¢shi@come and portfolio value at the
base interest rate scenario. The base interesscahario assumes interest rates at Decembe®@4 aid various estimates regarding
prepayment and all activities are made at eacH tdwate shock. Actual results could differ sigrantly from these estimates.

Projected Percentage Change in Net Projected Percentage Change in

Change in Interest Ra Interest Income 9 Portfolio Value %
-75 Basis Point 8.05% 4.59%

-50 Basis Point 6.00% 3.05%

-25 Basis Point 2.93% 1.52%
Base Interest Ra

+25 Basis Point (4.62%) (1.51%)

+50 Basis Point (6.51%) (3.01%)

+75 Basis Point (8.40%) (4.50%)

Prepayment Risk

As we receive prepayments of principal on thesestments, premiums paid on such investments aretiaetbagainst interest
income. In general, an increase in prepayment veiteaccelerate the amortization of purchase prens, thereby reducing the interest
income earned on the investments. Conversely, digs@n such investments are accreted into intaresine.

Extension Risk

Our Manager computes the projected weighted-avdifegef our investments based on assumptions déggithe rate at which the
borrowers will prepay the underlying mortgagesgémeral, when fixed-rate or hybrid adjustable-ratetgage loans or RMBS are acquired
with borrowings, we may, but are not required tdeeinto an interest rate swap agreement or ¢tbeging instrument that effectively fixes
our borrowing costs for a period close to the andited average life of the fixed-rate portion of tielated assets. This strategy is designed to
protect us from rising interest rates because thmotving costs are fixed for the duration of theefi-rate portion of the related
assets. However, if prepayment rates decreasesimg interest rate environment, the life of theed-rate portion of the related assets could
extend beyond the term of the swap agreement er bedging instrument. This could have a negatiy@aict on our results from operations,
as borrowing costs would no longer be fixed afterénd of the hedging instrument while the incoaraed on the hybrid adjustable-rate
assets would remain fixed. This situation may aksese the market value of our hybrid adjustable-aasets to decline, with little or no
offsetting gain from the related hedging transargidn extreme situations, we may be forced toassets to maintain adequate liquidity,
which could cause us to incur losses.
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Market Risk
Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities are reflectethair estimated fair value with unrealized gaind &sses excluded from earnings and
reported in OCI. The estimated fair value of theseurities fluctuates primarily due to changeimierest rates and other factors. Generally,
in a rising interest rate environment, the estimdér value of these securities would be expettedkecrease; conversely, in a decreasing
interest rate environment, the estimated fair valuthese securities would be expected to increAsemarket volatility increases or liquidity
decreases, the fair value of our investments madbersely impacted. If we are unable to readitiaim independent pricing to validate our
estimated fair value of securities in the portfptite fair value gains or losses recorded in OC} beadversely affected.

Real Estate Risk

We own assets secured by real property and mayreahproperty directly in the future. Residenpiabperty values are subject to
volatility and may be affected adversely by a numdfdactors, including, but not limited to, natanregional and local economic conditions
(which may be adversely affected by industry slowds and other factors); local real estate conditi@ch as an oversupply of housing);
changes or continued weakness in specific indsstgynents; construction quality, age and designpdeaphic factors; and retroactive
changes to building or similar codes. In additidecreases in property values reduce the valuesafditateral and the potential proceeds
available to a borrower to repay our loans, whighl@ also cause us to suffer losses.

Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining our REfatus, we seek to manage risk exposure to protegiortfolio of residential
mortgage loans, RMBS, and other assets and redafstdagainst the effects of major interest ratengha. We generally seek to manage our
risk by:

« monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the rasgex and interest rate related to our RMBS andinancings;

« attempting to structure our financings agreemenmtsate a range of different maturities, terms, dirations and interest rate
adjustment period:

« using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, optimaps, floors and forward sales to adjust therést rate sensitivity of our MBS a
our borrowings

« using securitization financing to lower averaget @igunds relative to shoterm financing vehicles further allowing us to rieeethe
benefit of attractive terms for an extended pedbtime in contrast to short term financing and unigy dates of the investments
included in the securitization; al

« actively managing, on an aggregate basis, theestteate indices, interest rate adjustment peranis,gross reset margins of our
MBS and the interest rate indices and adjustmenge of our financings

Our efforts to manage our assets afniitias are concerned with the timing and magrétd the repricing of assets and
liabilities. We attempt to control risks associhteéith interest rate movements. Methods for euviiigainterest rate risk include an analysis of
our interest rate sensitivity “gap”, which is thée&rence between interest-earning assets ancesttéearing liabilities maturing or repricing
within a given time period. A gap is considereaipee when the amount of interest-rate sensitsgets exceeds the amount of interest-rate
sensitive liabilities. A gap is considered negativhen the amount of interest-rate sensitive liddsl exceeds interest-rate sensitive
assets. During a period of rising interest radasegative gap would tend to adversely affectmterést income, while a positive gap would
tend to result in an increase in net interest ireomuring a period of falling interest rates, gative gap would tend to result in an increas
net interest income, while a positive gap woulditemaffect net interest income adversely. Becdiféerent types of assets and liabilities
with the same or similar maturities may react défely to changes in overall market rates or cao$, changes in interest rates may affect
net interest income positively or negatively eviean institution were perfectly matched in eachumit category.
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The following table sets forth the estimated m&yuoi repricing of our interest-earning assets iaterest-bearing liabilities at
December 31, 2009. The amounts of assets anditiehshown within a particular period were detarad in accordance with the contractual
terms of the assets and liabilities, except adplsteate loans, and securities are included imp#@d in which their interest rates are first
scheduled to adjust and not in the period in whidly mature and does include the effect of theésterate swaps. The interest rate
sensitivity of our assets and liabilities in thbléacould vary substantially if based on actuappsenent experience.

Within 3 1 Year to Greater than

Months 3-12 Months 3 Years 3 Years Total
Rate sensitive asse $ 3,465,421 % 212,74. $ 1,682,231 $ 1,099,49. $ 6,459,90;
Cash equivaleni 24.27¢ - - - 24,27¢
Total rate sensitive asse 3,489,70 212,74 1,682,23: 1,099,49. 6,484,18.
Rate sensitive liabilitie 2,243,30! 140,49 - - 2,383,801
Interest rate sensitivity gé $ 124639 $ 72,24¢  $ 1,682,231 $ 1,099,49° $ 4,100,37
Cumulative rate sensitivity ge $ 124639 $ 131864 $ 3,00088 $ 4,100,37
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap ¢
percentage of total rate sensitive as 19% 20% 46% 63%

Our analysis of risks is based on our manager'sgapce, estimates, models and assumptions. HEmedgses rely on models which
utilize estimates of fair value and interest ramsstivity. Actual economic conditions or implent&ton of investment decisions by our
manager may produce results that differ signifilgainbm the estimates and assumptions used in @aems and the projected results show
the above tables and in this Form 10-K. Theseyaralcontain certain forward-looking statementsaredsubject to the safe harbor statement
set forth under the heading, “Special Note Regaréiorward-Looking Statements.”

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat

Our consolidated financial statements and theadlabtes, together with the Report of IndependegfisRered Public Accounting
Firm thereon, are set forth on pages F-1 throu@6 Bf this Form 10-K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountés on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ifjor CEO and Chief Financial Officer, or CFO,iesved and evaluated the
effectiveness of the design and operation of aseldsure controls and procedures (as defined ie R8&-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the
Securities Exchange Act) as of the end of the pes@vered by this annual report. Based on thaeweand evaluation, the CEO and CFO
have concluded that our current disclosure conantsprocedures, as designed and implemented gf®) effective in ensuring that
information regarding the Company and its subsielis made known to our management, includingGi® and CFO, as appropriate to
allow timely decisions regarding required discl@sand (2) were effective in providing reasonabkuemnce that information the Company
must disclose in its periodic reports under theufifes Exchange Act is recorded, processed, sumgthand reported within the time peri
prescribed by the SEC's rules and forms.

There have been no changes in the Company’s intesnérols over financial reporting that occurradidg the quarter ended
December 31, 2009 that have materially affectedrereasonably likely to affect its internal cohtver financial reporting.
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Management Report On Internal Control Over Financid Reporting

Management of the Company isaasible for establishing and maintaining adequatirnal control over financial reporting.
Internal control over financial reporting is defthim Rules 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchakgeas a process designed by, or under the
supervision of, the Company’s principal executind arincipal financial officers and effected by tiempany’s Board of Directors,
management and other personnel to provide reasoaablrance regarding the reliability of finanogdorting and the preparation of finan
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles and atetuthose policies and procedures that:

« pertain to the maintenance of records that in meaisie detail accurately and fairly reflect the sactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Compar

» provide reasonable assurance that transactionse@seded as necessary to permit preparation ofi¢iahstatements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, #nad receipts and expenditures of the Company eirggbmade only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directorthefCompany; an

« provide reasonable assurance regarding preventitmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, eselisposition of the
Compan’s assets that could have a material effect onitla@dial statement:

Because of its inherent limitatipitgernal control over financial reporting may rpevent or detect misstatements. As a re
even systems determined to be effective can prowidg reasonable assurance regarding the preparatiol presentation of financ
statements. Moreover, projections of any evalnati effectiveness to future periods are subjecth risks that controls may becc
inadequate because of changes in conditions othbategree of compliance with the policies or pohges may deteriorate.

The Company’s management assebseeffectiveness of the Company’s internal cordx@r financial reporting as of December
31, 2009. In making this assessment, the Compangisagement used criteria set forth by the ComendfeSponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-fymsged Framework.

Based on management’s assessrent,dmpany’s management believes that, as of Deme®ih 2009, the Company'’s internal
control over financial reporting was effective bdie® those criteria. The Company’s independenstagd public accounting firm, Deloitte

& Touche LLP, has issued an attestation reporhertompany'’s internal control over financial repagt This report appears on page F-1 of
this annual report on Form 10-K.

Iltem 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

The information required by Item 10 as to our diveg is incorporated herein by reference to theystatement to be filed with the
SEC within 120 days after December 31, 2009.

The information regarding our executive officerquieed by Item 10 is incorporated by referencehtoproxy statement to be filed
with the SEC within 120 days after December 31,9200

The information required by Item 10 as to our caempde with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchafwgeof 1934 is incorporated
by reference to the proxy statement to be filedhhie SEC within 120 days after December 31, 2009.

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsBthihin the meaning of Iltem 406(b) of Regulat®K. This Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics applies to our prih@pecutive officer, principal financial officer dmprincipal accounting officer. This Code
of Business Conduct and Ethics is publicly avagadah our website at www.chimerareit.com. If wekmaubstantive amendments to this
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics or grant ariyarancluding any implicit waiver, we intend tésdlose these events on our website.

The information regarding certain matters pertajrtmour corporate governance required by Item &)Q3), (d)(4) and (d)(5) of
Regulation S-K is incorporated by reference toRhexy Statement to be filed with the SEC within H&§s after December 31, 2009.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 is incorpodhterein by reference to the proxy statement tfilde with the SEC within 120
days after December 31, 2009.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiaDwners and Management and Related Stockholder Madts

The information required by Item 12 is incorpodhteerein by reference to the proxy statement tfilde with the SEC within 120
days after December 31, 2009.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transdmns, and Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 is incorpodhtesrein by reference to the proxy statement tfilde with the SEC within 120
days after December 31, 2009.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 is incorporakesiein by reference to the proxy statement taled #ith the SEC within 120
days after December 31, 2009.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Documents filed as part of this report:
1. Financial Statements.
2. Schedules to Financial Statements.

All financial statement schedules have been omlttszhuse they are either inapplicable or the inddion required is provided in o
Financial Statements and Notes thereto, includéthim |1, Item 8, of this Annual Report on Form KO-

3. Exhibits:
EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit Description
Number
3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Chimeva$tment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the

Company'’s Registration Statement on Amendment No.Form S-11 (File No. 333-145525) filed on Septem
27, 2007 and incorporated herein by referel

3.2 Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investment@wation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’'sgert on
Form &K filed on May 28, 2009 and incorporated hereirrdfgrence
3.3 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chimera Investi@orporation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Comya

Registration Statement on Amendment No. 2 to Forbi $rile No. 333-145525) filed on November 5, 2@0id
incorporated herein by referenc

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Chimexestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to @@mpany’s
Registration Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Forbd §ile No. 333-145525) filed on September 2Q720
and incorporated herein by referen

10.1 Form of Management Agreement between Chiftmeestment Corporation and Fixed Income Discountigary
Company (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Regtion Statement on Amendment No. 1 to FordilSFile
No. 33:-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and incorpdragzein by referenct

10.2 Form of Amendment No. 1 to the ManagementAgrent between Chimera Investment Corporation &t F
Income Discount Advisory Company (filed as Exhibit2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File No. 333-1514@8) on October 14, 2008 and incorporated hergin b
reference’

10.3 Form of Amendment No. 2 to the ManagementAgrent between Chimera Investment Corporation aeti F
Income Discount Advisory Company (filed as Exhibit1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8kedfi
on October 20, 2008 and incorporated herein byeafs)

10.4% Form of Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Bth10.2 to the Companyg’Registration Statement on Amendment
1 to Form 11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and incorpdraé&zein by referenct

10.5% Form of Restricted Common Stock Award (fiesdExhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Registration &tant on
Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File No. 333-1455#8) on September 27, 2007 and incorporated hdrgin
reference’

10.6% Form of Stock Option Grant (filed as Exhitit4 to the Company’s Registration Statement oreddment No. 1
to Form $&11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and incorpdragzein by referenct

10.7 Form of Master Securities Repurchase Agreenfdad as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Registna Statement
on Amendment No. 3 to Form S-11 (File No. 33&525) filed on November 13, 2007 and incorporatein b
reference’

12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Char

21.1 Subsidiaries of Registra

23.3 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking.

31.1 Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Extiee Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to Section
302 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of A. Alexandra Denahan, CHifiancial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant tet®e 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Execut®ficer and President of the Registrant, pursuardig U.S.C
Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 9€¢&darban«Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of A. Alexandra Denahan, CHi@fiancial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant toll8.C. Section

1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theaBa-Oxley Act of 2002
T Represents a management contract or compengddorgr arrangement.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Chimera Investment Corporation
New York, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséaits of financial condition of Chimera Investm@airporation and subsidiaries (the
"Company") as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, amdelated consolidated statements of operationsamgrehensive income (loss),
changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flowgéah of the two years in the period ended Decel®ibe2009, December 31, 2008, and for
the period November 21, 2007 to December 31, 20U&.also have audited the Company's internal cbawer financial reporting as of
December 31, 2009, based on criteria establishédemnal Control — Integrated Framework issuedh®/Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Camjs management is responsible for these finastagments, for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reportjrand for its assessment of the effectivenesstefnal control over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Management Reportr@arhal Control Over Financial Reporting at Item 9Bur responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements and amapon the Company's internal control over finahoéporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBigUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal corgvelr financial reporting was maintained in all ev&l respects. Our audits of the financial
statements included examining, on a test basideaee supporting the amounts and disclosures ifirthecial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, and evaluating the ovenahdial statement presentation. Our
audit of internal control over financial reportimgluded obtaining an understanding of internaltadrover financial reporting, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testitigezraluating the design and operating effectivenéiternal control based on the assessed
risk. Our audits also included performing sucheoftrocedures as we considered necessary in thamstances. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed by, or under the supemvidi the company's principal executive
and principal financial officers, or persons penigrg similar functions, and effected by the compsifspard of directors, management, and
other personnel to provide reasonable assuraneediag the reliability of financial reporting anitet preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles. A company's intermadtml over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaihngartaintenance of records that, in reasonablel dataurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets ofdhgpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance thaactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in adaace with generally accepted accounting princjied that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordanceawithorizations of management and directors of ¢mepany; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely deteafamauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositionhaf company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcohover financial reporting, including the possti of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltoarover financial reporting to future periods ateject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditiotigat the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegrferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of Chimera
Investment Corporation and subsidiaries as of Déeer81, 2009 and 2008, and the results of theiratjpms and their cash flows for each of
the two years in the period ended December 31,,208@ember 31, 2008, and for the period NovembgeRQQ7 to December 31, 2007, in
conformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America. Also, in @pinion, the Company maintained, in
all material respects, effective internal contreéofinancial reporting as of December 31, 200%¢ekleon the criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Coremibf Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway @@sion.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
New York, New York
February 25, 2010
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slag

December 3. December 3!
2009 2008

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 24,27¢ $ 27,48(
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair vali 2,398,86! 613,10!
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair val 1,690,02! 242,36:
Securitized loans held for investment, net of adlage for loan losses of $4.6 million and $1.6 wlli
respectively 470,53: 583,34t
Accrued interest receivab 33,12¢ 9,951
Other asset 1,494 1,257
Total asset $ 4,618,320 $ 1,477,550
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreeme $ 1,716,390 $ -
Repurchase agreements with affilia 259,00 562,11¢
Securitized dek 390,35( 488,74:
Accrued interest payab 3,23¢ 2,46t
Dividends payabli 113,78t 7,04(
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 472 387
Investment management fees payable to affi 8,51¢ 2,292
Total liabilites $ 2,491,760 $ 1,063,04
Commitments and Contingencies (Note - -
Stockholders' Equity:
Common stock: par value $0.01 per share; 1,00000006hares
authorized, 670,371,587 and 177,198,212 sharesdsand outstanding, respectiv $ 6,69: $ 1,76(
Additional paic-in-capital 2,290,61. 831,96t
Accumulated other comprehensive | (99,759 (266,66
Accumulated defici (70,99 (152,607
Total stockholders' equit $ 2,126,56. $ 414 45!
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 4,618,320 $ 1,477,50.

See notes to consolidated financial statem

F-3




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slag

For the Year

For the Period
For the Year November 21,

Ended Ended to
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2009 2008 2007

Net Interest Income:
Interest incom $ 298,53¢ $ 105,25¢ $ 3,492
Interest expens 35,08 60,54+ 41E
Net interest incom 263,45t 44,71t 3,071
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: (16,269 - -
Non-credit portion of loss recognized in other compredie income (loss 6,26¢ - -
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (9,996 - -
Other gains (losses)
Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ - 4,15¢ (4,156
Realized gains (losses) on sales of investmentt 103,64t (144,304 -
Realized losses on principal w-downs of no-Agency RMBS (25%) - -
Realized losses on terminations of interest ratgps - (10,337 -
Total other gains (losse 103,39: (150,485 (4,156
Net investment income (expenst 356,85 (105,770 (1,079
Other expenses:
Management fe 25,70¢ 8,42¢ 1,215
Provision for loan losse 3,102 1,54C 81
General and administrative expen 4,061 4,05¢ 524
Total other expense 32,86 14,027 1,822
Income (loss) before income taxe 323,98 (119,79) (2,907
Income taxe: 1 12 5
Net income (loss $ 323,98. $ (119,809 $ (2,906)
Net income (loss) per shi-basic and dilute $ 064 $ (1.90 $ (0.0¢)
Weighted average number of shares outstarbasic and dilute 507,042,42 63,155,87 37,401,73
Comprehensive income (loss
Net income (loss $ 323,98. $ (119,809 $ (2,906
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gain (loss) on availa-for-sale securitie 260,30¢ (421,125 10,15:
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetkt
income for othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 9,99¢ - -
Reclassification adjustment for realized (gainss&s
included in net income (los (103,39) 144,30« -
Other comprehensive income (los 166,91« (276,82) 10,15:
Comprehensive income (los $ 490,89 $ (396,630 $ 7,241

See notes to consolidated financial statem:
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Accumulated

Common Additional Other
Stock Paid- Comprehensive Accumulated
Par Value in Capital Loss Deficit Total

Balance, November 21, 20! $ - $ - $ - $ = =
(date operations commence

Net loss - - - (2,906 (2,906
Other comprehensive incor - - 10,15: - 10,15:
Proceeds from direct purche - 11 - - 11
Proceeds from common stock offerir 341 477,91( - - 478,25:
Proceeds from common stock offerir

to affiliate 36 54,28 - - 54,32
Common dividends declare

$0.025 per shat - - - (943) (943)
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 377 $ 532,20¢ $ 10,15 $ (3,849 538,88
Net loss - - - (119,809 (119,809
Other comprehensive lo - - (276,82) - (276,82)
Proceeds from direct purche - 97 - - 97
Proceeds from common stock offerir 1,26t 272,03¢ - - 273,30:
Proceeds from common stock offerir

to affiliate 117 26,16¢ - - 26,28:
Proceeds from restricted stock gra 1 1,45¢ - - 1,46(
Common dividends declare

$0.62 per shar - - - (28,949 (28,945
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 1,76 $ 831,96t $ (266,669 $ (152,609 414 45!
Net income - - - 323,98 323,98
Other comprehensive incor - - 166,91« - 166,91«
Proceeds from direct purche - 50 - - 50
Proceeds from common stock offerir 4,63¢ 1,368,241 - - 1,372,88
Proceeds from common stock offerir

to affiliate 29¢€ 89,78: - - 90,07¢
Proceeds from restricted stock gra 2 57C - - 572
Common dividends declare -
$0.43 per shar - - - (242,377 (242,377
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 6,69: $ 2,290,61 $ (99,759 $ (70,99) $ 2,126,56.

See notes to consolidated financial statem:




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
(dollars in thousand:

For The Year

For The Year

For The Period
November 21, 20C

Ended Ended to December 31,
December 31, 20C December 31, 20( 2007

Cash Flows From Operating Activites:
Net income (loss $ 323,98. $ (119,809 $ (2,906
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to

cash provided by operating activiti
(Accretion) amortization of investment discou (49,249 294 (98)
Unrealized (gains) losses on interest rate s\ - (4,156 4,15¢
Realized loss on termination of interest rate sv - 10,33 -
Realized (gain) loss on sale of investme (103,646 144,30« -
Realized losses on principal w-downs of no-Agency RMBS 25E - -
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 9,99¢ - -
Provision for loan losse 3,10z 1,54(C 81
Restricted stock gran 572 1,46(C -
Changes in operating asse

Increase in accrued interest receivi (23,177 (5,619 (4,339

Increase in other assi (237) (6949) (569
Changes in operating liabilitie

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable andl@thdities 85 (12€) 512

Increase in investment management fees payabiffiliate 6,227 1,07¢ 1,21

Increase in accrued interest paye 77C 2,05( 41F
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ 168,68. $ 30,66: $ (1,527
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
MortgageBacked Securities portfolic

Purchase (5,324,26) (1,483,41) (368,59

Sales 1,857,211 567,45! -

Principal payment 548,04 174,44¢ 1,78¢
Loans held for investment portfoli

Purchase - (735,27)) (162,465

Sales - 90,73: -

Principal payment - 23,11t -
Securitized loans

Purchase - (111 -

Principal payment 108,85( 40,71« -
Reverse repurchase agreeme - 265,00( (265,000
Restricted cas - 1,35(C (1,350
Net cash used in investing activiti $ (2,810,15) $ (1,055,98) $ (795,62()
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from repurchase agreem 59,370,622 85,585,11 270,58:

Payments on repurchase agreem (57,957,34) (85,293,58) -

Net proceeds from common stock offeril 1,372,88 273,30: 478,25(

Net proceeds from common stock offerings tdiatés 90,07¢ 26,28 54,32«

Proceeds from collateralized mortgage debt vamgs - 526,71t -

Payments on collateralized mortgage debt borrgs (102,39) (37,977 -

Net proceeds from direct purchases of commarks 50 97 11

Net payments on termination of interest rateps - (10,337 -

Common dividends pa (135,627 (22,849 -
Net cash provided by financing activiti $ 2,638,27 $ 1,046,77. $ 803,16
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis (3,207 21,45¢ 6,02¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 27,48( 6,02¢ -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 24.27¢ $ 27,480 $ 6,02¢€

F-6




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
(dollars in thousand:

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Interest pait $ 34,45:. $ 58,49 $ -

Taxes pait $ 1 $ 33 % -
Net cash investing activities:

Payable for investments purcha: $ - $ - $ 748,92(

Transfer from loans held for investmen

mortgag-backed securitie $ - $ 73527, $ -

Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on avas-

for-sale securitie $ 166,91: $ (276,82) $ 10,15:
Net cash financing activities;

Common dividends declared, not yet $ 113,78¢ $ 7,04C % 942

See notes to consolidated financial statem:
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 atid Period November 21, 2007 to December 31, 2007

1. Organization

Chimera Investment Corporation (“Companwas organized in Maryland on June 1, 2007. The fgizoyyp commenced operations
November 21, 2007 when it completed its initial pubffering. The Company has elected to be tea®d real estate investment ti
(“REIT"), under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 amended. As long as the Company qualifiesREsla, the Company will generally
not be subject to U.S. federal or state corpomated on its income to the extent that the Compastyilalites at least 90% of its taxable net
income to its stockholders. In July 2008, the Camypformed Chimera Securities Holdings, LLC, a igrolwned subsidiary. In June 2009,
the Company formed Chimera Asset Holding LLC anéh@hna Holding LLC, both wholly-owned subsidiarieShimera Securities Holdings
LLC, Chimera Asset Holding LLC and Chimera Holdind;,C are qualified REIT subsidiaries. Annaly Cab#anagement, Inc. (“Annaly”)
owns approximately 6.7% of the Company’s commomeshaThe Company is managed by Fixed Income Digcadvisory Company
(“FIDAC"), an investment advisor registered wittetBecurities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). RlO#é a whollyewned subsidiary ¢
Annaly.

2. Summary of the Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of the Company and its wholly-owned subsiés, Chimera Securities
Holdings, LLC, Chimera Asset Holding LLC and Chimétolding LLC. All intercompany balances and ti@st®ns have been eliminated.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handasiddeposited overnight in money market funds.
(c) Non-Agency and Agency Residential Mortgage-Baekl Securities

The Company invests in residential mortgage-baskeedrities (‘RMBS”) representing interests in obtigns backed by pools of
mortgage loans. The Company classifies its inmest securities as either “trading,” “available-&ale,” or “held-to-maturity.” The
Company holds its RMBS as available-for-sale, résanvestments at estimated fair value as desciibblidte 5 of these consolidated
financial statements, and unrealized gains aneé$oaee included in other comprehensive income)(loghe consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss). Fioento time, as part of the overall managementsopartfolio, the Company may sell any
of its RMBS investments and recognize a realized galoss as a component of earnings in the catesteld statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss) utilizing the speddntification method.

Interest income on RMBS is computed on the remgipitincipal balance of the investment securityerfiums or discounts on
investment securities that are guaranteed asnacipal and/or interest repayment as is with agenafehe U.S. Government or federally
chartered corporations such as Ginnie Mae, Fraddie, or Fannie Mae (“Agency RMBS”) are recognizeérthe life of the investment
using the effective interest methodPremiums or discount amortization/accretion on-Agency RMBS is recognized in accordance with
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 328yestment-Other . For non-Agency RMBS the Company estimates atithe of purchase
expected future cash flows, prepayment speedsit tvedes, loss severity, and loss timing basetherCompany’s observation of available
market data, its experience, and the collectivgiuent of its management team to determine theteféemterest rate on the RMBS. Not less
than quarterly, the Company reevaluates, and éssary, makes adjustments to its analysis utilizitgrnal models, external market research
and sources in conjunction with its view on perfanoe in the non-Agency RMBS sector. Changes t&€tmpanys assumptions subsequ
to the purchase date may increase or decreasenthiéization/accretion of premiums and discountsohtiffects interest income. Changes to
assumptions that decrease expected future cash ftay result in other-than-temporary impairment.

Fair value of RMBS is determined utilizing a prnigimodel that incorporates such factors as coym@payment speeds, weighted
average life, collateral composition, borrower auégristics, expected interest rates, life capgpgie caps, reset dates, collateral seasoning,
expected losses, expected default severity, ceatidncement, and other pertinent factors. The @aynpalidates the fair value determined
by the pricing model with quotes provided by indegent dealers and/or pricing services. Maté@ifrences and the impact of the
differences between the fair values determinechbyGompany and third party sources are disclos@tbia 5 of the consolidated financial
statements.
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If the fair value of an investment security is l&an its amortized cost at the date of the codatdd statement of financial conditi
the Company analyzes the investment security fogrethan-temporary impairment. Management evasuiite Company’s RMBS for other-
than-temporary impairment at least on a quarteaisid) and more frequently when economic or marnteterns warrant such
evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the tbngf time and the extent to which the fair valae bbeen lower than carrying value, (2) the
intent of the Company to sell the investment priorecovery in fair value (3) whether the Comparnly e more likely than not required to
sell the investment before the expected recovefgiirvalue, (4) and the expected future cash flolihe investment in relation to its
amortized cost. Unrealized losses on assets thapasidered other-than-temporary credit impaisane recognized in income and the cost
basis of the asset is adjusted.

(d) Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company’s securitized residential mortgagedame comprised of fixed-rate and variable-ratasoarhe Company purchases
pools of residential mortgage loans through a $ejesup of originators. Mortgage loans are desigd as held for investment, recorded on
trade date, and are carried at their principalrmdautstanding, plus any premiums or discounss, dlowances for loan losses. Interest
income on loans held for investment is recognizegt the life of the investment using the effeciivierest method. Income recognition is
suspended for loans when, in the opinion of managéna full recovery of income and principal becsrdeubtful. Income recognition is
resumed when the loan becomes contractually cuarehperformance is demonstrated to be resumed.Company estimates fair value of
securitized loans as described in Note 5 of thesedalidated financial statements.

(e) Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company has established an allowance for lnsseb at a level that management believes is aelgased on an evaluation of
known and inherent risks related to the Compargéas Iportfolio. The estimate is based on a vanéfactors including current economic
conditions, industry loss experience, the loanioatpr’'s loss experience, credit quality trendanlgortfolio compaosition, delinquency trends,
national and local economic trends, national unegrpkent data, changes in housing appreciation pred@tion and whether specific
geographic areas where the Company has significantconcentrations are experiencing adverse ecicrmnditions and events such as
natural disasters that may affect the local econonproperty values. Upon purchase of a pool ofispghe Company obtains written
representations and warranties from the selletgtiegaCompany could be reimbursed for the valugaefloan if the loan fails to meet the
agreed upon origination standards. While the Combas little history of its own to establish |laaends, delinquency trends of the
originators and the current market conditions aidetermining the allowance for loan losses. The@any also performed due diligence
procedures on a sample of loans that met its ixitkiring the purchase process. The Company leasect an unallocated provision for
probable loan losses estimated as a percentage ofinaining unpaid principal balance on the lodflanagement’s estimate is based on
historical experience of similarly underwritten fgo

When the Company determines it is probable thatiBpeontractually due amounts are uncollectilthes amount is considered
impaired. Where impairment is indicated, a vahmativrite-off is measured based upon the excedseofdcorded investment over the net fair
value of the collateral, reduced by selling cogtay deficiency between the carrying amount of agesand the net sales price of repossesset
collateral is charged to the allowance for loarséss

(f) Repurchase Agreements

The Company may finance the acquisition of its strreent securities through the use of repurchaseagnts. Repurchase
agreements are treated as collateralized finaricamgactions and are carried at their contractualats, including accrued interest, as
specified in the respective agreements.

(9) Securitized Debt

The Company has issued securitized debt to finarpation of its residential mortgage loan portioliThe securitizations are
collateralized by residential adjustable or fixatermortgage loans or RMBS that have been placadrirst and pay interest and principal
payments to the debt holders of that securitizatibhe Company’s securitizations, which are accoedifdr as financings, are recorded as an
asset called “Securitized loans held for investrhentthe consolidated statements of financial cbodiand the corresponding debt as
“Securitized debt” in the consolidated statememfinancial condition. The Company estimates failue of securitized debt as described in
Note 5 to these consolidated financial statem:
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(h) Fair Value Disclosure

A complete discussion of the methodology utilizgdte Company to fair value its financial instrurteeis included in Note 5 to
these consolidated financial statements.

(i) Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Adivity

The Company'’s policies permit us to enter intowdgive contracts, including interest rate swapsiatetest rate caps, as a means of
mitigating our interest rate risk. The Company mae to use interest rate derivative instrumentsitmate interest rate risk rather than to
enhance returns. If the Company hedges using siteate swaps these instruments are accounted fetheer assets or liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial condition, measured at fair value with realized and unrealgaids and losses recognized in earnings.

The FASB issued additional guidance that attempisprove the transparency of financial reportiggpboviding additional
information about how derivative and hedging atitigi affect an entity’s financial position, finaatperformance and cash flows. This
guidance requires the disclosure requirementsdavalive instruments and hedging activities byuiggg enhanced disclosure about (1) how
and why an entity uses derivative instrumentsh@y derivative instruments and related hedged itemd (3) how derivative instruments
related hedged items affect the entity’s finanpi@ition, financial performance, and cash flows.

In the normal course of business, the Company reayawariety of derivative financial instrumentsianage, or hedge, interest rate
risk. These derivative financial instruments museffective in reducing our interest rate risk esyoe in order to qualify for hedge
accounting. When the terms of an underlying tratisa@re modified, or when the underlying hedgeditceases to exist, all changes in the
fair value of the instrument are included in neime for each period until the derivative instrutmeatures or is settled. Any derivative
instrument used for risk management that does eet the hedging criteria is carried at fair valuthwhe changes in value included in net
income.

The Company uses derivatives for economic hedgimggses rather than speculation and will rely ootations from third parties to
determine fair values. If our hedging activitiesrbt achieve our desired results, the Companysrted earnings may be adversely affected.

()) Mortgage Loan Sales and Securitizations

The Company periodically enters into transactiong/fich it sells financial assets, such as RMBSitgame loans and other
assets. It may also securitize and re-securitien€ial assets. These transactions are accoforted either a “sale” and the loans held for
investment are removed from the consolidated staésrof financial condition or as a “financing” aaek classified asSecuritized loans he
for investment” on the Company’s consolidated steets of financial condition, depending upon timacitre of the securitization
transaction. In these securitizations and re-#&zations the Company sometimes retains or acquiemior or subordinated interests in the
securitized or re-securitized assets. Gains asgbkbon such securitizations or re-securitizatwasecognized using a financial components
approach that focuses on control. Under this aagrpafter a transfer of financial assets, anyergitognizes the financial and servicing as
it controls and the liabilities it has incurredyel@gnizes financial assets when control has beearglered, and derecognizes liabilities when
extinguished.

The Company determines the gain or loss on sateoofgage loans by allocating the carrying valuéhefunderlying mortgage loa
between securities or loans sold and the interetmed based on their fair values, as disclosédbte 5 to these consolidated financial
statements. The gain or loss on sale is the differ between the cash proceeds from the sale arartbunt allocated to the securities or
loans sold, net of transaction costs.

(k) Income Taxes

The Company qualifies to be taxed as a REIT, aacktbre it generally will not be subject to corgerdederal, or state income tay
the extent that qualifying distributions are maglstbckholders and the REIT requirements, includieigain asset, income, distribution and
stock ownership tests are met. If the Compangdaib qualify as a REIT and did not qualify forteém statutory relief provisions, the
Company would be subject to federal, state and locame taxes and may be precluded from qualifigag REIT for the subsequent four
taxable years following the year in which the RE|iTalification was lost.

() Net Income (Loss) per Share

The Company calculates basic net income (losssipene by dividing net income (loss) for the petigdhe weighted-average shares
of its common stock outstanding for that periodluted net income (loss) per share takes into atcthe effect of dilutive instruments, such
as stock options, but uses the average sharefpritiee period in determining the number of incremaéshares that are to be added to the
weighted average number of shares outstanding.Cbingpany had no potentially dilutive securitiesstamding during the periods presented.

(m) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock based compensatiarda granted to the employees of FIDAC in accardamith GAAP guidanc
for compensation to noemployees. GAAP requires the Company to measeréthvalue of the equity instrument using thecktprices ani
other measurement assumptions as of the earlathar the date at which a performance commitmgrihe counterparty is reached or the
date at which the counterparty's performance isptet®. Compensation expense related to the gofisteck and stock options is recognized
over the vesting period of such grants based oegtimated fair value



(n) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statets in conformity with GAAP requires managemennike estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts etassd liabilities and disclosure of contingersieds and reporting period. The most
significant estimates are related to the followiall assets classified as available-for-sale apdeported at their estimated fair value; all
investment securities are amortized/accreted baisaiklds that incorporate management’s assumptsris the expected performance of the
investment over time; loan loss provisions reflaeinagement estimates with regard to expected lo§sks securitized loan
portfolio. Actual results could differ from thosstimates.
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(o) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (ASC 105)

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@¢‘FASB”) issuedrhe Accounting Sandards Codification and the Hierarchy
of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles “Codification” which revises the framework for sefimg the accounting principles to be used in
the preparation of financial statements that aesgmted in conformity with Generally Accepted Aatiing Principles (“GAAP”). The
objective of the Codification is to establish the9B ASC as the source of authoritative accountirigciples recognized by the
FASB. Codification was effective for the Comparsycd September 30, 2009. In adopting the Codificaall non-grandfathered, non-SEC
accounting literature not included in the Codifioatwas superseded and deemed non-authoritatiedifi€ation requires any references
within the Company’s consolidated financial statatade modified from FASB issues to ASC. Howewasrrecommended in the FASB
Accounting Standards Codification Notice to Congtiits (v 2.0), the Company does not reference fiapserctions of the ASC but will use
broad topic references.

The Company’s recent accounting proneoments section has been reformatted to reflectahree organizational structure as the
ASC. Broad topic references will be updated wiginging content as they are released.

Assets

Investments in Debt and Equity Securities (ASC 320)

New guidance was provided to make impairment guidanore operational and to improve the presentatishdisclosure of other-
than-temporary impairments (“OTTI") on debt and ibgeecurities, as well as beneficial interestseouritized financial assets, in financial
statements. This guidance was the result of tkaries and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) mark-takeaistudy mandated under the
Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (“EE¥AThe SEC’s recommendation was to “evaluatertbed for modifications (or the
elimination) of current OTTI guidance to provide Bomore uniform system of impairment testing sgadd for financial instruments.” The
guidance revises the OTTI evaluation methodoldgseviously the analytical focus was on whetherdbrmapany had the “intent and ability to
retain its investment in the debt security for a@qubof time sufficient to allow for any anticipateecovery in fair value.” Now the focus is ¢
whether the company (1) has the intent to sellitiestment securities, (2) is more likely than tiatt it will be required to sell the investment
securities before recovery, or (3) does not exjmentcover the entire amortized cost basis oftrestment securities. Further, the security is
analyzed for credit loss, (the difference betwédenpgresent value of cash flows expected to beatelieand the amortized cost basis). The
credit loss, if any, is then be recognized in ttagesnent of operations, while the balance of impaint related to other factors will be
recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (“OCIf)the entity intends to sell the security, or Wik required to sell the security before its
anticipated recovery, the full OTTI will be recoged in the statement of operations.

OTTI has occurred if there has been an adversegeharfuture estimated cash flows and its impactflected in current
earnings. The determination cannot be overconmadayagement judgment of the probability of collegtill cash flows previously
projected. The objective of OTTI analysis is &aefmine whether it is probable that the holdel rgilize some portion of the unrealized |
on an impaired security. Factors to consider whaking OTTI decisions include information abouttpagents, current conditions,
reasonable and supportable forecasts, remaininggatyterms, financial condition of the issuer, estpd defaults, value of underlying
collateral, industry analysis, sector credit ratioigedit enhancement, and financial condition cirgator. The Company’s ndkgency RMBS
and Agency RMBS investments fall under this guigeacd as such, the Company will assess each sefmr®TTI based on estimated
future cash flows. This guidance became effedtivéehe Company on June 30, 2009.
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Broad Transactions

Business Combinations (ASC 805)

This guidance establishes principles and requiré¢srfen recognizing and measuring identifiable ass@d goodwill acquired,
liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling intefest business combination at their fair valuecafuésition date. ASC 805 alters the
treatment of acquisition-related costs, businegsbimations achieved in stages (referred to aspaagtquisition), the treatment of gains from a
bargain purchase, the recognition of contingenicidmisiness combinations, the treatment of in-@scesearch and development in a
business combination as well as the treatmentanigieizable deferred tax benefits. ASC 805 wascgffe for business combinations closed
in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 200Be Company did not make any business acquisitionisag the year ended December 31,
2009. The adoption of ASC 805 did not have a maltéripact on the Company’s consolidated finandiaesnents.

Consolidation (ASC 810)

On January 1, 2009, FASB amended the guidance mangenoncontrolling interests in consolidated finel statements, which
required the Company to make certain changes tprfentation of its consolidated financial statetsie This guidance requires
classification of noncontrolling interests (prevébureferred to as “minority interest”) as partooinsolidated net income and including the
accumulated amount of noncontrolling interestsaas @f stockholders’ equity. Further, this guidamequires distinction between equity
amounts attributable to controlling interest andbants attributable to the noncontrolling interesggreviously classified as minority interest
outside of stockholders’ equity. In addition tesle financial reporting changes, this guidanceigeaifor significant changes in accounting
related to noncontrolling interests; specificalfigreases and decreases in its controlling finhntierests in consolidated subsidiaries would
be reported in equity similar to treasury stocksactions. If a change in ownership of a consaidiaubsidiary results in loss of control and
deconsolidation. Any retained ownership interasésre-measured with the gain or loss reporte@irearnings.

Effective January 1, 2010, the consolidation stasislaave been amended to update the existing sthadd eliminate the exempti
from consolidation of a Qualified Special Purposdity (“QSPE”). The update requires an entemtsperform an analysis to determine
whether the enterprise’s variable interest or ag&x give it a controlling financial interest iwvariable interest entity (“VIE”). The analysis
identifies the primary beneficiary of a VIE as @erprise that has both: a) the power to direxttttivities that most significantly impact the
entity’s economic performance and b) the obligatmabsorb losses of the entity or the right t@nee benefits from the entity which could
potentially be significant to the VIE. The updatguires enhanced disclosures to provide useligaridial statements with more transparent
information about an enterprises involvement inle.VWe expect that we will be required to consal@RMBS re-securitization transactions
previously recorded during the year ended Decer@beP009 as sales for GAAP beginning with the effecdate of this ASU. We expect
consolidation of these transactions to increasenonrAgency portfolio by including approximately.$dillion in principal value of AAA
senior securities. In addition, we expect to rd@corresponding increase of $1.3 billion in ppatvalue of non-recourse liabilities, for
which we have no continuing obligations, in our solidated financial statements. The consolidaaexpected to reverse approximately
$98.1 million in previously recorded GAAP gainssales of assets related to the re-securitizatiodeniaken in 2009. The reversal of this
gain will be accreted into interest income overrdgmaining life of the re-securitized assets. Taenpany is currently considering the
complete impact of this ASU on its March 31, 20b@solidated financial statements.

On January 27, 2010, the FASB voted to indefinitidjer the effective date of ASU 2009-17 for a réipg enterprises interest in
entities for which it is industry practice to isdirancial statements in accordance with investneentpany standards (ASC 946). This
deferral is expected to most significantly affegporting entities in the investment managementstrigiiand therefore, as it stands, has no
material impact on the Company’s consolidated fongrstatements.

Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815)

Effective January 1, 2009 and adopted by the Comnpasspectively, the FASB issued additional guidaattempting to improve
the transparency of financial reporting by mandatire provision of additional information about hderivative and hedging activities affect
an entity’s financial position, financial perforn@nand cash flows. This guidance changed theodigid requirements for derivative
instruments and hedging activities by requiringaerded disclosure about (1) how and why an entiég wlerivative instruments, (2) how
derivative instruments and related hedged itemaereunted for, and (3) how derivative instrumemtd related hedged items affect an
entity’s financial position, financial performan@nd cash flows. To adhere to this guidance, tiiadé disclosures about objectives and
strategies for using derivatives, quantitative ldisares about fair value amounts, gains and lomsekerivative instruments, and disclosures
about credit-risk-related contingent features irvdgive agreements must be made. This disclosamework is intended to better convey
the purpose of derivative use in terms of the rthlas an entity is intending to manage. The adoptif this ASC had no material impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (ASC 820)

In response to the deterioration of the credit raemkFASB issued guidance clarifying how fair vataeasurements should be apg
when valuing securities in markets that are navactThe guidance provides an illustrative examptiizing management’s internal cash
flow and discount rate assumptions when relevasédable data do not exist. It further clarifiesvhobservable market information and
market quotes should be considered when measwingaiue in an inactive market. It reaffirms thation of fair value as an exit price as of
the measurement date and that fair value analysisransactional process and should not be breguljed to a group of assets. The
guidance was effective upon issuance includingrgrémiods for which financial statements had narbissued. The implementation of this
guidance did not have a material impact on theviaie of the Company’s assets as the Company’sadetogies previously employed to
value assets complied with the new guidance.

In October 2008 EESA was signed into law. Secti8d of the EESA mandated that the SEC conductdy stn mark-to-market
accounting standards. The SEC provided its stodlye U.S. Congress on December 30, 2008. P#reakecommendations within the study
indicated that fair value requirements should be improved throdgbelopment of application and best practices guiddor determining fa
value in illiquid or inactive markets.” As a resaf this study and the recommendations thereirdpril 9, 2009, the FASB issued additional
guidance for determining fair value when the voluand level of activity for the asset or liabilitgve significantly decreased when compared
with normal market activity for the asset or lidtyil(or similar assets or liabilities). The guidangives specific factors to evaluate if there has
been a decrease in normal market activity and, ipsavides a methodology to analyze transactiorguoted prices and make necessary
adjustments to fair value. The objective is teed®@ine the point within a range of fair value esties that is most representative of fair value
under current market conditions. This guidanceabexeffective for the Company’s June 30, 2009 tappperiod. The adoption did not
have a material impact on the manner in which tbe@any estimates fair value, nor did it have angaot on our financial statement
disclosures.

In August 2009, FASB provided further guidanceABU 200905) regarding the fair value measurement of libgi The guidanc
stated that a quoted price for the identical ligbivhen traded as an asset in an active marketisvel 1 fair value measurement. If the value
must be adjusted for factors specific to the lighithen the adjustment to the quoted price ofdb®et renders the fair value measurement of
the liability a lower level measurement. This guide had no material effect on the fair valuatibthe Company’s liabilities.

In September 2009, FASB issued guidance (in ASW92[#) on measuring the fair value of certain alive investments. This
guidance offered investors a practical expedientrfeasuring the fair value of investments in certaitities that calculate net asset value
(“NAV") per share. If an investment falls withihd scope of the ASU, the reporting entity is peeditbut not required to use the
investment’'s NAV to estimate its fair value. Thisidance had no material effect on the fair vatratif the Company’s assets, as the
Company does not hold any assets qualifying urideiguidance.

In January 2010, FASB issues guidance (in ASU 2Td)o increases disclosure regarding the fairevaluiassets. The key
provisions of this guidance include the requirenterdisclose separately the amounts of signifiteamtsfers in and out of Level 1 and Level 2
including a description of the reason for the tfarss Previously this was only required of transfeetween Level 2 and Level 3
assets. Further, reporting entities are requingatdvide fair value measurement disclosures fohetass of assets and liabilities; a class is
potentially a subset of the assets or liabilitiéthin a line item in the statement of financial pos. Additionally, disclosures about the
valuation techniques and inputs used to measurgdhie for both recurring and nonrecurring failueameasurements are required for either
Level 2 or Level 3 assets. This portion of thedgmice is effective for the Company beginning Jania?010. The guidance also requires
that the disclosure on any Level 3 assets preseptrately information about purchases, salesaigsis and settlements. In other words,
Level 3 assets are presented on a gross basis tladimeas one net number. However, this last@oxf the guidance is not effective until
January 1, 2011. Adoption of this guidance wilukt in increased financial statement disclosuretfe Company.
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Financial Instruments (ASC 820)

On April 9, 2009, the FASB issued guidance whidjuiees disclosures about fair value of financiskinoments for interim reporting
periods as well as in annual financial statememtss guidance became effective for the Companyg B 2009. The adoption did not have
any impact on financial reporting as all finandredtruments are currently reported at fair valubath interim and annual periods.

Subsequent Events (ASC 855)

ASC 855 provides general standards governing a¢cmufor and disclosure of events that occur afterbalance sheet date through
the date of issuance of the consolidated finarst&ements. ASC 855 also provides guidance opédhied after the balance sheet date during
which management of a reporting entity should eat&l@vents or transactions that may occur for piadeecognition or disclosure in the
financial statements, the circumstances under wdwicentity should recognize events or transactmesrring after the balance sheet date in
its financial statements and the disclosures thatdity should make about events or transactionsgroing after the balance sheet date. The
Company adopted this ASC effective June 30, 2008 aaloption had no impact on the Company’s conawitifinancial statements. There
were no material subsequent events through theofladsuance of this Annual Report on Form 10-Keptas disclosed in Note 14.

Transfers and Servicing (ASC 860)

In February 2008 FASB issued guidance addressiraiheh transactions where assets purchased fromieuter counterparty and
financed through a repurchase agreement with time saunterparty can be considered and accountexs feeparate transactions, or are
required to be considered “linked” transactions an&y be considered derivatives. This guidanceiregpurchases and subsequent financing
through repurchase agreements be considered linkeshctions unless all of the following conditiapply: (1) the initial purchase and the
use of repurchase agreements to finance the pwenasiot contractually contingent upon each o{2¢the repurchase financing entered
into between the parties provides full recoursthéotransferee and the repurchase price is fix@dhe financial assets are readily obtainable
in the market; and (4) the financial instrument #m&repurchase agreement are not coterminous glindlance was effective for the
Company on January 1, 2009 and the implementattbnat have a material impact on the consolidaiteaicial statements of the Company.

On June 12, 2009, the FASB issued (in ASU 2009%h6mendment update to the accounting standardsmgoy the transfer and
servicing of financial assets. This amendmentatgxdithe existing standard and eliminates the qirafea QSPE clarified the surrendering
control to effect sale treatment; and modifiedfthancial components approach — limiting the cirstemces in which a financial asset or
portion thereof should be derecognized when thesfesior maintains continuing involvement. It definthe term “Participating
Interest”. Under this standard update, the transferor musigréze and initially measure at fair value all assibtained and liabilities incurr
as a result of a transfer, including any retaineddficial interest. Additionally, the amendmentuiegd enhanced disclosures regarding the
transferors risk associated with continuing invaheat in any transferred assets. The amendmeffeistive beginning January 1,

2010. The Company has determined the amendmemtchmaterial impact on the consolidated finansialements. See discussion under
Consolidation (ASC 810) above.

3. Mortgage-Backed Securities
The following tables represent the Company’s atgldor-sale RMBS portfolio as of December 31, 2009 andebbdser 31, 2008, .
fair value. The Company classifies its non-AgeR&BS into senior and subordinated interests. Senterests in non-Agency RMBS are

considered to be entitled first to principal repays in their prorata ownership interests.
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December 31, 200
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Gross
Principal Unamortized Unamortized  Unrealized Unrealized
Value Premium Discount Gain Loss Fair Value
Non-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ 2,757,21 $ 153¢ $ (628,209 $ 83,94¢ $ (192,079 $ 2,022,40
Subordinate: 1,616,03. 10,34¢ (1,239,76) 65,99¢ (76,145 376,45¢
Agency RMBS 1,616,45! 55,08 (29 20,76% (2,240 1,690,02!
Total $ 5,989,69 % 66,96: $ (1,868,00) $ 170,70¢ $ (270,469) $ 4,088,89
December 31, 200
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Gross
Principal Unamortizec  Unamortizec Unrealized Unrealized
Value Premium Discount Gain Loss Fair Value
Non-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ 881,11. $ 1,85¢ $ (18,379 $ 3457 $ (265,05) $ 603,00:
Subordinate: 18,34t 247 (1,38)) 2,20¢ (9,316 10,10¢
Agency RMBS 233,97t 6,35( - 2,03¢ - 242,36:
Total $ 113343 $ 8,45 $ (19,759 $ 7,701 $ (274,369 $ 855,46

The following tables present the gross unrealinsdds and estimated fair value of the Company’s RMBlength of time that such

securities have been in a continuous unrealizesijosition at December 31, 2009 and 2008.

December 31, 200
(dollars in thousand:
Unrealized Loss Position Fc

Less than 12 Montt 12 Months or More Total
Estimated Estimated Estimated
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
RMBS Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Non-Agency RMBS
Seniot $ 539,57¢ $ (38,466 $ 489,67( $ (153,61) $ 1,029,24¢ $ (192,079
Subordinate: 179,22¢ (72,439 5,86% (3,707 185,08t (76,145
Agency 682,68: (2,240 - - 682,68: (2,240
Total $ 140148 $ (113,149 & 49553, $ (157,320 $ 1,897,010 $ (270,469
December 31, 200
(dollars in thousand:
Unrealized Loss Position Fc
Less than 12 Montt 12 Months or More Total
Estimated Estimated Estimated
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
RMBS Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Non-Agency RMBS
Seniot $ 587,61. $ (265,05) $ - 3 - $ 587,61. $ (265,05)
Subordinate: 267,85¢ (9,316 - - 267,85¢ (9,316
Agency s s s s s s
Total $ 855,46° $ (274,368 $ - $ - $ 855,46° $ (274,369
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The Company recorded a $10.0 million other-thangirary credit impairment during the year on investis where the expected
future cash flows of certain subordinated non-AgeRbMBS were less than their amortized cost baflee Company evaluates each
investment in our RMBS portfolio for OTTI quarterdy more often if market conditions warrant. Timeoatized cost of each investment in an
unrealized loss position is compared to the presaloe of expected future cash flows of the posititf the amortized cost of the security is
less than the present value of its expected fudasé flows, an other-than-temporary credit impaintes occurred. If the Company does not
intend to sell nor are required to sell the debuséy prior to its anticipated recovery, the ctddss, if any, is recognized in the statement of
operations, while the balance of impairment relatedther factors is recognized in Other Compreivenscome (“OCI”). If we intend to se
the debt security, or will be required to sell Heeurity before its anticipated recovery, the @illTI is recognized in the statement of
operations. The determination cannot be overcopmadmagement judgment of the probability of coltegtall cash flows previously
projected.

Actual maturities of mortgage-backed securitiesgarerally shorter than stated contractual magsritiActual maturities of the
Company’s RMBS are affected by the contractuaklivEthe underlying mortgages, periodic paymentgrioficipal and prepayments of
principal. The following tables summarize the Camys RMBS at December 31, 2009 and 2008 accottditigeir estimated weighted-
average life classifications:

The weighted-average lives of the mortgage-backedrgties at December 31, 2009 and 2008 in thesdbtlow are based on data
provided through dealer quotes, assuming constapgyment rates to the balloon or reset date fdn sacurity. The prepayment model
considers current yield, forward yield, steepnddb@ curve, current mortgage rates, mortgage @t outstanding loan, loan age, margin
and volatility.

December 31, 200
(dollars in thousand:

Non-Agency
Non-Agency Non-Agency Subordinatet Agency
Non-Agency Subordinatet Agency Senior RMB¢ RMBS RMBS
Senior RMBS  RMBS Fair RMBS Amortized Amortized Amortized
Weighted Average Lifi Fair Value Value Fair Value Cost Cost Cost
Less than one ye: $ 20,53 $ 137 $ - 8 20,54¢ $ 76 $ =
Greater than one year and less than
years 1,520,80 204,48 1,690,02! 1,631,46. 244,93 1,671,50:
Greater than five yea 481,06! 171,84( - 478,53 141,59« -
Total $ 202240 $ 376,45¢ $ 1,690,020 $ 2,130,541 $ 386,600 $ 1,671,50
December 31, 200
(dollars in thousand:
Non-Agency
Non-Agency Non-Agency Subordinatet Agency
Non-Agency Subordinatet Agency Senior RMB¢ RMBS RMBS
Senior RMBS  RMBS Fair RMBS Amortized Amortized Amortized
Weighted Average Lifi Fair Value Value Fair Value Cost Cost Cost
Less than one ye: $ - 8 - 8 - 8 - $ - $ =
Greater than one year and less than
years 520,73 5,06¢ 242,36. 729,49! 6,01z 240,32t
Greater than five yea 82,26¢ 5,03¢ - 135,10:. 11,19¢ -
Total $ 603,00 $ 10,10 $ 242,36: $ 864,59° $ 17,217 $ 240,32t
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The RMBS portfolio has the following characteristat December 31, 2009 and 2008:

Non-Agency RMBS

December 31, 20C Senior Subordinatel Agency RMBS  Securitized Loan
Weighted average cost ba $77.27 $23.93 $103.41 $101.09
Weighted average fair value ( $73.35 $23.30 $104.55 $101.09
Weighted average coup 5.74% 5.90% 5.50% 5.49%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 12.97% 11.58% 25.02% 3.14%
Adjustablerate percentage of portfol 29.71% 13.44% 0.00% 4.14%
Weighted average 3 month CPR at pe-end (2) 17.34% 15.25% 22.78% 18.86%

Non-Agency RMBS

December 31, 20C Senior Subordinatel Agency RMBS  Securitized Loan
Weighted average cost ba $98.13 $93.83 $102.71 $101.03
Weighted average fair value ( $68.44 $55.08 $103.58 $101.03
Weighted average coup 5.98% 5.35% 6.69% 5.95%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 0.48% 0.78% 13.70% 15.00%
Adjustablerate percentage of portfol 50.95% 0.29% 0.00% 18.80%
Weighted average 3 month CPR at pe-end (2) 12.57% 6.80% 14.50% 7.80%

(1) Securitized loans are carried at amortized. .
(2) Represents the estimated percentage of prirttipbwill be prepaid over the next three monthsddl on historical principal paydow

The non-Agency RMBS portfolio is subject to cratbk. The Company seeks to mitigate credit rightigh its asset selection
process. The investment securities containedisnptbrtion of the portfolio have the following catieral characteristics at December 31, 2009
and 2008.

December 31, December 3:
2009 2008
Number of securities in portfoli 20¢ 30
Weighted average maturity (yea 28.t 22.1
Weighted average amortized loan to ve 73.8% 74.2%
Weighted average FIC 715.7 717t
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa 415.¢ 394.:
Weighted average percentage owner occu 82.8% 77.8%
Weighted average percentage single family resid 59.9% 54.&%
Weighted average current credit enhancer 12.2% 25.4%
Weighted average geographic concentra CA 44.&% CA 53.(%
FL 17.2% FL 10.6%
NY 7.5% AZ 8.2%
MD 4.9% NV 5.6%
NJ 4.4% NJ 4.1%

On July 30, 2009, the Company transferred $1.%hiih principal value of its RMBS to the JPMRT 200 Trust in a re-
securitization transaction. In this transactitie, Company sold $166.3 million of AAA-rated fixeddefloating rate bonds to third party
investors and realized a gain on the sale of apmately $7.3 million. The Company retained $69iion of AAA-rated bonds, $665.5
million in subordinated bonds and the owner trastificate. The subordinated bonds and the ownst tertificate provide credit support to
the AAA-rated bonds. The bonds issued by the aitestcollateralized by RMBS that have been transfieto the JPMRT 2009-7 Trust.

On September 30, 2009, the Company transferredidplioh in principal value of its RMBS to the CMSZD09-12R Trust in a re-
securitization transaction. In this transactitie, Company sold $260.6 million of AAA-rated fixeddefloating rate bonds to third party
investors and realized a gain on sale of approxdm&5.2 million. The Company retained $655.0 imillof AAA-rated bonds, $815.1
million in subordinated bonds and the owner trastificate. The subordinated bonds and the ownust tertificate provide credit support to
the AAA-rated bonds. The bonds issued by the fitestcollateralized by RMBS that have been transfieto the CSMC 2009-12R Trust.
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During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Coynpald RMBS with a carrying value of $1.8 billicorfrealized gains of $103
million. During the year ended December 31, 2@68,Company sold RMBS with a carrying value of $804illion for realized losses of
approximately $137.4 million and terminated int¢rase swaps with a notional value of $983.4 millifor realized losses of approximately
$10.5 million.

4. Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The following table represents the Compangécuritized residential mortgage loans classd®teld for investment at December
2009 and 2008. At December 31, 2009, approxim&@¥g of the Company’s securitized loans are adjistate mortgage loans and 43%
are fixed rate mortgage loans. All of the adjulgabte loans held for investment are hybrid adjoist rate mortgages (“ARM”). Hybrid
ARMs are mortgages that have interest rates tledfixad for an initial period (typically three, By seven or ten years) and thereafter reset at
regular intervals subject to interest rate capise feriodic cap on all hybrid ARMS in the secuetizoan portfolio range from 0.00% to
3.00% for the years ended December 31, 2009 an8l. Z0Be securitized loans held for investment areied at their principal balance
outstanding less an allowance for loan losses:

December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
(dollars in thousand:
Securitized mortgage loans, at principal bale $ 475,08 $ 584,96
Less: allowance for loan loss 4,551 1,621
Securitized loans held for investme $ 470,53. $ 583,34t

The following table summarizes the changes in tlssvance for loan losses for the securitized magigan portfolio during the
years ended December 31, 2009 and 2

December 31, 20C December 31, 20C December 31, 20C
(dollars in thousand:

Balance, beginning of peric $ 1,621 - $ =
Provision for loan losse 3,101 1,621 -
Charge-offs (177 - -
Balance, end of peric $ 4,551 $ 1,621 $ -

On a quarterly basis, the Company evaluates thguads of its allowance for loan losses. The Corgjsaallowance for loan losses
for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $4.6omjllepresenting 97 basis points of the principdatce of the Company’s securitized
mortgage loan portfolio. The Company’s allowanzeldan losses was $1.6 million for the year endedember 31, 2008, representing 28
basis points of the principal balance of the Comyfsasecuritized loan portfolio. At December 310901.82% of the securitized loans held
for investment were greater than 60 days delinqardt0.89% were in some stage of foreclosure. fAcember 31, 2008, 0.12% of the
securitized loans held for investment were greidi@n 60 days delinquent and no loans were in foseck.

5. Fair Value Measurements

GAAP defines fair value, establishes a frameworknfieasuring fair value, establishes a three-leaklation hierarchy for disclosure
of fair value measurement and enhances disclosgrérements for fair value measurements. The tialuaierarchy is based upon the
transparency of inputs to the valuation of an ags8ability as of the measurement date. ThedHewsels are defined as follows:

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology aretgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imgwquoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs that
are observable for the asset or liability, eitheeatly or indirectly, for substantially the fukttm of the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to fair value.
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The following discussion describes the methodokegidized by the Company to fair value its finalénstruments by instrument
class.

Short-term Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsuad interest receivable, dividends payable, atsopayable, and accrued inte
payable generally approximates estimated fair vdlieeto the short term nature of these financstriiments.

Non-Agency and Agency RMBS

The Company determines the fair value of its inwestt securities utilizing a pricing model that inporates such factors as coupon,
prepayment speeds, weighted average life, collateraposition, borrower characteristics, expectedrest rates, life caps, periodic caps,
reset dates, collateral seasoning, expected losgescted default severity, credit enhancementoémer pertinent factors. Management
reviews the fair values generated by the modekterdhine whether prices are reflective of the aurnearket. Management performs a
validation of the fair value calculated by the pricmodel by comparing its results to independeites provided by dealers in the securities
and/or third party pricing services.

Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtbtsy management to ensure the changes are agteopts markets and
products develop and the pricing for certain praslbecomes more transparent, the Company will coatio refine its valuation
methodologies. The methods used to produce adhiewcalculation may not be indicative of net izathle value or reflective of future fair
values. Furthermore, while the Company believegatgation methods are appropriate and consistéhtother market participants, the use
of different methodologies, or assumptions, to aeiee the fair value of certain financial instrurteenould result in a different estimate of
fair value at the reporting date. The Company irgasts that are current as of the measurement @aieh may include periods of market
dislocation, during which price transparency maydmhiced.

During times of market dislocation, as has beereggpced for some time, the observability of priaed inputs can be reduced for
certain instruments. If dealers or independertipgiservices are unable to provide a price foasset, or if the price provided by them is
deemed unreliable by the Company, then the asfidiewalued at its fair value as determined indjéaith by the Company. In addition,
validating third party pricing for the Company’ss@stments may be more subjective as fewer partitspaay be willing to provide this
service to the Company. llliquid investments tygflic experience greater price volatility as a reathrket does not exist. As fair value is not
an entity specific measure and is a market baspbaph which considers the value of an asset bilitiafrom the perspective of a market
participant, observability of prices and inputs @any significantly from period to period. A cotidh such as this can cause instruments !
reclassified from Level 1 to Level 2 or Level 2ltevel 3 when the Company is unable to obtain thady pricing verification.

If at the valuation date, the fair value of an istveent security is less than its amortized co#tetlate of the consolidated statement
of financial condition, the Company analyzes theestment security for OTTI. Management evaludtesGompany’s RMBS for OTTI at
least on a quarterly basis, and more frequentlywdmnomic or market concerns warrant such evaluatConsideration is given to (1) the
length of time and the extent to which the fairnahas been lower than carrying value, (2) thentrdéthe Company to sell the investment
prior to recovery in fair value (3) whether the Gmany will be more likely than not required to gbk investment before the expected
recovery, (4) and the expected future cash flonth@finvestment in relation to its amortized cddhrealized losses on assets that are
considered OTTI due to credit are recognized imiegs and the cost basis of the assets are adjusted

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company hasifitasits RMBS as “Level 2”. The Company’s fingacassets carried at fair
value on a recurring basis are valued at Decemhe2@®9 and 2008 as follows:

December 31, 200

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousand:
Assets:
Nor-Agency mortgac-backed securitie $ - $ 2,398,860 $ =
Agency mortgac-backed securitie $ - $ 169002 $ -
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December 31, 200

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousand:
Assets:
Nor-Agency mortgac-backed securitie $ - $ 613,10¢ $ =
Agency mortgac-backed securitie $ - $ 24236, % -

As of the years ended December 31, 2009 and 208& empany was able to obtain third party priciegfication for all assets
classified as Level 2. The classification of assetd liabilities by level remains unchanged atdddoer 31, 2009, when compared to the
previous year. In the aggregate, the Company's/éduation of RMBS investments were 1.05% and @& 08wer than the aggregated dealer
marks for the years ended December 31, 2009 a8l 200

Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company records securitized loans held fordtnaent when it securitizes or re-securitizes assedsrecords the transaction as a
“financing.” The Company carries securitized loaetd for investment at principal value, plus prems or discounts paid, less an allowance
for loan losses. The Company fair values its gdzed loans held for investment by estimating fataash flows of the underlying
assets. The Company models each underlying agseinsidering, among other items, the structurda@funderlying security, coupon,
servicer, actual and expected defaults, actuakapdcted default severities, reset indices, angayraent speeds in conjunction with market
research for similar collateral performance and agament’s expectations of general economic comditilo the sector and greater economy.

Repurchase Agreements

The Company records repurchase agreements attmgiactual amounts including accrued interest pi@yaRepurchase agreeme
are collateralized financing transactions utilibycthe Company to acquire investment securitiege @ the short term nature of these
financial instruments, the Company estimated tivevédue of these repurchase agreements to beotiteactual obligation plus accrued
interest payable at maturity.

Securitized Debt

The Company records securitized debt for certifisatr notes sold in securitization or re-secutitizetransactions treated as
“financings” pursuant to ASC 860. The Company iearsecuritized debt at the principal balance antiihg on norretained notes associal
with its securitized loans held for investment ghuemiums or discounts recorded with the sale efiibtes to third parties. The premiums or
discounts associated with the sale of the notestificates are amortized over the life of thenmsment. The Company estimates the fair
value of securitized debt by estimating the fuash flows associated with underlying assets @shéizing the secured debt outstanding.
Company models each underlying asset by consideaingng other items, the structure of the undeglg@curity, coupon, servicer, actual
and expected defaults, actual and expected defawdtrities, reset indices, and prepayment speatmjanction with market research for
similar collateral performance and management’'etgtions of general economic conditions in théoseand greater economy.

The following table presents the carrying value astimated fair value, as described above, of tragany’s financial instruments
at December 31, 2009 and 2008:

December 31, 200 December 31, 200
Carrying Estimated Fair Carrying Estimated Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(dollars in thousand:
Non-Agency RMBS $ 2517,14 $ 2,398,860 $ 881,80¢ $ 613,10!
Agency RMBS 1,671,50: 1,690,02! 240,32¢ 242,36
Securitized loans held for investmg 470,53¢ 453,38t 583,34t 577,89:
Repurchase agreeme 1,975,40: 1,977,66. 562,11¢ 562,16
Securitized dek 390,35( 408,40 488,74 510,79¢
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6. Repurchase Agreements

The Company had outstanding $2.0 billion and $56dlllon of repurchase agreements with weightedage borrowing rates of
0.60% and 1.43% and weighted average remainingriiesuof 26 and 2 days as of December 31, 2002808, respectively. At December
31, 2009 and 2008, RMBS pledged as collateral uthdese repurchase agreements had an estimatedlfzgrof $2.0 billion and $680.8

million, respectively. The interest rates of thespurchase agreements are generally indexeé n#rmonth LIBOR rate and re-price
accordingly.

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the repurchase mgrés collateralized by RMBS had the following rémray maturities:

December 31, 20( December 31, 20(
(dollars in thousand:

Overnight $ - $ =
1-30 days (1. 1,772,66: 562,11
30 to 59 day: 62,24 -
60 to 89 day: - -
90 to 119 day - -
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 140,49 -
Total $ 1,975,40. $ 562,11

(1) Repurchase agreements with affiliates tote289.0 million and $562.1 million for the years edd
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectiv

At December 31, 2009, the Company did not havenaouat at risk greater than 10% of its equity witly @ounterparty. At
December 31, 2008 the Company had an amount abfresgproximately 29% of its equity with Annaly, affiliate.

7. Securitized Debt

All of the Company’s securitized debt is collateradl by residential mortgage loans. For finanaiglbrting purposes, the
Company’s securitized debt is accounted for apanfiing. Thus, the residential mortgage loans aelcollateral are recorded in the assets of
the Company as securitized loans held for investraed the securitized debt is recorded as a ltghilithe statements of financial condition.

At December 31, 2009, the Company’s securitized delateralized by residential mortgage loans aaulincipal balance of $390.4
million. The debt matures between the years 20t52838. At December 31, 2009, the debt carriegighted average cost of financing
equal to 5.50%, that is secured by residential gage loans of which approximately 43% of the remngimprincipal balance pays a fixed rate
of 6.33% and 57% of the remaining principal balapags a variable rate of 5.63%. At December 30826ecuritized debt collateralized by
residential mortgage loans had a principal balai&188.7 million. At December 31, 2008, the dedtried a weighted average cost of
financing equal to 5.55%, of which approximately#4f the remaining principal balance is a fixecerat 6.32% and 56% of the remaining
principal balance at a variable rate of 5.65%.

The following table presents the estimated prindippayment schedule of the securitized debt hglthe Company outstanding at
December 31, 2009 and 2008, based on expectedaasidf the loans collateralizing the debt:

December 31, 20( December 31, 20(
(dollars in thousand:

Within One Yeal $ 37,19: $ 65,56
One to Three Yeal 70,88t 112,74!
Three to Five Year 59,38: 85,95¢
Greater Than or Equal to Five Yei 240,94! 246,53!
Total $ 408,40: $ 510,79¢
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Maturities of the Company’s securitized debt angasielent upon cash flows received from the undegligans. The estimate of their
repayment is based on scheduled principal paynoentse underlying loans. This estimate will diffesm actual amounts to the extent
prepayments and/or loan losses are experienced.

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company baaffrbalance sheet credit risk.
8. Common Stock

On September 24, 2009, the Company adopted a dividegnvestment and share purchase plan (‘DRSPR{& DRSPP provides
holders of record of our common stock an opporjuttitautomatically reinvest all or a portion of itheash distributions received on common
stock in additional shares of our common stock el & to make optional cash payments to purchazmes of our common stock. Persons
who are not already stockholders may also purchaseommon stock under the plan through optionshgayments. The DRSPP is
administered by the Administrator, The Bank of Néark Mellon. To date no shares were issued untteDIRSPP.

On May 27, 2009, the Company announced the salé&000,000 shares of common stock at $3.22 pee $baestimated procee!
less the underwriters’ discount and offering expsnsf $519.3 million. Immediately following thals of these shares Annaly purchased
4,724,017 shares at the same price per share pallie offering, for proceeds of approximately & /illion. In addition, on June 1, 2009
the underwriters exercised the option to purchast @an additional 25,200,000 shares of commorkdtocover overallotments for proceec
less the underwriters’ discount, of approximately ® million. These sales were completed on Ju28@9. In all, the Company raised net
proceeds of approximately $612.4 million in thefferings.

On May 22, 2009, the Company filed an amendmeits tarticles of Incorporation. The Company’s Atés of Incorporation
previously allowed the Company to issue up to al ok 550,000,000 shares of capital stock, pares&@.01 per share. As of May 22, 2009,
the Company had 472,401,769 shares of common &sgkd and outstanding. To retain the abilityssme additional shares of capital stock,
the Company has increased the number of shareauithorized to issue to 1,100,000,000 sharesstorgsf 1,000,000,000 shares of
common stock, $0.01 par value per common share1@@®00,000 shares of preferred stock, $0.01 alaewer preferred share.

On April 15, 2009, the Company announced the sa®396,000,000 shares of common stock at $3.00Emesfor estimated
proceeds, less the underwriters’ discount and ioffezxpenses, of $674.8 million. Immediately follog the sale of these shares Annaly
purchased 24,955,752 shares at the same prichger a&s the public offering, for proceeds of apnakely $74.9 million. In addition, on
April 16, 2009 the underwriters exercised the aptim purchase up to an additional 35,250,000 shafresmmon stock to cover over-
allotments for proceeds, less the underwriter€alisit, of approximately $101.3 million. These sakese completed on April 21, 2009. In
all, the Company raised net proceeds of approxim&&50.9 in these offerings.

On October 24, 2008, the Company announced theo§atE0,000,000 shares of common stock at $2.25pene for estimated
proceeds, less the underwriters’ discount and ioffezxpenses, of $237.9 million. Immediately follog the sale of these shares, Annaly
purchased 11,681,415 shares at the same prichger a&s the public offering, for proceeds of appnaxely $26.3 million. In addition, on
October 28, 2008 the underwriters exercised theopd purchase up to an additional 16,500,000eshaf common stock to cover over-
allotments for proceeds, less the underwriter€alisit, of approximately $35.8 million. These salese completed on October 29, 2008. In
all, the Company’s raised net proceeds of approxaty&299.9 million.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstarangf December 31, 2009 or 2008.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Coyngaciared dividends to common shareholders tad@iv2.4 million or $0.4
per share. During the year ended December 31,, 2008 ompany declared dividends to common shademototaling $28.9 million or
$0.62 per share.
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9. Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted a long term stock inceptaurgeto provide incentives to its independentcatoes and employees of
FIDAC and its affiliates, to stimulate their effetowards the Company’s continued success, lomg-geowth and profitability and to attract,
reward and retain personnel and other service geosi The incentive plan authorizes the Compeams&@ommittee of the board of directors
to grant awards, including incentive stock optiams-qualified stock options, restricted shares@thér types of incentive awards. The
specific award granted to an individual is basednyjin part, the individual’s position within FIDAGhe individual's position within the
Company, his or her contribution to the Compangg@mance, market practices, as well as the recamdiations of FIDAC. The incentive
plan authorizes the granting of options or othearas for an aggregate of the greater of 8.0% obthstanding shares of the Company’s
common stock up to a ceiling of 40,000,000 shares.

On January 2, 2008, the Company granted restrgttedk awards in the amount of 1,301,000 share$DAE's employees and the
Company’s independent directors. The awards tintiependent directors vested on the date of gnadithe awards to FIDAC's employees
vest quarterly over a period of 10 years. Of ttesmes, as of December 31, 2009, 269,800 shaves/kated and 21,955 shares were
forfeited or cancelled. There have been no ingerdivards granted since January 2, 2008.

As of December 31, 2009, there was $18.4 milliototd] unrecognized compensation cost related tevwasted share-based
compensation arrangements granted under the lomgineentive plan. That cost is expected to begaed over a weighted-average period
of 8.0 years. The total fair value of shares vesligihg the year ended December 31, 2009 was $861,1

10. Income Taxes

As a REIT, the Company is not subject to Federame tax to the extent that it makes qualifyindriistions to its stockholders,
and provided it satisfies on a continuing basigugh actual investment and operating resultsRIEBE requirements including certain asset,
income, distribution and stock ownership tests.siitates recognize REIT status as well. Duriegytar ended December 31, 2009, the
Company recorded $1,000 in income tax expenseecktatstate and federal tax liabilities on undisttéd income. During the year ended
December 31, 2008, the Company recorded $12,4Bitame tax expense related to state and federdibtaikities on undistributed income.

In general, common stock cash dividends declaretidyCompany will be considered ordinary incomsttwkholders for income ti
purposes. From time to time, a portion of the Canys dividends may be characterized as capitalsgai return of capital. During the year
ended December 31, 2009 the Company estimatealtlimtome distributed in the form of dividends Mae characterized as ordinary
income. For the year ended December 31, 200Bame distributed in the form of dividends wasreltéerized as ordinary income.

11. Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s primary components of market riskcaeglit risk and interest rate risk. The Compangubject to credit risk and
interest rate risk in connection with its investiisein non-Agency residential mortgage loans anditeensitive mortgage-backed
securities. When the Company assumes credititiakempts to minimize interest rate risk throwagiset selection, hedging and matching the
income earned on mortgage assets with the costattd liabilities. The Company is subject to it rate risk, primarily in connection with
its investments in fixed-rate and adjustable-ratetgage-backed securities, residential mortgagesioand borrowings under repurchase
agreements. The Company attempts to minimize torisitithrough due diligence and asset selectiopurghasing loans underwritten to
agreed-upon specifications of selected originatditse Company has established a whole loan targekehincluding prime borrowers with
FICO scores generally greater than 650, Alt-A doentation, geographic diversification, owner-occdpieoperty, and moderate loan to
value ratio. These factors are considered to Ipoitant indicators of credit risk

12. Management Agreement and Related Party Trans#ons

The Company has entered into a management agreevitleritl DAC, which provides for an initial term #hmgh December 31, 2010
with an automatic one-year extension option angestibo certain termination rights. The Company9BIDAC a quarterly management fee
equal to 1.75% per annum of the gross Stockholdegsity (as defined in the management agreemerieo€ompany.

On October 13, 2008, the Company and FIDAC ametitedhanagement agreement to reduce the base magragiem from 1.75%
per annum to 1.50% per annum of the Company’s btuldkrs’ equity and provide that the incentive fareg/ be in cash or shares of the
Company’s common stock, at the election of the Camyfs board of directors.
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On October 19, 2008, the Company and FIDAC furtmended the management agreement to provide thatdbntive fee be
eliminated in its entirety and FIDAC receive orfyetmanagement fee of 1.50% per annum of the Con'gatockholders’ equity. From the
Company’s inception to termination of the incentige in October 2008, the Company had not paidnitnoe fees.

Management fees accrued and paid to FIDAC for #a gnded December 31, 2009 and 2008 were $25i@mahd $8.4 million,
respectively.

The Company is obligated to reimburse FIDAC forcitsts incurred under the management agreemeiaiddition, the management
agreement permits FIDAC to require the Companyatpfpr its pro rata portion of rent, telephonelitigis, office furniture, equipment,
machinery and other office, internal and overhegikases that FIDAC incurred in the operation of@lmenpany. These expenses are
allocated between FIDAC and the Company based@rsatio of the Company’s proportion of gross assetspared to all remaining gross
assets managed by FIDAC as calculated at eachequend. FIDAC and the Company will modify thigoahtion methodology, subject to t
Company'’s board of directorapproval if the allocation becomes inequitable (ifehe Company becomes very highly leveraged maned tc
FIDAC's other funds and accounts). FIDAC has wdiits right to request reimbursement from the Comypaf these expenses until such
time as it determines to rescind that waiver.

During the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2@#H9Q0 and 140,900 shares of restricted stockdslsy¢he Company to
FIDAC’s employees vested, as discussed in Note 9.

In March 2008, the Company entered into a Secaritidustry and Financial Markets Association statigeprinted form Master
Repurchase Agreement with Annaly. This standardeagent does not contain any sort of liquidity,wetth or other similar types of
positive or negative covenants. Rather, the ageeégontains covenants that require the buyer alher ©f securities to deliver collateral or
securities, and similar covenants which are custgrmathe form Master Repurchase Agreement. ABefember 31, 2009, the Company
was financing $259.0 million under this agreemerat weighted average rate of 1.72%. At DecembgeRBQ8, the Company financed $56
million under this agreement at a weighted averageof 1.43%. The Company has been in compliariteall covenants of this agreement
since it entered into this agreement.

13. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may become invoiwedharious claims and legal actions arising indndinary course of
business. Management is not aware of any reportedreported contingencies at December 31, 2009.

14. Subsequent Events

On January 28, 2010, we formed Chimera SpecialiHgédLLC, a Delaware limited liability company, asvholly owned subsidiat
of Chimera Asset Holding LLC, which is a wholly oadhsubsidiary of Chimera Investment Corporation.

On January 29, 2010, the Company transferred $tliodhkin principal value of its RMBS to the CSM@20-1R Trust in a re-
securitization transaction. In this transactitre, Company sold $128.1 million of AAA-rated fixeate bonds to third party investors for net
proceeds of $127.7 million. The Company retain@83%6 million of AAA+ated bonds, $1.0 billion in subordinated bondsthedwner trus
certificate, and interest only bonds with a notloradue of $1.6 billion. The subordinated bondd #me owner trust certificate provide credit
support to the AAA-rated bonds. The bonds issuyethé trust are collateralized by RMBS that weasmsferred to the CSMC 2010-1R Trust.

There were no material recognized or unrecognimbdeqjuent events through the date our consolidiai@acial statements were
available to be issued.
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15. Summarized Quarterly Results (Unaudited)

The following is a presentation of the results péations for the quarters ended December 31, Z§&tember 30, 2009, June 30,
2009 and March 31, 2009.

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slag

(unaudited
For the Quarters Ende
September
December 3! 30, June 30, March 31,
2009 2009 2009 2009
Net Interest Income:
Interest incom: $ 100,76 $ 104,69C $ 65,077 $ 28,00"
Interest expens 8,53( 9,191 8,31 9,042
Net interest incom 92,23 95,49: 56,76 18,96¢
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (2,480 (6,209 (8,575 -
Non-credit portion of loss recognized in other comrretive income
(loss) 164 4,024 2,08( -
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (1,316 (2,185 (6,495 -
Other gains:
Realized gains on sales of investments, 16,19: 74,50¢ 9,321 3,627
Realized losses on principal w-downs on no-Agency RMBS (195 (61) - -
Total other gain 15,99¢ 74,44 9,321 3,621
Net investment income 106,91! 167,75! 59,59( 22,59:
Other expenses
Management fe 8,51¢ 8,64¢ 5,95¢ 2,58:
Provision for loan losse 1,692 47 1,13( 234
General and administrative expen 1,23¢ 1,057 861 90%
Total other expense 11,44¢ 9,75: 7,94¢ 3,722
Income before income taxe 95,46¢ 158,00: 51,64« 18,87(
Income taxe: - - - 1
Net income $ 95,46¢ $ 158,00 $ 51,64¢ $ 18,86¢
Net income per sha-basic and dilute $ 014 $ 024 % 0.1C $ 0.11
Weighted average number of shares outstarbasic and dilute 670,324,43 670,324,85 503,110,13 177,196,95
Comprehensive income
Net income $ 95,46¢ $ 158,00 $ 51,64 $ 18,86¢
Other comprehensive (loss) incor
Unrealized (loss) gain on availa-for-sale securitie (31,759 238,96¢ 39,50: 13,59(
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetket income for
otherthar-temporary credit impairment loss 1,31¢ 2,18¢ 6,49t -
Reclassification adjustment for realized gainsuded in net incom (15,996 (74,447 (9,329 (3,629
Other comprehensive (loss) incor (46,437 166,70 36,67¢ 9,96:
Comprehensive incon $ 49,03¢ $ 324,70¢ $ 88,31¢ $ 28,83:
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slag
(unaudited

The following is a presentation of the results pérations for the quarters ended December 31, Z§&ember 30, 2008, June 30,
2008, and March 31, 2008.

For the Quarters Ende

September
December 3! 30, June 30, March 31,
2008 2008 2008 2008
Net Interest Income:
Interest incom: $ 23,65¢ $ 23,45¢  $ 29,95 $ 28,19
Interest expens 10,95/ 15,54 20,02¢ 14,02:
Net interest incom 12,70: 7,91F 9,92¢ 14,17:
Other (losses) gains:
Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ - 10,06 25,58¢ (31,499
Realized (losses) gains on sales of investmentt - (113,130 1,64¢ (32,819
Realized (losses) gains on termination of interat& swap: - (10,460 122 -
Total other (losses) gail - (113,525 27,35! (64,317)
Net investment income 12,70: (105,610 37,27, (50,140
Other expenses:
Management fe 2,292 1,681 2,22¢ 2,221
Provision for/reduction of loan loss 94C (569 (15) 1,17¢
General and administrative expen 68€ 81€ 1,167 1,38¢
Total other expense 3,91¢ 1,93¢ 3,38( 4,792
Income (loss) before income taxe 8,78¢ (107,54 33,89 (54,93))
Income taxe: (3) 12 - 3
Net income (loss $ 8,787 $ (107,550 $ 33,897 $ (54,935
Net income (loss) per shi-basic and dilute: $ 0.07 $ (2.7¢) $ 087 $ (1.4€)
Weighted average number of shares outstarbasic and dilute 135,115,19 38,992,89 38,999,95 37,744,48
Comprehensive loss
Net income (loss) per shi-basic and dilute $ 8,787 $ (107,550 $ 33,897 $ (54,939
Other comprehensive los
Unrealized (loss) gain on availa-for-sale securitie (128,36)) (146,45¢) (58,05) (88,257
Reclassification adjustment for realized gainsgés3 included in net
income (loss - 113,13( (1,649 32,81¢
Other comprehensive los (128,36 (33,326) (59,695 (55,439
Comprehensive los $ (119579 $ (140,88) $ (25,799 $ (110,379




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedetien duly authorized, in the city of New York, ®taf New York.

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

By: /s/ Matthew Lambias
Matthew Lambias:
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
February 25, 201

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgl Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe date indicated.

Signatures Title Date

_ Chief Executive Officer, President, and
/s/ Matthew Lambias Director (Principal Executive Office February 25, 201
Matthew Lambias

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial
/s/ A. Alexandra Denahe and Accounting Officer February 25, 201
A. Alexandra Denaha

/sl Jeremy Diamon Director February 25, 2010
Jeremy Diamon

/sl Mark Abrams Director February 25, 2010
Mark Abrams

/sl Paul A. Keena Director February 25, 2010
Paul A. Keenal

/s/ Paul Donlir Director February 25, 2010
Paul Donlin
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Exhibit 12.1

Ratio of Income (Loss) To Combined Fixed Charged Rreferred Stock Dividenc
The following table sets for the the caluculatigroar ratio of earnings to combined fixed charged preferred stoc
dividends for the periods shown (dollars in thowsar

For the Perio
For the Year For the Year November 21

Ended Ended 2007 to

December 3. December 3. December 3:
2009 2008 2007

Net income (loss) before tax $ 32398 $ (119,79) $ (2,90))
Add: fixed charges (interest expen: 35,08: 60,54« 41F
preferred stock dividen - - -
Income (loss) as adjust $ 359,06° $ (59,259 $ (2,48¢)
Fixed charges (interest expense) + preferred stivittend $ 35,08: $ 60,54: $ 41¢

Ratio of income (losses) to combined fixed chayes preferred stock dividen 10.2:X (0.99X%) (5.99%)



Exhibit 21.1
Subsidiaries of Registrant

Chimera Securities Holdings LLC, Delaware limitebility company.

Chimera Asset Holding LLC, Delaware limited liabilicompany.

Chimera Holding, LLC, Delaware limited liability ogpany.

Chimera Special Holdings LLC, Delaware limited lidlp company (a wholly owned subsidiary of Chimekaset Holding LLC)



Exhibit 23.3
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference ini®egion Statement No. 333-159468 and 333-1621?Bayms S-3 of our report dated
February 25, 2010, relating to the consolidatedrfoial statements of Chimera Investment Corporatiad the effectiveness of Chimera
Investment Corporation’s internal control over figgl reporting, appearing in this Annual Reportramm 10-K of Chimera Investment
Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2009.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

New York, New York
February 25, 2010



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Matthew Lambiase, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual reporfForm 10-K of Chimera Investment Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsinot contain any untrue statement of a mat@calr omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the const#difinancial statements, and other financial imfation included in this report, fair
present in all material respects the financial o results of operations and cash flows ofréngistrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifyindioér and | are responsible for establishing anéhtaming disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Ehd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) forrbgistrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and pugesdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdo be
designed under our supervision, to ensure thatriabileformation relating to the registrant, incing its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this report is being prepare

b. Designed such internal control over finah@gorting, or caused such internal control ovweariicial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide regde assurance regarding the reliability of finaheporting
and the preparation of financial statements foerl purposes in accordance with generally acdegateountin
principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and predenthis report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered
by this report based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in grggstrants internal control over financial reporting thatomed during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (thgsteant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case ofaamual report) that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likelyrtaterially affect, the registrant’s internal cahtover financial
reporting; anc

5. The registrant’s other certifyindioér and | have disclosed, based on our most temerluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorgldhe audit committee of the registranboard of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and materialake@esses in the design or operation of internalrotsnover financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; an

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, thatalwes management or other employees who have Hisagn role in
the registrar' s internal control over financial reportir

Date: February 25, 2010

/s/ Matthew Lambiase

Matthew Lambiase

Chief Executive Officer and President (PrincipakEutive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

I, A. Alexandra Denahan, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual reporfForm 10-K of Chimera Investment Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsinot contain any untrue statement of a mat@calr omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the const#difinancial statements, and other financial imfation included in this report, fair
present in all material respects the financial o results of operations and cash flows ofréngistrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifyindioér and | are responsible for establishing anéhtaming disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Ehd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) forrbgistrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and pugesdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdo be
designed under our supervision, to ensure thatriabiieformation relating to the registrant, incing its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this report is being prepare

b. Designed such internal control over finah@gorting, or caused such internal control ovweariicial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide regde assurance regarding the reliability of finaheporting
and the preparation of financial statements foerl purposes in accordance with generally acdegateountin
principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and predenthis report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered
by this report based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in grggstrants internal control over financial reporting thatomed during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (thgsteant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case ofaamual report) that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likelyrtaterially affect, the registrant’s internal cahtover financial
reporting; anc

5. The registrant’s other certifyindioér and | have disclosed, based on our most temerluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorgldhe audit committee of the registranboard of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and materialak@esses in the design or operation of internalrotsnover financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; an

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, thatalwes management or other employees who have disa role in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir
Date: February 25, 2010
/sl _A. Alexandra Denahan

A. Alexandra Denahan
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial OffiQe




Exhibit 32.1

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
In connection with the annual report on Form 10fkKChimera Investment Corporation (the “Company™) thee year ended

December 31, 2009 to be filed with Securities ardhange Commission on or about the date hereof'Rbport”), I, Matthew Lambiase,

President, and Chief Executive Officer of the Compaertify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarka@&ley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of 1
Company at the dates of, and for the periods covieyethe Report

It is not intended that this statement be deeméxtiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeok 1934.

/s/ Matthew Lambiase

Matthew Lambiase

Chief Executive Officer and President
February 25, 2010




Exhibit 32.2

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the annual report on Form 10fkKChimera Investment Corporation (the “Company™) thee year ended

December 31, 2009 to be filed, I, A. Alexandra Dwarg Chief Financial Officer of the Company, cgrtipursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 18%;

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairly ets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of 1

Company at the dates of, and for the periods coveyethe Report

It is not intended that this statement be deemédxtiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934.

/sl A. Alexandra Denahan
A. Alexandra Denahan
Chief Financial Officer
February 25, 201




